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Chairman's Statement

The financial year 2020-21 has been
extremely challenging as planned infusion of
funds into the Company got further delayed
due to the prolonged and ongoing impact of
COVID-19 due to new variants of virus that
are causing continued impact globally. Inspite
of these challenges, the Company ensured to
serve the existing customers globally to their
satisfaction to the best possible extent within
the available resources and bandwidth.

While the Company has been working with
the investors to complete the financial
transaction, the Company alongwith two
Indian subsidiaries have been admitted to
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
effective 13® May 2021. Hon'ble NCLT in-
turn appointed an IRP. Promoter of the
company filed an appeal with Hon'ble
National Company Law Appellate Tribunal
(NCLAT) on 28" May 2021 and also filed
Special Leave Petition (Civil) with Hon'ble
Supreme Court of India on 07® August 2021
for setting aside these NCLT orders as the
Company has been working towards
resolving these matters. Hon'ble Supreme
court was kind enough to dismiss the NCLT
proceeding against the Company and
subsidiaries and Company received dismissal
orders on 13" September which enabled the
Company to reinstate it's Board of Directors.
Business operations of the Company got

severely impacted during these four months
of legal proceedings. Company ensured to
work very hard to bring the core financial and
other support teams to complete FY 2020-21
financial reports and audit process as on 2nd
November 2021. Subsequently completed
financial audit of quarter one and quarter two
of FY 2021-22 as on this date.

The Company continues to work with the
investor 'The Streamcast Group' as per the
Definitive Restructuring Services Agreement
(RSA) dated 6™August, 2019 for an
investment of ¥ 5,500 crores. This will assist
Rolta in repayment and restructuring its
liabilities including providing financial
assistance. We expect this restructuring
process to get completed at the earliest
possible during the ongoing FY 2021-22 if the
statutory clearances from the European
authorities are available to the investor as per
the COVID-19 situation locally in EU. This
investment will help Company to revive and
normalise its business operations during

FY 2022-23.

- o
K. K. Singh
Chairman & Managing Director

December 08, 2021
DIN : 00260977
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Shareholder Information

Annual General Meeting:

Date : December31,2021

Time : 12:30PMIST

Mode : Video Conference/ Any Other Audio Visual Means
Financial year: April 01 to March 31

Financial Calendar for the Year 2020-21 (tentative and
subject to change)*

Board Meetings - Financial reporting

1st Quarter ended June 2020. On or before August 14, 2020.*
2nd Quarter ended September On or before November 14,
2020. 2020.*

3rd Quarter ended December On or before February 14,

2020. 2021.*

Financial year ending March "

2021 (Audited) On or before May 30th 2021.
General Meeting

Annual General Meeting for the year ended March 31, 2021 -
September, 2021.*

Dividend

The Company has not recommended / declared any dividend
for the Financial Year 2020-21.

Listing Details:
Equity Shares

1. BSE Limited - (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai -400001
Stock Code—BSE - 500366

2. National Stock Exchange of India Limited - (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, C-1 Block G, Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051.

Stock Code—NSE—-ROLTA

The ISIN of Company's equity shares with NSDL and CDSL is
INE293A01013.

Registered Office and Corporate Headquarters:

Rolta Tower “A”, Rolta Technology Park,
MIDC-Marol, Andheri (East),

Mumbai -400093

Phone: +91(22) 29266666

Fax: +91(22) 28365992

Share Transfer System & address for correspondence

98.99% of the equity share capital of the Company is in
electronic form. Transfer of shares are done through
Depositories with no involvement of the Company. As regards,
Transfer of shares in physical form, the transfer documents can
be lodged with Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. The transfer
documents received by the Company/Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent are generally processed and transferred within
10 days from the date of receipt if the documents are complete
in all respects. Authority is delegated to Certain Directors by the
Board to approve transfer etc., which are noted at subsequent
meeting of the Management Committee of Board of Directors.
All correspondences by Shareholders should be addressed to
the Registrar & Transfer Agent (R&T Agent) M/s. Link Intime
India Pvt. Ltd. or at the Registered Office of the Company.

In case any shareholder is not satisfied with the response or does
not get any response within reasonable period from the R & T
Agent, they may approach the Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer at the Registered Office/Corporate Office
of the Company.

R&T Agent Registered Office:
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd Rolta India Limited
Unit :- Rolta India Ltd. Rolta Tower A, Rolta
C-101, 247 Park, Technology Park,

L B S Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai- 400 083

Tel No: 022 449186000

Fax No : 022 49186060

E : rat.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

MIDC, Andheri (East),
Mumbai- 400 093

Tel No.: 022 292 66666
Fax No.: 022 2836 5992
E : investor@rolta.com

Designated e-mail address of investor services

The designated e-mail address of investor services is

Website

The website of the Company carries relevant information in
regard to the results of the Company, dividend declared by the
Company, price sensitive information (if any) and launch of
new products & services by the Company. The Company's
website address is www.rolta.com.

Depositories
a) National Securities Depository Ltd. INSDL)
b) Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL)

Annual Listing fees for the year 2020-21 has been paid to the
Stock Exchanges.

Volume as percentage of Equity

The Company's scrip continues to enjoy good trading volumes
in relevant stock exchanges offering high liquidity. Over 72% of
the trading volume is on the NSE. The total number of shares
traded on National Stock Exchange and BSE Limited between
April 01, 2020 and March 31, 2021 was 13,84,60,127 which
represents 83.46% of the Share Capital of the Company as on
March 31,2021.



Market Capitalization
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Month iy ® @ o Month i, © ® ® Valims
Apr-20 3.95 2.30 3.89 3.25 106966 Apr-20 3.90 2.20 3.85 3.09 134808
May-20 5.20 3.70 394 421 65274 May-20 5.05 3.70 4,00 422 192394
Jun-20 7.36 3.63 7.36 5.03 302540 Jun-20 7.20 3.65 7.20 497 612603
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Sep-20 6.33 4.69 5.40 5.71 84822 Sep-20 6.50 4.75 540 5.80 354476
Oct-20 5.46 4.15 4.57 4.67 52334 Oct-20 5.50 4.05 4.55 6.15 341198
Nov-20 4.80 4.03 4.77 4.37 84934 Nov-20 4.85 4.10 4.75 547 273109
Dec-20 6.55 4.75 5.70 5.73 165609 Dec-20 6.55 4.75 5.70 5.70 409999
Jan-21 6.70 3.79 4.20 543 336060 Jan-21 6.75 3.90 4.20 5.46 785035
Feb-21 4.51 3.95 4.08 4.13 131156 Feb-21 4.50 3.90 4.05 4.12 525386
Mar-21 4.20 3.19 3.19 3.93 200079 Mar-21 4.20 3.25 3.25 3.93 600434
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Shareholding Pattern
as on March 31, 2021
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5 o5 to Total . % to Total
Sr. No. Range Total Holders Holders Total Holding Capital
1 1 500 106768 75.67 17235783 10.39
2 501 1000 15312 10.85 12649030 7.62
3 1001 2000 8766 6.21 13618311 8.21
4 2001 3000 3295 2.33 8543674 5.15
5 3001 4000 1597 1.13 5784526 3.49
6 4001 5000 1484 1.05 7086288 427
7 5001 10000 2126 1.51 16095756 9.70
8 10001 Fhkddk 1755 1.25 84877987 51.16
TOTAL 141103 100.00 165891355 100.00




Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2021

No. of

Shareholders Htoldig
1 Promoters & Promoters Group 10 2.31
2 FIIs/ Foreign Portfolio 3 0.95
3 NRIs 1525 2.28
4 FIs/ MFs/ Banks/ Insurance Cos 16 13.96
5 Corporate Bodies 655 2.59
6 Public 132339 77.90
Total 134548 100.00
Shareholder Initiatives a. Annual Report

The Company has paid a One Time Custody Fee to National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) to pass on the benefit of
reduced custody charges to it's shareholders. Shareholders'
queries & grievances are replied promptly. Dividend Warrants
are normally mailed within a week from the date of declaration
at the AGM. Members are sent at least three reminders
regarding unclaimed dividend, before the same is transferred to
Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF).

The Company has also taken certain investor-friendly
initiatives to provide transparency and valuable information,
such as:

Company has also put up information useful to investors, on its
website as under:

b. Quarterly Results
I. Financials
ii. PressRelease
c. Events & Presentation
d. KeyFinancial Data
e. Share Holding Pattern

The Company continues to improve the quality of information
dissemination to investors by making information available on
the website as well as by making the Annual Report more
transparent and investor-friendly.

Due dates for proposed seven years' Transfer of Unclaimed
Dividend to IEPF as per provisions of the Section 205C of the
Companies Act, 1956 / Section 124 of the Companies Act,
2013:

Date Of. ]?eclaration Dividend relates to Due Date for e R
of Dividend at the Financial Year Transfer to [EPF Smamt(l)
AGM held on (As on 31.03.2021)
1 27-09-2014 2013-14 225 07-11-2021 48,02,042.91
2 26-09-2015 2014-15 3.00 06-11-2022 61,76,724.00

Note: The Company has not declared dividend since the Financial Year 2015-16, hence the details thereof are not provided in the
table.

The Company had transferred a sum ¥ 70,96,106/- during the financial year 2020-21 to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund established by the Central Government. The Said amount represent Unclaimed Dividend for the financial year 2012-13 with
the Company for a period of 7 years from the date of payment.
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Ratios & Ratio Analysis (Consolidated)
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Board's Report

To,
The Members
Rolta India Limited

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 31st Annual Report on the business & operations of your Company together with Audited Financial Statements &

Auditor's Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS & REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

Company's financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2021 is surnmarised below:

(X in Crore)

Revenue

Sales of IT Solutions and Services 943.74 1,492.67
Other Income 333.86 10.98
Total Revenue 1277.60 1,503.65
Expenses

Cost of Materials & Technical Sub-contractors 666.28 1,005.32
Employee Benefit Expenses 270.49 429.21
Finance Costs 957.31 773.56
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 125.04 247.67
Other Expenses 65.46 139.38
Exchange Difference Gain / (Loss) 4.72 44.16
Total Expenses 2,089.31 2,639.30
Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional items and tax (811.71) (1,135.65)
Exceptional Items

Provision cum Write off of Debtors 8.32 77.99
Foreign Exchange Difference on account of adjustment 138.34 (122.74)
Write off of amount receivable from company's WOS- RDTSPL on account 2165.28 -
of Write off of the IPS in the books of RDTSPL based on valuation exercise

Write off of Building Value of Rolta Tower' C ' due to fire in February,2020 162.84 -
Excess Provisions and credit balances written back no longer required (33.86) ~
written back

Old Advance Received from Customers — Written back (1.56) -
Written off RUS Goodwill 44341 -
Amount payable to Rolta Private Limited no longer payable (25.72) -~
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (3,668.77) (1,090.89)
Net Deferred Tax 404.49 175.98
Profit / (Loss) for the year (3,264.26) (914.91)

Results of Operations and the State of Company's Affair

During the financial year 2020-2021, your Company has registered
consolidated revenue for financial year ended March 31, 2021 at ¥.943.74
Crore against ¥. 1,492.67 Crore in previous year, registering a decrease in
Year-on-Year (36.78%). Consolidated loss after tax for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 is . (3,264.26) Crore as against loss of %. (914.91)
Crore in the previous year registering a increase in Year-on-Year loss of

Financial performance:

The Financial performance on Standalone basis is as follows:

Revenue

(256.78%). The basic Earnings Per Share after exceptional item and tax for
the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is X. (196.77) as against previous
period . (55.2). The basic Earnings Per Share was computed by considering
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period as per
the provisions of 'Accounting Standard 20' notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014.

® in Crore)

Financal yvear ended Financia PAT ended

T 4| arch (K20

Sales of IT Solutions and Services

28.81 79.67
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Other Income 75.93 73.48
Total Revenue 104.75 153.15
Expenses

Cost of Materials & Technical Sub-contractors 7.66 44.08
Employee Benefit Expenses 32.85 54.77
Finance Costs 771.60 688.38
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 71.23 86.17
Other Expenses 25.67 38.28
Exchange Difference Gain / (Loss) 47.42 26.87
Total Expenses 956.43 938.55
Profit / (Loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax (851.68) (785.40)
Exceptional Items

Provision cum Write off of Debtors (8.32) 77.99
Foreign Exchange Difference on account of adjustment (138.34) (122.74)
‘Write off of amount receivable from company’s WOS- RDTSPL on account 2160.25 -
of Write off of the IPS in the books of RDTSPL based on valuation exercise

Write off of Building Value of Rolta Tower' C ' due to fire in February,2020 (162.84) -
Excess Provisions and credit balances written back no longer required written back (31.00) -
Old Advance Received from Customers — Written back 1.56 -
Amount Receivable from RBDA not recoverable now written off (41.43) -
Amount payable to Rolta Private Limited no longer payable 25.72 -
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (3,268.87) (740.64)
Tax Expenses/ Deferred tax assets 107.17 143.79
Profit / (Loss) for the year (3,161.70) (596.85)

The Company’s standalone revenue was %. 28.81 Crore for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 as against . 79.67 Crore for the previous financial
year ended March 31, 2020 representing (63.84%) decrease. The loss after
tax for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is X. (3,161.70) Crore as
against T. (596.85) Crore in the previous financial year ended March 31,
2020 representing an increase of (429.73 %).

The Company's standalone net worth is (3,248.05) Crore as on March 31,
2021 and X. 960.64 crore in March 31, 2020. The book value per share on a
standalone basis, as on March 31, 2021 is . (195.80) as againstX. 57.91 ason
March 31, 2020.

BUSINESS OFPERATIONS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Business Overview

Digital Transformation has emerged as a driver of sweeping change in the
world around us. It is the integration of digital technology into all areas of a
business resulting in fundamental changes of how businesses operate and
how they deliver value to customers. This digital revolution is being fuelled
by technologies such as the Cloud, Mobility, Enterprise/Cyber Security,
Internet of Things (IoT) and Big Data Analytics, amongst others.

Rolta with its rare combination of deep Geospatial and Engineering
expertise combined with its IT process and differentiated IP based software
packages has established an enviable track record to help its customers on
their Digital Transformation in each of the areas it serves.

Rolta currently operates in the following verticals;
1. Defence and Security

Rolta continues to serve Indian Defence and Security software market of
Command and Control (C2) & Intelligence, Digital Transformation.

‘War Gaming: Rolta has developed indigenous software application for
Aakrosh, the Indian Army’s War gaming project for Counter Insurgency and
Counter Terrorism{CI/CT) operations. This will meet the Army’s need for
smart solutions to provide dynamic and cost-effective training by simulating

operational and strategic scenarios. Itis first of its kind War gaming solution
for training Battalion/Company and Platoon levels of the Indian Army to
meet the real challenges being faced by them.

2. Geospatial Solutions

With decades of expertise and leadership in the Geospatial technologies,
Rolta has built a formidable track record and IP for replicable Smart City
Solutions which include creation of rich geospatial enabled digital
repositories, build geo enabled business critical applications, and deep
learning based advanced geospatial analytics to drive business outcomes.
The Company has built an enviable portfolio for addressing a wide spectrum
of Smart City requirements cutting across Ultilities, Transportation,
Environment, Land Management Public Works, Urban Planning, Disaster
Management and Safety amongst others.

3. BigData Analytics:

The Internet of Things (IoT) and Big Data are two technologies that are
changing the way business is done and is gaining remarkable momentum
world over. Rolta's rich heritage of creating an designing digital repositories
enriched with geospatial and engineering data has uniquely positioned the
Company to analyse complex patterns and thereby extract deep insights
from the digital data. The Company addresses the full spectrum of IoT and
Big Data analytics maturity journey covering initial advisory, data discovery,
enablement of big data landscape, establishing an asset information model
(AIM)to secure IoT integration and culminating in advanced analytics.

Rolta Today: The Company is in position to help various organizations and
government bodies to accelerate the digital transformation by abstracting the
complexities of the nexus of technologies such as Geospatial, Engineering,
Big Data, Internet of Things, Cloud, Cyber Security, Mobility and Social
Media through Rolta's digital transformation platforms and solutions built
on growing portfolio of IPs and replicable software solutions. Rolta had
been uniquely leveraging the exceptional combination of IT, Geospatial and
Engineering domains addressing high growth verticals with proven Rolta IP
led solutions panning across many Patents together with registered
copyrights for software packages and will again do so after ongoing financial
restructuring is complete during the financial year 2022-23.



DIVIDEND

Your Directors have not recommended any dividend for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2021. No amount has been transferred to reserve during the
year. The Company had transferred a sum of ¥.70,96,106/- during the
financial year 2020-21 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
established by the Central Government. The said amount represents
Unclaimed Dividend for the financial year 2012-13 with the Company for a
period of 7 years from the date of payment.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2021 was
%.1,65,89,13,550/- divided into 16,58,91,355 equity shares of ¥.10/- each.
During the year under review, the Company has not allotted any shares
under ESOP Plan. Further, the Company has not issued shares with
differential voting rights. The Company has not issued sweat equity shares
and does not have any scheme to fund its employees to purchase the shares of
the Company.

Pursuant to the Rule 6 (5) of the Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules 2016, the
Company is yet to transfer 1,08,764 Equity Shares of ¥.10/- each to Investor
Education Protection Fund (IEPF) Account for the Financial Year 2009-10.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
('Act) as amended by the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, the extract of
Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is provided under “Annexure-D” to this
Report. Further, pursuant to Section 134 (3) (a) of the Act, a copy of the
Annual Return is uploaded on the website of the Company and the web link
of whichis:

http://www.rolta.com/wp-content/uploads/pdfs/investor-
relations/MGT_9_Annexure_D07122021_07.12.2021.pdf

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

A calendar of Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the
Directors. During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, Six (6) meetings
of the Board were held with a minimum of one meeting in each quarter in a
year and not more than one hundred and twenty days has intervened
between two consecutive meetings of the Board. For details of the meetings
of the Board, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which forms
part of this report.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism named Whistle
Blower Policy (WBP) to provide a formal mechanism to the directors and
employees to report their genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct, if any.
No personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee pertaining to
reporting his/her concern(s) as per WBP mechanism. The details of the
‘WBP is explained in the Corporate Governance Report and also posted on
the website of the Company.

Your Company hereby affirms that no complaints were received during the
year.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company reviews the
execution of Risk Management Plan and ensures its effectiveness including
identification, evaluating, monitoring, and minimizing identifiable risks.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing
Regulations'), Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own
performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the
working of its Committee(s) after seeking inputs from all the Directors
excluding the Director being evaluated. The details of the Board evaluation
is explained in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this
report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee (NRC), framed a policy for selection and appointment of
Directors, Top Management and their remuneration. The Company's
remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the
individual employee and the Company.

The key objective of this policy is:

a) formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the board
of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees;

b) formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent
directors and the board of directors;

c) devisinga policy on diversity of board of directors;

d) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may
be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid
down and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and
removal.

e) whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
independent director, on the basis of the report of performance
evaluation of independent directors.

f) recommend to the Board on remuneration payable to the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Top Management. The authority to identify
right candidates for the appointment of Top Management is vested with
the Chairman & Managing Director. The Human Resource
Department will facilitate in identifying the candidates internally or
externally. NRC will consider the candidates proposed by the Chairman
& Managing Director and recommend to the Board for its consideration
and appointment in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Actand Rules.

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee of the Company has been constituted in line with the
provisions of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations read with Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013. The members of Audit Committee comprise of
Ms. Homai A Daruwalla (Chairperson), Mr. Ramnath Pradeep, Lt. Gen.
Padam Pal Singh Bhandari (Retd.) (upto January 11, 2021) and Mr. Kamal
K. Singh (w.e.f. February 11, 2021) More details of the Audit Committee
are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

In accordance with the Employee Stock Options Plan of the company,
16,37,500 Options are outstanding at beginning of the year. No options were
granted during the year under consideration. During the year under review,
8,25,000 Options have lapsed and Nil Options have been exercised.
Accordingly, there were 8,12,500 Options outstanding at end of the financial
year. The particulars required under the SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 are annexed to and forms part of this report as
“Annexure—F”,

No employee was issued Stock Options during the yearunder review.
PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has formulated a policy for Prevention of Insider Trading
with a view to regulate, monitor and report trading by its employees and
other connected persons in compliance with the SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and the same has been posted on the
website of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors to the best of their knowledge and ability confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed and there are no material departures;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and
were operating effectively; and
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f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate
and operating effectively.

AUDITORS
I. Statutory Auditors

In the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on December 31, 2020, M/s. J.
Kala & Associates, Chartered Accountants have been appointed Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a period of Five (5) years to hold office till the
conclusion of the AGM to be held in the Calendar year 2025.

During the year under review, Statutory Auditors have expressed their
qualified opinion/ remarks in the Audit Report & comments of the Board of
Directors are as under:

For Standalone Financial Statement

‘We draw attention to Note 12 of the Statement. The Company has adjusted
in its book the amount receivable from its US subsidiary, Rolta International
Inc.(RUS) arising from devolvement of Standby Letters of Credit (SBLC)
and interest thereon against long term export advances received. Further, the
company has also adjusted amount payable to step down subsidiary of RUS
against the SBLC dues receivable from RUS. The Company has made
necessary applications stating the above facts to Reserve Bank of India for
their permission for adjusting the amount receivable from RUS against the
amount payable to them, which is still awaited.

Management's views:
The above point has been qualified as RBI approval is yet to be received.
For Consolidated Financial Statement

a) We draw attention to Notel2 of the Statement. The Company has
adjusted in its book the amount receivable from its US subsidiary, Rolta
International Inc.(RUS) arising from devolvement of Standby Letters
of Credit (SBLC) and interest thereon against long term export
advances received. Further, the company has also adjusted amount
payable to step down subsidiary of RUS against the SBLC dues
receivable from RUS. The Company has made necessary applications
stating the above facts to Reserve Bank of India for their permission for
adjusting the amount receivable from RUS against the amount payable
to them, which is still awaited.

b) We draw attention to Note 3 (c). The Bondholder holding order of the
Hon'ble Supreme Court of New York County to recover an amount of
US $ 183 Million, took control of the step down subsidiary of the
company in US namely Rolta Advizex LLP somewhere in March, 2021
and put Rolta AdvizeX LLP on auction. In the said auction, the same
Bondholders purchased Rolta AdvizeX LLP for US $ 55 Million.

Inspite of legal notices to the management of Advizex and to the
AdvizeX Company and the protracted discussion by our US legal
advisors with the Legal Advisors of AdvizeX and Bond holders, the
Bond holders who have taken control as mentioned above, have refused
in writing to give information for full year or part details of financial
records upto 31st March 2021 or for quarterly records for January to
March 2021 of AdvizeX LLP. Therefore, inspite of best efforts by the
Company, it could only consolidate the nine months financials upto
December 2020 in the current financial year for Rolta AdvizeX LLP
which have been Limited reviewed by the Auditors during FY 20-21.

Management's views:
a) Theabove point hasbeen qualified as RBI approval is yet to be received.

b) Inspite of legal notices to the management of Advizex and to the
AdvizeX Company and the protracted discussion by our US legal
advisors with the Legal Advisors of AdvizeX and Bond holders, the
Bond holders who have taken control as mentioned above, have refused
in writing to give information for full year or part details of financial
records upto 31st March 2021 or for quarterly records for January to
March 2021 of AdvizeX LLP. Therefore, inspite of best efforts by the
Company, it could only consolidate the nine months financials upto
December 2020 in the current financial year for Rolta AdvizeXLLP
which have been Limited reviewed by the Auditors during FY 20-21.

Further, the observations and comments given by Auditors in their
Report read together with notes to Accounts are self-explanatory and
hence do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

ii. Secretarial Audit Report

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s. C. B. Jain &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (ACS No. 37337, COP No.
13973) as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2021. The report of the said Secretarial Auditor is enclosed as “Annexure E”
to this report in form MR-3. The qualifications/ notings given by Secretarial
Auditor have been replied/ subsequently complied with by the Company.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries, prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standard 21
notified under Section 133 the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014, form part of the Annual Report and are
reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company.

As onMarch 31, 2021, the Company has 3 Indian subsidiaries out of which
2 are wholly owned subsidiaries and 10 Direct/ Indirect 100% overseas
subsidiaries. The Company has reorganized during the current year, its
various business groups, considering the present challenges being faced by
the Company. In the month of February 2021, Rolta Advizex., ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company.

Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 has exempted companies from
attaching the annual reports and other particulars of its subsidiary
Companies along with the annual report of the Company. Accordingly, the
Aunnual Reports of the subsidiaries are not attached with this Annual Report.
However, statement containing salient features of the financial statements of
subsidiaries as per 129 (3) of the Act, is also included in this Annual Report
in “Form AOC-1” as “Annexure A”. The financial statements of the
subsidiary companies are available for inspection of the shareholders at the
Registered Office of the Company during the working hours.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

None of the transaction with related parties falls under the scope of Section
188(1) of the Act. Information on transaction with related parties pursuant
to Section 134(3) (h) of the Act read with rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in “Annexure B” in “Form AOC-2” and
the same forms part of this report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY

The Company had made an announcement on the Stock Exchanges at
Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange on May 11, 2019
announcing an investment of ¥.5,500 crore by a high tech international
group, “The Streamcast Group”. Further in conjunction to this the
Company executed Definitive Restructuring Services Agreement (RSA)
with Streamcast Group on August 06, 2019, under the terms of which,
Streamcast Group will assist Rolta in repayment and restructuring its
liabilities (including providing financial assistance) commencing with
immediate effect.

Except for the abovementioned Investment announcement for ¥.5,500/-
crore investment by hi-tech Investor group and definitive RSA, there has
been no other material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company during the financial year. Due to the world wide
pandemic of CoVid-19, certain statutory approvals of Investor are pending
in Europe. Once they get statutory approval, they will make this investment
in the Company as above.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEESORINVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions
of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the
Financial Statements.

DEPOSITS

During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has not
accepted any deposits falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has an adequate system of internal financial control
commensurate with its size and nature of business. Your Company has
adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the



safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN
AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with
the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Corporate Harmony
Committee (CHC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary,
trainees) are covered under this policy. The policy has been uploaded on the
website of the Company.

Your Company hereby affirms that no complaints were received during the
year by the Corporate Harmony Committee.

DIRECTORS
Retirement by rotation

As per Section 152 (6) of the Act, unless the articles provide for the
retirement of all directors at every Annual General Meeting, not less than
two-thirds of the total number of directors of a public Company shall be
liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation and one-third
of such of the directors for the time being as are liable to retire by rotation at
every annual general meeting shall be those who have been longest in office
since their last appointment, but as between persons who became directors
on the same day, those who are to retire shall, in default of and subject to any
agreement among themselves, be determined by lot.

The Members, at its Twenty Ninth (29%) Annual General Meeting (AGM)
held on September 28, 2019 had re-appointed Lt. Gen. K. T. Parnaik (Retd.)
as Joint Managing Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation with
effect from May 30, 2019. Accordingly, Lt. Gen. K. T. Parnaik (Retd.), Joint
Managing Director of the Company shall retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and is eligible for re-appointment. The Board
recommends his re-appointment and the same forms part of the Annual
General Meeting Notice.

Independent Directors

As per Section 149(10) of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold office
fora term of upto five consecutive years on the board of a Company, but shall
be eligible for re-appointment on passing a special resolution by the
Company for another term of five consecutive years on the Board of the
Company. The Independent Directors of the Company, Ms. Homai A.
Daruwalla, Non—Executive Independent Director, Mr. Ramnath Pradeep,
Non-Executive Independent Director were re-appointed as Non-Executive
Independent Directors of the Company for a second term of five years and
Lt. Gen. Padam Pal Singh Bhandari (Retd.), Non-Executive Independent
Director was re-appointed as Non-Executive Independent Directors of the
Company for a second term of two consecutive years, as applicable or until
they attain the age of 75 years, whichever is earlier, in the Twenty Ninth
(29") Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Saturday,
September 28, 2019.

Lt. Gen. Padam Pal Singh Bhandari (Retd.), Non-Executive Independent
Director, retired w.e.f. January 11, 2021 on account of attaining the age of 75
years. Mr. Ramdas Gupta - Non-Executive, Independent Director was
appointed for a term of 3 consecutive years commencing from October 17,
2020 or until he attains age of 75 years, whichever is earlier in the Thirtieth
(30th) Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Thursday,
December 31, 2020.

Ms. Homai Daruwalla, Mr. Ramanath Pradeep, and Mr. Ramdas Gupta
Non-Executive, Independent Directors, are registered under the databank of
Independent Directors of the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA) as
an Independent Director and are not eligible for appearing for proficiency
test.

The Company has received declaration from all Independent Directors of
the company confirming that they meet with criteria of Independence as
prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
16(1) (b) SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015.

Appointment of Additional Director
As per Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, on February 11, 2021,
Mr. Sateesh Dasari was appointed by the Board of Directors as an

Additional Director, designated as an Executive Director of the Company to
hold office upto the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) INITIATIVES

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the
Company and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities
during the year are set out in “Annexure H” of this report in the format
prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014. The policy is available on the website of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and
foreign exchange earnings and outgo prescribed under Section 134 (3) (m) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, is Annexed as “Annexure G” to this report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee's
remuneration and other details in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are
forming part of this reportas “Annexure C”.

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing
the names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in
excess of the limits set out in the said Rules are provided in the Annexure
forming part of the Annual Report. However, having regard to the
provisions of Section 136(1) read with its relevant proviso of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being
sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during working hours
and any member interested in obtaining such information may write to the
Company Secretary and the same will be furnished without any fee.

ORDERS PASSED REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

BY THE

During the financial Year 2020-21, the Company has not received any order
from any Regulator(s), Court(s) or Tribunal(s).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCEREPORT

The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing
Regulations forms an integral part of this Report. The requisite certificate
from the Secretarial Auditor of the Company confirming compliance with
the conditions of corporate governance is attached to the report on
Corporate Governance.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resource policies of the Company are business focused and
employee friendly, providing employees with opportunities to grow
professionally as well as personally.

However, the Company has been facing losses and cash crunch which has
caused unavoidable suffering to its employees. The Company expects that
with the induction of new capital and funds by investor through
Restructuring Service Agreement of August 06, 2019, after getting necessary
Statutory approvals and, the situation will improve therafter.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Board of Directors wishes to express its sincere appreciation and thanks
to all customers, stakeholders & shareholders for their consistent support
and co-operation for its success.

Your Directors appreciate contributions made by the Roltaites (employees)
at all the levels worldwide and acknowledge their hard work and dedication
in ensuring that the Company consistently performs well in current turbulent
times.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

L

Kamal K Singh
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00260977

Mumbai
December 08, 2021
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FORM AOC.1

Annexure A

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

1 |Rolma 31-Mar-21 | 10-Sep-93 usD 1USD=INR | 563.96 |(1,872.08)| 2,440.84 | 4,015.32 | 266.36 | 275.77 16.33 21.11 3745 - | 100%
International Inc. 73.50470
2 | Rolta 31-Mar-21 01-Jul-08 CAD ICAD=INR | 211.71 (84.97) 140.02 13.28 - 547 6.41) - ©641) © | 100%
Canada Limited 58.05236
3 |Rola 31-Mar-21 | 24-Jul-14 usD 1USD =INR - 89.77| 3,807.44 | 3,717.67 T 236.28 120.50 - 120.50 T | 100%
America LLC 73.50470
4 |Rolta LLC. 31-Mar-21 | 15-Mar-13 UsD 1USD =INR - 34.74 851.62 816.88 - 79.31 11.51 - 11.51 © | 100%
73.50470
5 | Rolta Advizex 31-Mar-21 | 02-Nov-12 UsDh 1USD =INR 9.40 22.81 264.16 231.94 T | 87957 5.33 (1.41) 391 T | 100%
Technologies LLC 73.50470
6 |Rola Hungary Kft. | 31-Mar-21 | 16-Dec-14 HUF |1HUF=INR - - - - - - - - - - | 100%
0.23622
7 | Rolta Middle East 31-Mar-21 | 20-Augdl AED 1 AED =INR 0.94 (664.78) | 3,169.62 983.12 31.59 20.24 | (6547 - | 6547 © | 100%
FZ-LLC 19.92868
8 | Rolta Saudi Arabia | 31-Mar-21 | 17-Mar-95 SAR 1SAR=INR 2.77 (29.54) 38.50 59.97 - 2.15 (2.65) - (2.65) © | 100%
Limited 19.51682
9 |Rolta Muscat LLC | 31-Mar-21 | 24-Jan-16 OMR 10OMR =INR - - - - - - - - - © | 100%
196.789
10 | Rolta UK Limited 31-Mar-21 | 28-May-02 GBP 1 GBP = INR 98.04 (524.84) 277.27 706.77 2.70 19.38 (2.04) - (2.04) T | 100%
100.9509
11 | Rolta Global BV. 31-Mar-21 | 14-Jun-13 uUsD 1USD =INR 0.09 (288.35) 477.13 765.39 - - | 42.78) Tl (42.78) © | 100%
73.50470
12 | Rolta Thales 31-Mar-21 | 20-Aug07 INR INR 5.00 (5.09) - 0.11 0.01 - - - - | 51%
Limited
13 | Rolta Defence 31-Mar-21 03-Jul-14 INR INR 25.00 539.43 594.80 30.36 - 3.56 | (39.23) | 289.99 | 250.76 " | 100%
Technologies Pvt.
Ltd.
14 | Rolta BI& Big Data | 31-Mar-21 | 23-Oct-15 INR INR - - - - - 7.03 (5.11) (5.11) © | 100%
Aunalytics Pvt. Ltd.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to associated Companies and Joint Ventures:

Not Applicable

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

L

Mumbai K. K. Singh
December 08, 2021 Chairman & Managing Director

A
=N .),;
Ramnath Pradeep

Director

a T/CM
Dinesh Kapadia
Chief Financial Officer



Annexure B

FORM NO. AOC-2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with the related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length transactions under third proviso thereto.
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transactions with its related parties which is not at arm's length during financial year

ended March 31, 2021.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis:

(a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship

Name of the related party Duration of contract

Rolta International Inc. Subsidiary April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 Based on transfer pricing guidelines
Rolta Americas LLC Subsidiary April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 Based on transfer pricing guidelines
Rolta UK Ltd Subsidiary April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 Based on transfer pricing guidelines
Rolta Middle East FZ- LLC Subsidiary April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 Based on transfer pricing guidelines
Rolta Saudi Arabia Ltd Subsidiary April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 Based on transfer pricing guidelines
Rolta Canada Ontario Ltd Subsidiary April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 Based on transfer pricing guidelines
Rolta Advizex Technologies LLC Subsidiary April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 Based on transfer pricing guidelines
Rolta Defence Technology Systems| Common April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 Service/Purchased
Private Limited Director
Rolta BI and Big Data Analytics Common April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 Service/Purchased
Private Limited Director
Rolta Private Limited Common April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 ICD /Temporary Loan

Director

(b) Aggregate Value of the above contracts or arrangements or transactions is ¥. 26.06 Cr during the year ended March 31,2021.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

D7 lenprdiy

Dinesh Kapadia
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai,
December 08, 2021
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Annexure C

Disclosures as per Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given below:

(i) Theratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year:

Non-executive Directors Title R;g;;::;g‘;f

Mr. Kamal K Singh Chairman & Managing Director -
Lt. Gen. K T Parnaik (Retd.) Joint Managing Director 7.61
Mr. Sateesh Dasari Executive Director- 1.02
Mr. Dineshkumar Kapadia Chief Financial Officer-(Vice President) 12.33

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, chief executive officer, chief financial officer, company secretary in the financial
year:

Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and Company

Secretary
Mr. Kamal K Singh Chairman & Managing Director NIL
Lt. Gen. K T Parnaik (Retd.) Joint Managing Director NIL
Mr. Sateesh Dasari # Executive Director- NIL
Mr. Dineshkumar Kapadia Chief Financial Officer-(Vice President) NIL
Ms. Hetal Vichhi Management Associate I - Assistant Company Secretary NIL

# Mr. Sateesh Dasari as Executive Director wef 11th February,2021
*Remuneration considered is as per CTC.
(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 0.47

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 274 (For standalone entity, Rolta India Limited does not include employees
on Company's subsidiary payrolls.)

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and
its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Particulars March 31, 2021

Average Percentage increase in the salaries of employees (Other than the managerial personnel) who were in NIL
employment for the full financial year (12 months)

Average increase in the salary of the Managerial personnel for the full financial year. NIL

(vi) Affirmation thatthe remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
The Company affirms remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company



Annexure E

FORM NO. MR.3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
for the financial year ended 31st march, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
ROLTA INDIA LIMITED

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by ROLTA INDIA
LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conductedina
manner that provided me with a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the secretarial books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by ROLTA INDIA LIMITED (“the
Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the
provisions of:

(I) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

(iif) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment;

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act'):-

(@ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; Not applicable to the
company during review period

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; Not applicable to the company
during review period

© The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

d The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

Thave also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited
read with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

Ifurtherreport that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings along
with the agenda and detailed notes on agenda. A system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority decision is
carried through.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

The following are the qualifications / noting as per our audit findings:

1. The Company is yet to alter the code as mention in regulation 9(1) as per
revised provisions of Schedule B of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 2015.

2. There are Legal Matters pending at Stakeholder committee level. A few
(180) legal matter files pertaining to 80 cases have been destroyed due to fire
atRolta Tower C on February 13, 2020.

3. Unspent CSR account are not transferred to separate bank account in non-
compliance of General Circular No. 14 /2021 / E-file no.CSR-
05/01/2021-CSR-MCA.

4. The Company has not transferred equity shares in respect of which
dividend had not been paid or claimed by the members for seven
consecutive years or more to the [EPF Authority.

5. 5 days' delay identified in trading window closing intimation for quarter
ended January - March 2021.

*Statutory auditors report is a qualified report - we have relied on the same for
other qualifications

For C. B. JAIN & ASSOCIATES

-

Place: Mumbai Chirag Jain
Date : 08 December, 2021 (Company Secretary in Practice)
UDIN: A037337C001699921 ACS No. 37337;
C.P. No. 13973
‘Annexure A’
The Members,
ROLTA INDIALIMITED

Ourreport of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

2. ‘We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process
and practices we followed provide reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. ‘We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and books of accounts of the Company.

4, ‘Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Qur
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place; Mumbai Chirag Jain
Date : 08 December, 2021 (Company Secretary in Practice)
UDIN: A037337C001699921 ACS No. 37337

C.P. No. 13973
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Annexure F

Disclosure pursuant to Regulation 14 of SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 as amended.

FY 2009 - 10 FY 2010 FY 2001-12 FY 201213 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 201617
a) | Options granted | 59,89,500 3,05,000 options | 2,20,000 options | 61,00,000 24,50,000 2,50,000 10,50,000 23,50,000 7,75,000 options
options at at¥.155.55 at ¥.81.55 options at ¥.10/- | options at options at options at ¥.10/- | options at ¥.10/- | at T.10/- per
T.145.15 per share on per share on pershareon Ist | X.10/- per share |R.10/- per share |per share on 9th | per share on share on 30th
per share on December 8, November 1, January 2013 on 3rd April on 14th May December 2016 | 30th May 2017 May 2018
August 10, 2009 | 2010 2011 2014, 5,00,000 2015, 6,25,000 and 8,25,000 and 6,37,500
options at options at ¥.10/- options at ¥.10/- | options at
%.10/- per per share on per share on 10th | ¥.10/- per share
share on 27th 9th November, November, on 21st June,
September 2014 | 2015 and 2017. 2018.
and 12,50,000 1,00,000
options at ¥, 10/- | options at ¥. 10/-
per share per share
on 7th February | on 12th February
2015. 2016.
b) | Pricing formula | Options have Options have Options have Options have Options have Options have Options have Options have Options have
been granted been granted heen granted been granted at heen granted at | been granted at | been granted at heen granted at heen granted at
at the closing a1 the closing a1 the closing at 3.10/-. at .10/-. at .10/-. at 3.10/-. 2.10/-. 2.10/-.
market price market price market price
of the Equity of the Equity of the Equity
shares of the shares of the shares of the
Comp on Comp on Comp on
National Stock | National Stock National Stock
Exch on Exch on Exch on
the date of grant. | the date of grant. | the date of grant.
¢} | Optons vested 47,12,625 1,47,500 1,90,000 37,50,000 12,12,500 3,50,000 1,87,500 NIL NIL
options vested Options vested Options vested Options vested Options vested
since the grant since the grant since the grant on grant made on grant
of options. of options. of Options on 3rd April made on 9th
2014. 3,37,500 November 2015.
Options vested
on grant made
on 7th February,
2015
d) | Options 22,400 NIL NIL 36,37,259 7,12,500 options | Nil Nil NIL NIL
exercised have been
exercised on
grant made on
3rd April 2014.
2,12,500 have
been exercised
on grant made
on 7th February,
2015
¢) | Total numberof | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL Nil Nil NIL NIL
Ordinary shares
arising out of
the Options
f) | Optionslapsed /| 59,67,100 out 3,05,000 out 2,20,00 out 24,62,741 out 17,37,500 out 2,50,000 out of | $6,75,000 out of 15,25,000 out of | 7,25,000 out of
Surrendered of grants made of grant made of grant made of grant made of grant made grant made on grant made on grant made on grant made on
on 10/08/2009 | on08/12/2010 | on01/11/2011 |[on01/01/2013 |on 3rd April 2014, | 14th May 2015, | 9th December 30th May 2017 30th May 2018
have lapsed have lapsed have lapsed have lapsed 5,00,000 out of 4,75,000 out of 2016 have lapsed | and 7,25,000 out | and 6,37,500 out
upon | grant made on grant made on consequent upon | of grant made on | of grant made
upon the upon the upon the the cessation of | 27th September | 9th November, the cessation of 10th November, | on 21st June,
cessation of cessation of cessation of employment of 2014 and 9,00,000| 2015 and employment of 2017 have lapsed | 2018 have lapsed
employment by ploy of 1 of |[the out of grant made | 1,00,000 out grant | the gr q upon q upon
the the gr the gr on 7th February, | made on 12th the cessation of | the cessation of
2015 have lapsed | February, 2016 employment of employment of
consequent upon | have lapsed the grantees. the grantees.
the cessation of | consequent upon
employment of | the cessation of
the grantees. employment of
the grantees.
g) | Variations NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
of terms of
Options
h) | Moncy realized | 32,51,360.00 NIL NIL 3,63,72,590 92,50,000 NIL NIL NIL NIL
by exercise of
the Options
D | Total number NIL NIL NIL NIL 1,37,500 1,50,000 3,75,000 9,25,000 50,000
of Options in
force




Description ESOP Gram
FY 2009 - 10

D) Details of NIL NIL
Options granted
to senior
managerial
personnel during
the Financial
Year

ESOP Grant
FY 2010- 11

ESOP Grant ESOP Grant ESOP Grant ESOP Grant
FY 2011-12 FY 201213 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16

NIL NIL 42,00,000 975000

ESOP Grant ESOP Grant ESOF Grant
FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19
14,12,500

10,50,000 31,75,000

ii) Any other
employee who
receives in any
one year of grant
of option
amounting to 5%
or more of
options granted
during that year

k)

iif) Identified
employees,

who were
granted

options,

during any

one year,

equal to or
exceeding 1% of
the issued capital
(excluding
outstanding
warrants and
conversions) of
the Company at
the time of

the grant,

BSOP Grant  ESOP Grunt  ESOP Grant ESOP Grant ESOP Grant ESOP Grant ESOP Grant  ESOP Grant  ESOP Grint
FY 200910 FY 201011 = FY 201112 FY2012-13  FY 201415 FY 201516 TFY 201617 FY2017-18 FY 2018-19
1) | Diluted Earnings Per Share(EPS) calculated  |%.(189.66)
in accordance with Accounting Standard 20
issued by ICAI for the year ended March
31,2021,
m) | ) Method of calculation of employee Fair Value Method

compensation cost

ii) Difference between the employee
p ion cost so iputed

at (i) above and the employee

compensation cost that shall have

been recognized if fair value of

ptions had been used

The Company is following IND-AS 102 and has followed the fair value method for ESOP Accounting

1if) The impact of the difference on profits
and EPS of the Company for the

FY ended March 31,2021 had fair

value of options had been used for
accounting Employee Options.

The diluted EPS of the Comp Iculated at id

T.(189.66) per share,

ion the effect of potential equity shares arising on account of exercise of Options is
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Annexure G

Information required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 pertaining to Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

In view of the nature of activities that are being carried on by the Company, Rolta being an IT Company requires minimal energy consumption
and does not use motive power. However, every effort is made to ensure that energy efficient equipment is used to avoid wastage and conserve
energy, as far as possible.

B. RESEARCHANDDEVELOPMENT (R & D)

As an innovative IP led solutions Company, it is imperative for Rolta to continue its significant investments in developing differentiating
intellectual property (IP) targeted to the growing demand for Digital Transformation Solutions.

The in-house R&D at Rolta has played a critical role in designing and developing a large set of existing Intellectual Properties which are being
enhanced. Inspite of the current challenging environment, the Company has continued its investment in R&D.

Expenditure on R&D:;
®. in Crore)
Financial Year Ended Financial Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Capital Expenditure - -
Revenue Expenditure - -
India 11.67 18.69
Overseas - -
Total 11.67 18.69
Total R&D expenditure as percentage of total turnover 1.24% 1.3%

C. FOREIGNEXCHANGEEARNING & OUTGOING

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual
outflows:

(. in Crore)

Financial Year Ended Financial Year Ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

a. Foreign exchange earningsb. 2741 75.85
b. Dividend remittance in foreign currencyc. - -

c. CIF Value of importsd. - 1.74

d. Expenditure in foreign currency - 0.96




Risk Management

The Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and is
committed to managing the risks in a proactive and efficient manner by
periodically assessing risks and incorporating risk mitigation in its strategy,
business and operational plans. Risk management is therefore an integral
part of business at Rolta and is an enterprise wide function that aims at
assessing threats to business sustainability and mitigating those threats.

The management cautions the readers that the risks outlined below are not
exhaustive and are for information purpose only. This report also contains
statements which are forward looking in nature and readers are requested to
exercise their own judgment in assessing various risks associated with the
Company and referring to the discussions of risks in the Company's earlier
Annual Reports.

BUSINESS RISK

Rapid changes in b and cust preferences demands innovative solutions
and services to retain and improve market share.

The global economic environment is constantly changing and thus
businesses face the inherent risk of contraction in business due to disruptive
technologies, evolving industry standards, varying client preferences as well
as new product and service introductions. Also, any change in central and
state governments, adverse changes in public or defense policies and/or
funding allocations can adversely affect the business. The Company's
business may also be affected if it cannot continue or license or enforce its
Intellectual Property Rights which is an increasing part of its business.

COMPETTTION RISK

Inability of companies to guard against competition could result in shrinkage of
revenues.

The stiff competition can lead to pressure on pricing, vendor consolidation
and hence can impact Company growth and profitability. Industry
consolidation also may affect competition by creating larger, more
homogeneous and potentially stronger competitors in the market in which
the Company operates. The Company's ability to compete also depends in
part on factors outside its control such as the price at which the Company's
competitors offer comparable products and services and the extent of our
competitors' response.

SKILLSRISK

Lack of ability of a knowledge intensive company to source and retain people with
right skillsmay lead to business attrition.

Failure to attract, retain and motivate key employees can adversely impact
deliveries and customer satisfaction which can in turn impact growth.
Additionally, there could be supply side risks on the availability of a talented
pool of people especially in certain niche areas of domain and technology
experts. As an innovative developer of IP led solutions the ability to attract
and retain the right talent is therefore seen as a critical risk.

CUSTOMER RISK

In today's fiercely competitive business environment, ability to retain and
increase the customer base is very critical.

Customer risk emanates from large exposure to a few clients which entails
increased credit risk besides the adverse effect on the profitability in case of
any variation in revenue from these clients. Rolta has constantly strived to

mitigate this risk by adding new clients besides entering into new vertical
business domains.

GEOGRAPHY RISK

Mitigation of over dependence on any one geographic market enables
evasion of risk of downward spiral in that economy because of political and
economic factors. With changing political scenarios in the developed
markets such as US and Europe as well as uncertainties in economic outlook
is posing significant geographic risks to the IT industry and can hamper
Company'’s growth.

With almost 50% of the Company’s operations coming from India which is
generally considered to be a vibrant and growing emerging market, Rolta is
able to balance and mitigate against geographic risk to a great degree. The
Company’s domestic-international spread and combination of its various
solutions and services insulates the overall performance from the impact of
downturns in any specific market.

IMPACT OF COVID-19
1. Impactonbusiness:

The Company is complying with various directives issued by the Central/
State/ Municipal authorities on the outbreak of CoVid-19 Pandemic.
Considering the fact that the situation is exceptional and dynamic, the
Company is not in a position to guage with certainty the impact on our
business at this point of time.

The Company has taken a series of pro-active measures and preventive
measures to ensure health and safety of all its employees and provided a safe
workplace for them, with appropriate social distancing norms and high
standards of hygiene. The Company has also taken various steps such as
thermal screening of all its employees and visitors at the entry gate sanitizing
the premises on a regular basis, enforcing wearing of masks, asking all
employees to have “Arogya Setu” app installed on their mobile phones and
continuously follow guidelines, as prescribed by the Central/ State/
Municipal authorities. “Work from home” option is also provided for a
certain category of employees.

2. Ability to maintain operations including the factories/ units/ office
spaces/ functioning and closed down:

Technical staff has been provided with all facility and necessary
infrastructure to enable them to work from home effectively and therefore,
there was no disruption in delivery of ongoing projects.

3. Schedule, if any for restarting the operations:

The Company has taken all the measures to restart all the other functions as
per the Government guidelines. Accordingly, non-technical functions and
maintenance support continues without any hindrance to the extent
permitted by State Governments.

4. Estimation of future impact of CoVid-19 on its operations:

The capital and financial resources, profitability and liquidity are likely to be
impacted due to CoVid-19 lockdown and the impact of the same cannot be
assessed unless full normalcy return in business environment.

5. CoVid-19 will have adverse effect on financial resources, profitability,
liquidity position, new sales and collection of receivables. It is difficult to
quantify the exact impact as of now.

Corporate Social Responsibility

“A (Gift is pure when it is given from the heart, to the right person, at the right
time, at the right place and when we expect nothing in return”. — Bhagavat
Gita

The Rolta Group of Companies, with its Flagship Company, Rolta India
Limited, is focused towards improvements in the lives of the economically
and socially challenged people, across the country.

Rolta Foundation is the non-profit CSR arm of the Rolta Group, with funds
contributed by the Rolta Group of Companies, towards healthcare,
education and social upliftment, contributing towards the nation's inclusive
growth,

Rolta is committed towards uplifting the social fabric of the society in which
it operates. Rolta reaches out to the underprivileged sections of the society

Annexure H

and enriches lives to create a healthier and happier world and makes a
positive social impact.

Rolta Foundation contributes to relevant social issues through their
ecosystem, to generate sustainable solutions to these challenges.

The social projects, that Rolta Foundation continually sponsors, monitors
and expands, aims to open up new career opportunities and affordable
healthcare for generations. Major projects being nurtured and supported by
Rolta are described herein.

EDUCATION

The Indian Institutes of Information Technology Public — Private
Partnership (IOIT PPP) Bill, 2017, declaring these as “Institutions of
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National Importance”, was passed by the Parliament on July 27, 2017,
authorizing them to award B.Tech, M.Tech and Doctorate degrees. Rolta
has been selected for sponsoring IITs as one of the Partners by the State
Governments of Kerala and West Bengal. The IIITs, have been established
by the Ministry of Human Resource Development (MHRD), Government
of India, on a Not-for- Profit basis, in partnership with the respective State
Governments and the Private Industry Partners.

Maulana Azad National Institute of Technology (MANIT) has provided
the land for the Rolta Centre for Innovation & Incubation, which is a unique
set-up, the first among NITs, within their Bhopal campus, offering a platform
for 24x7 innovative research and incubation centre for over 4000 BTech /
MTech students and Faculty for the development of innovative products and
providing start-ups and technical support to prospective entrepreneurs.

Digital Library and e-Learning Centre has been sponsored by Rolta, within
the Shree Siddhivinayak Ganapati Temple Trust complex in Mumbai,
exclusively for the education of socially and economically challenged
students. Over 100 computers are available 24x7, also with Braille systems
for the visually challenged, benefitting over 6000 students on a regular basis.
Rolta is continuously upgrading and expanding these facilities to meet the
growing demand, in the three-storied BMC building, opposite the Temple,
with a fully-equipped Digital Library, Hall for training students for IAS /
MPSC / UPSC exams, Reading Room with newspapers, magazines, etc.
Rolta has contributed over Rs. 3/- Cr. towards these facilities on cumulative
basis.

HEALTHCARE
Sri Venkateswara Institute of Medical Sciences (SVIMS) at Tirupati caters

to several thousand cancer patients in diagnosis, therapeutic and surgical
management, through Medical, Surgical and Radiation Oncology

departments. Rolta Oncology Block at SVIMS facilitaties OPD, Diagnosis,
Laser treatment, clinical and general wards, separately for women. The
medical wing is for research and rehabilitation of the disabled. Rolta has
regularly contributed for the infrastructure and equipment costs.

“The Oncology Block provided by Rolta is one of its kind, housed with state-of-the art

medical equipment and facility, which is enabling SVIMS for providing the best of
medical care, free of cost to the needy and poor Cancer patients”. “On behalf of
SVIMS, 1 express gratitude for Rolta's generous donation for the Analog
Mammography system for detection of breast cancer, the number one cause of cancers
inwomen in India”, Dr, T.S. Ravi Kumar, Directorcum-VC, SVIMS.

Dialysis Centre of the Shree Siddhivinayak Ganapati Temple Trust in
Mumbai, has 21 beds with equipment for Dialysis, working 3 shifts per day.
Rolta has contributed 50% of the Corpus Fund for the Dialysis Centre for
treatment to the poor and needy patients towards the Dialysis expenses, on
an on-going basis. Over the years, over 60,000 economically and socially
underprivileged patients have benefitted.

SOCIAL UPLIFTMENT

Rolta has been, on a continuing basis, contributing towards the various
social challenges affecting life across the underprivileged sections, covering
orphanages and other such institutions across the country. Some of the
beneficiary institutions have been Shree Adya Katyani Shaktipeeth Trust,
Chattarpur (New Delhi), ISKON (Kharghar), Blind Organization of India,
National Society for Prevention of Blindness, Arpita Cancer Society,
Usmaniya Educational and Medical Trust, Helpage India, Taj Public
Service Welfare Trust, St. Catherine's Home & Snehasadan (Mumbai),
Child Vision & Education, Wheel-Chair Federation of India, The Spastics
Society of India, The Central Society for the Deaf & Dumb, UNICEF,
Bhagwan Mahaveer Viklang Samiti (Jaipur), V.Care Foundation, etc.

The Annual Report on CSR Activities Forming Part of Board's Report

1 | A brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy including over view of projects
or programmes proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to a web link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes.

a) Education
b) Health
c) Social Upliftment
Link: http://www.rolta.com/wp-content/uploads//Rolta-CSR.pdf

2 | Composition of the CSR Committee

a) Mr. Kamal K Singh - Chairman
b) Ms.Homai Daruwalla - Member
c) Lt. Gen. K. T. Parnaik (Retd.) - Member

3 | Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years }.)

. (-) 1332.76 Crore

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 3 above) (X.)

3. (-) 26.66 Crore

5 | Details of CSR spent during the financial year
Total amount spent for the financial year

%.0.00

6. Mannerinwhich the amount spent during the financial year: Since the prescribed CSR expenditure amount calculated on. the basis on average net profit of last three
financial years is ¥.26.66 crore (negative), no CSR contribution was made during the financial year under review.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the

Company.

CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with the CSR Objectives and Policy of the Company.

o ol
Kamal X Singh

Chairman & Managing Director
Chairman CSR Committee



Independent Auditor's Report

Tothe

Board of Directors of Rolta India Limited

Qualified Opinion

‘We have audited the accompanying Statement of Consolidated Financial Results of
Rolta India Limited (“the Holding Company”), and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”) for the quarter and
yearended March 31, 2021 (“the Statement”), attached herewith, being submitted by the
Holding Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ('the Listing
Regulations’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on
separate audited financial statements of the subsidiaries, the Statement:

a.  includestheresults of the following subsidiaries

Rolta International Inc. Subsidiary of Rolta India Limited

Rolta Canada Limited Subsidiary of Rolta International Inc.
Rolta LLC Subsidiary of Rolta International Inc.
Rolta America LLC Subsidiary of Rolta International Inc.
Rolta Hungary KFT Subsidiary of Rolta International Inc.
Rolta AdvizeX Technologies LLC * Subsidiary of Rolta International Inc.
Rolta Global BV Subsidiary of Rolta India Limited

Rolta UK Limited Subsidiary of Rolta Global BV

Rolta Middle East FZ-LLC Subsidiary of Rolta Global BV

Rolta Saudi Arabia Limited Subsidiary of Rolta Middle East FZ-LLC
Rolta Muscat LLC Subsidiary of Rolta Middle East FZ - LLC
Rolta Defense Technology Systems Pvt. Ltd.| Subsidiary of Rolta India Limited

Rolta Thales Limited Subsidiary of Rolta India Limited

Rolta Bl and Big Data Analytics Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary of Rolta India Limited

* Please refer note no. 3c.

b.  Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing
Regulations; and

c.  except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified
opinion paragraph below, gives a true and fair view in conformity with the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the net loss, total comprehensive income and other
financial information of the Group for the quarter and for the year ended March
31,2021.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) We draw attention to Note 12 of the Statement. The Company bas adjusted in its
book the amount receivable from its US subsidiary, Rolta International Inc.(RUS)
arising from devolvement of Standby Letters of Credit (SBLC) and interest
thereon against long term export advances received. Further, the company has also
adjusted amount payable to step down subsidiary of RUS against the SBLC dues
receivable from RUS. The Company has made necessary applications stating the
above facts to Reserve Bank of India for their permission for adjusting the amount
receivable from RUS against the amount payable to them, which is still awaited.

b) Wedraw attention to Note 3 (c). The Bondholder holding order of the Honourable
Supreme Court of New York County to recover an amount of US $ 183 Million,
took control of the step down subsidiary of the company in US namely Rolta
Advizex LLP somewhere in March, 2021 and put Rolta AdvizeX LLP on auction,
In the said auction, the same Bondholders purchased Rolta AdvizeX LLP for US §
55Million.

Inspite of legal notices to the management of Advizex and to the AdvizeX
Company and the protracted discussion by our US legal advisors with the Legal
Advisors of AdvizeX and Bond holders, the Bond holders who have taken control
as mentioned above, have refused in writing to give information for full year or part
details of financial records upto 31st March 2021 or for quarterly records for
January toMarch 2021 of AdvizeXLLP.

Therefore, inspite of best efforts by the Company, it could only consolidate the nine
months financials upto December 2020 in the current financial year for Rolta
AdvizeX LLP which have been Limited reviewed by the Auditors during FY 20-
21.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the “Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the consolidated
financial results.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

‘We draw attention to Note 4 of the Statement which indicates that the Holding
Company has incurred a net loss of Rs. 424.23 Crores and Rs.3268.87 Crores for the
quarter and year ended March 31, 2021, respectively. While the continuing liquidity
crunch, proceedings initiated against the Holding Company in NCLT and the
significant fall in revenues coupled with the continuing COVID 19 lockdown indicate
that presently a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, the management of the Holding
Company has represented that with the Restructuring Services Agreement (RSA)
entered into with the Streamcast Group, continuing to be effective, and the Streamcast
Group continuing to work on the implementation of the RSA, the Holding Company
continues to be a going concern.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Emphasis of Matter

a. We draw attention to Note 14. Company's current bank accounts (except for
Current account with Axis Bank where inward foreign remittances were not
permitted) were attached by the Income Tax Department (TDS division) during
September 2019. In absence of operating Current accounts, the export remittances
from Company's overseas subsidiaries were received by the Group Companies
Rolta Private Limited (RPL) and Rolta Overseas Private Limited (ROPL) by way
of assignments of Invoices raised on Companies overseas subsidiaries and the
funds so received were utilised / transferred to RIL's account with Axis Bank for
meeting the operational expenses.

The Company has adjusted the funds so received by RPL and ROPL from RILs
overseas subsidiaries against the export Invoices raised on these subsidiaries.

The above adjustment by the Company is supported by an opinion from a legal
firm.

b. 'We draw attention to Note 3 of the statement. The Step down International
subsidiary of the Company had issued in 2013 Bonds of US $ 200 mn and in 2014
US $ 300 Mn. Both the bonds have matured in Financial Year 2018 and 2019. Out
of the above bondholders, certain bondholders obtained an order of Supreme
Court of The State of New York, County of New York, was passed on September
02, 2020 in favour of certain Bondholders for an amount of US $ 183 million
(approx) plus interest at 9% till date of payment against U.S. stepdown subsidiary
of company which had issued the bonds and all guarantors which include the
company. Further a turnover order dated October 20, 2020 on a motion submitted
by the plaintiffs, was passed by the said Hon'ble Court in New York in favour of the
Plaintiffs, directing the defendants to turn over their cash on hand and their stock /
membership interest owned in certain subsidiaries of the company The
international defendants except Rolta India Ltd. filed voluntary Chapter — 11
proceedings in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of
Alabama in the U.S. on October 29, 2020. By virtue of this filing, enforcement of
the judgment against the international defendants had been stayed. The Federal
Bankruptcy Court rejected Chapter 11 proceedings in April 202].

Thereafter Rolta International Inc. has filed appeal on May 17, 2021 against the
rejection of Federal Court in District Court of Alabama which is the Appellate
Court. This appealis still pending.

Since now all the interpational companies are outside of Bankruptcy, they
continue to function normally. Rolta India Ltd. has filed a suit no. 3396/2020
dated November 10, 2020 in Hon'ble Bombay High Court with the main prayer to
grant interim injunction and declare that the summary judgement dated
September 2, 2020 and turnover order dated October 20, 2020 caonot be executed
by the Plaintiffs against the company. The hearing for said suit are still ongoing.

Supreme Court of New York appointed a receiver vide its order dated 17th June,
2021 against RUS and Rolta India Ltd. The said Court of New York further
appointed a receiver against other subsidiaries of Rolta India Ltd vide its order
dated August, 24, 2021. Such receiver had also issued a letter dated September 3,
2021 for holding a meeting to remove the Board of RUS on 13th September, 2021.
However, the Receiver has been informed by the Legal Advisor of Rolta India
Ltd in US that the said meeting is not valid as summary judgement dated
Sept.,2020 and Turnover Order of October,2020 against Rolta India Ltd and its
subsidiary Rolta Global BV has not been domesticated in India and Netherland.
The matter remains disputed and is now with the Honourable Supreme Court of
New York County for taking the decision in the matter.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid, the financial results of the said subsidiaries have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

c.  Wedraw attention to Note 5 of the Statement as per which, during the year ended
March 31, 2021, the Holding Company has incurred a business loss of X. 3268.87
Crores on which it has recognized an incremental Deferred Tax Asset of . 107.17
Crores. The net Deferred Tax Asset attributable to unabsorbed business loss as at
March 31, 2021 recognized by the Holding Company amounts to X.810.37 Crores.
The Management of the Holding Company is of the view that for the reasons
mentioned in the said Note 8, the Holding Company will be able to generate
taxable profits in the future for setting off the accumulated business losses.

d. We draw attention to Note 7 of the Statement in which the Management of the
Holding Company has represented that in respect of long outstanding amounts
aggregating .274.83 crores receivable from a Government department, the
process towards recovering the said amount is at an advanced stage.
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e. We draw attention to Note 13 of the Statement, as regards the Management's
evaluation to the extent to which COVID-19 pandemic will impact the
performance of the Company dependent on the future developments, which are
highly uncertain.

f.  We draw attention to Note 15 of the Statement which indicates that in respect of
the international subsidiaries wherein the 'Senior Notes 2013' (Bond 1) amounting
to USD 126.65 million which was due for repayment on May 16, 2018 & 'Senior
Notes 2014' (Bond 2) amounting to USD 372.36 million which was due for
repayment on July 24, 2019, both of which continue to be outstanding, the
international subsidiaries have not made any further provision for interest for the
period from May 17, 2018 to March 31, 2020 on Bond 1 and from July 25, 2019 to
Mazch 31, 2020 on Bond 2, on the grounds that the respective Bond indentures are
not specific on payment of interest on the outstanding loan amount beyond the
date of their maturity.

Ouropinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

M- 2R 134,

g s Responsibilities for the C:
The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the consolidated financial statements.

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair view of the net loss and other
comprehensive income and other financial information of the Group in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with
Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding of the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Statement, that gives a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Statement, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement, as a
whole, is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually, or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users, taken on the basis
of the Statement.

ST 1R, 14

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion through a separate
report on the complete set of financial statements on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

¢« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement,
including the disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of

the entities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors to express
an opinion on the Statement. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and

performance of the audit of financial information of such entities included in the
Statement of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the Statement, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and
such other entities included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

‘We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

‘We also performed procedures in accordance with the Circular issued by the SEBI under
Regulation 33(8) of the Listing Regulations, to the extent applicable.

Other Matters

1. The Statement includes the audited financial statements of 3 Domestic
subsidiaries 2 step down subsidiary and 1 subsidiary of step down subsidiary
international subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of
T.211.87 Crores as at March 31, 2021 and total revenue of ¥.19.35 Crores and
%.55.23 crores, total net loss after tax of ¥.4,596.29 crore and of ¥.2,174.08 crores
and total comprehensive income of ¥.(4,596.29) crore and of ¥.(2,174.08) crores,
for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 and for the year ended March 31, 2021,
respectively, as considered in the Statement, which have been audited by their
respective independent auditors. The independent auditors report on the financial
statements of these subsidiaries have been furnished to us and our opinion on the
Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of these subsidiaries is based solely on the report of such auditors and the
procedures performed by us as are stated in the paragraph above.

ii. The Statement includes the unaudited/ management reviewed financial
statements of 2 international subsidiaries and 5 step down subsidiaries and 1
subsidiary of step down subsidiary, whose financial results reflect total assets of
T.3.93 crores as at March 31, 2021 and total revenue of ¥.266.76 crores and
%.1,161.82 crores, total net loss after tax of ¥.174.88 crores and ¥.340.22 crores and
total comprehensive income of ¥.(174.88) crores and ¥.(340.22) crores, for the
quarter ended March 31, 2021 and for the year ended March 31, 2021, respectively,
as considered in the Statement. In respect of one of the step down subsidiary of the
company in US namely Rolta Advizex LLP, the Bondholder took control
somewhere in March, 2021 and accordingly the account of the same has been
included on reviewed basis till 30th December, 2020. Accordingly, the percentage
mentioned vide regulation no 33 (3) (b) of SEBI LODR could not be complied
with. These Unaudited Financial Results have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Results, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries is
based solely on such unaudited financial statements.

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and
the financial statements certified by the Board of Directors.

iii. Duetothe COVID- 19 pandemic and the resultant lockdown and other restrictions
imposed by the Government and local authorities, the audit processes were carried
out based on the remote access to the records and documents which were made
available by the management through digital medium.

Ouropinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

iv. In the Statement, the figures of the financial results as reported for the quarter
ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are the balancing figures between
audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the published year to date
figures upto the end of the third quarter of the relevant financial yeat, which figures
were subjected toa limited review.

v.  The standalone financial results for the corresponding quarter and year ended
March 31, 2020 were audited by the previous auditors who expressed a qualified
opinion on those results on July, 15, 2020.

For J. Kala & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 118769W

P

Jayesh Kala

Partner

Membership No. - 101686
UDIN: 21101686AAAACE3947

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 02, 2021



Independent Auditor's Report

To The Members of

Rolta India limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

‘We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Rolta India
Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter to be referred as “the
Group”), which comprises of Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated firancial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, except for the possible effects of matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March 2021, its
loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

(@ We draw attention to Note 48 of the Consolidated financial statements. The
Holding Company has adjusted in its book the amount receivable from its US
subsidiary, Rolta International Inc. (RUS) arising from devolvement of Standby
Letters of Credit (SBLC) and interest thereon against long term export advances
received. Further, the Holding Company has also adjusted amount payable to
step down subsidiary of RUS against the SBLC dues receivable from RUS. The
Holding Company has made necessary applications stating the above facts to
Reserve Bank of India for their permission for adjusting the amount receivable
from RUS against the amount payable to them, which is still awaited.

We draw attention to Note 20(c). The Bondholder holding order of the
Honourable Supreme Court of New York County to recover an amount of US $
183 Million, took control of the step down subsidiary of the Holding Company
in US namely Rolta Advizex LLP somewhere in March, 2021 and put Rolta
Advizex LLP on auction. In the said auction, the same Bondholders purchased
Rolta Advizex LLP for US $ 55 Million.

Inspite of legal notices to the management of Advizex and to the Advizex
Company and the protracted discussion by our US legal advisors with the Legal
Advisors of Advizex and Bond holders, the Bond holders who have taken control
as mentioned above, have refused in writing to give information for full year or
part details of financial records upto 31st March 2021 or for quarterly records for
January to March 2021 of Advizex LLP.

Therefore, inspite of best efforts by the Holding Company, it could only
consolidate the nine months financials upto December 2020 in the current
financial year for Rolta Advizex LLP.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial
staterments under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics.

®)

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

‘We draw attention to Note 41 of the Consolidated financial statements. The group has
incurred a net loss of ¥.3,264.26 crores for the year ended March 31, 2021.Continuing
liquidity crunch, applications pending against the Holding Company in NCLT/DRT
and the significant fall in revenues coupled with the continuing COVID 19 lockdown
indicate that presently a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The Management of the Group has
represented that with the Restructuring Services Agreement (RSA) entered into with the
Streamcast Group, continuing to be effective, and the Streamcast Group continuing to
work on the implementation of the RSA, the Group continues to be a going concern.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Emphasis of Matters:

(I  We draw attention to Note 50 to the Consolidated financial statement regarding
Holding Company's current bank accounts (except for Current account with
Axis Bank where inward foreign remittances were not permitted) were attached
by the Income Tax Department (TDS division) during September 2019. In
absence of operating Current accounts, the export remittances from Holding
Company's overseas subsidiaries were received by the Group Companies Rolta
Private Limited (RPL) and Rolta Overseas Private Limited (ROPL) by way of

assignments of Invoices raised on Holding Company's overseas subsidiaries and
the funds so received were utilised / transferred to RIL's account with Axis Bank
for meeting the operational expenses.

The Holding Company has adjusted the funds so received by RPL and ROPL
from RILs overseas subsidiaries against the export Invoices raised on these
subsidiaries.

The above adjustment by the Holding Company is supported by an opinion from
alegal firm.

‘We draw attention to Note 20(a) and (b) of the Consolidated financial statement
regarding an order of Supreme Court of The State of New York, County of New
York, has been passed on September 02, 2020 in favour of certain Bondholders
for an amount of US $ 183 million (a+pprox) inclusive of interest at 9% upto
September 02, 2020 against the Holding Company and six International
Subsidiaries of the Holding Company. Further a turnover order dated October
20, 2020 on a motion submitted by the plaintiffs, was passed by the said Hon'ble
Court in New York in favour of the Plaintiffs, directing the defendants to turn
over their cash on hand and their stock / membership interest owned in certain
subsidiaries of the Holding Company. The international defendants except Rolta
India Ltd. filed voluntary Chapter - 11 proceedings in the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of Alabama in the U.S. on October
29, 2020. By virtue of this filing, enforcement of the judgment against the
international defendants was stayed. The Federal Bankruptcy Court has finally
rejected Chapter 11 proceedings in April 2021.

Thereafter, Rolta International Inc., has filed an appeal on May 17, 2021 against
the rejection of Chapter 11 proceedings in Federal Court in District Court of
Alabama which is the Appellate Court.

Rolta India Ltd. has filed a suit no. 3396 / 2020 dated November 10, 2020 in
Hon'ble Bombay High Court with the main prayer to grant interim injunction
and declare that the summary judgement dated September 2, 2020 and turnover
order dated October 20, 2020 cannot be executed by the Plaintiffs against the
defendants. The hearing for said suit are ongoing.

(i)

Supreme Court of New York appointed a receiver vide its order dated 17th June
2021 against RUS and Rolta India Ltd. The said Court of New York further
appointed a receiver against other subsidiaries of Rolta India Ltd vide its order
dated August 24, 2021. Such receiver had also issued a letter dated September 3,
2021, for holding a meeting to remove the Board of RUS on 13th September,
2021. However, the Receiver has been informed by the Legal Advisor of Rolta
India Ltd. in US that the said meeting is not valid as summary judgement dated
Sept.,2020 and Turnover Order of October,2020 against Rolta India Ltd and its
subsidiary Rolta Global BV has not been domesticated in India and Netherland.
The matter remains disputed and is now with the Honourable Supreme Court of
New York County for taking the decision in the matter.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid, the financial statements of the said subsidiaries
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(iti) We draw attention to Note 31 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, during
the year ended March 31, 2021, the Group has incurred a loss before tax of
¥.3,668.77 crores, on which it has recognized an incremental Deferred Tax Asset
of T.405.96 crores. The carrying amount of net Deferred Tax Asset as at March
31, 2021, is ¥.1,900.59 crores. The Management of the holding Company is of
the view that for the reasons mentioned in the said Note 41, the group will be able

to generate taxable profits in the future for its reversal.

‘We draw attention to Note 44 of the Consolidated Financial Statement, the
Management of the Holding Company has represented that in respect of long
outstanding amounts aggregating .274.83 crores receivable from the
Government department, the process towards recovering the said amount
continues to be at advanced stage.

(iv)

‘We draw attention to Note 51 of the Consolidated Financial Statement which
indicates that in respect of the international subsidiaries wherein the 'Senior
Notes 2013' (Bond 1) amounting to USD 126.65 million which was due for
repayment on May 16, 2018 & 'Senior Notes 2014’ (Bond 2) amounting to USD
372.36 million which was due for repayment on July 24, 2019, both of which
continue to be outstanding, the international subsidiaries have not made any
further provision for interest for the period from May 17, 2018 to March 31, 2021
on Bond 1 and from July 25, 2019 to March 31, 2021 on Bond 2, on the grounds
that the respective Bond indentures are not specific on payment of interest on the
outstanding loan amount beyond the date of their maturity.

(vi) We draw attention to Note 49 of the Consolidated Financial Statement, as
regards the Management's evaluation to the extent to which COVID-19
pandemic will impact the performance of the Group dependent on the future
developments, which are highly uncertain,

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Accuracy of booking of revenoes in respect of
fixed price ongoing contracts Involving
extical

Estimate of effort is a critical estimate
determine revenues o case ol‘ ongoing
contracts. This estimate has a inherent

Refer oole no. 2 (b) to the Consolidated
financial statements

Anditor's Respoose

Principal Aodit Procedures

Our audit approach was a combination of test

of internal contrals and substantive procedures

‘which included the following:

»  Evaluating the design of internal controls
i di i and

estimation of efforts required to complete
the performance obligations;
. ’Ihungﬂunwenmdnpphmnonmnnnla

* Selecting a sample of contracts and
thorough inspection of cvidence of
pezfarmaneeofﬂmewmoh.munsthe
operating effectiveness of the imternal
controls relating to efforts incurred and
estimated;

¢ Sclecting a sample of conuacts and

a retrospective review of efforts
incurred with estimated efforts, s0 as to
identify i it variations and verify

whether lhose variations bave heen
the

eﬂ'ummuomplm:lh:umul;

* Reviewing a sample of contracts with
unbilled rcvenues to identify possible
delays in achieving milestones, which
xeqmmchang!msnmamdeﬂ'mu,m

P
obhganom nd
* Performing analytical proccdurcs and

testing  details for reasonableness of
incurred and estimated efforts.

Non repayment of principal and interest due
thereon in respect of borrowings.

Nmupaymmlofboﬂvwmgumol’ﬂm
events/ conditions that may cast

Principal Audit Procedures

‘We obtained details of principal and interest
due thereon as at March 31, 2021, from the
the accuracy of

doubt on a Company's ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Holding Company has defaulted in
repayment of principal end interest due
thereon, aggregating ¥. 4,962.65 crores, m
respect of Secured Borrowings and Working
Capital Term Loans taken from various banks.
Further, the aforesaid amount also includes
hnhﬂtyonmun(ofdﬂnlmmml'umof
Credit and imvocation of Standby Leuers of
Creditand Bank Guarantees,

Refer note number 18 to the consolidnted
financial statements

and
the amounts gutstanding payable.

Non repayment of principal and interest due
on scnior notes issued by two Internationsl
subzidisries

Two Innemauonal subsidiarics of Lhe Group

mnllmnmrexpectol'SemuereZOlJ'(BondI)
and 'Senior Note 2014' (Bood 2) lssued by
them.

Refer note number 20 to the consolidared
financial statements

Principal Audit Procedures

We obmimed details of principal and interest
due thereon as at March 31, 2021, from the
Management end confirmed the accuracy of
theamounts gutstanding payable.

Non-payment of statutory does

During the year, the Holding Company has
defaulted in depositing stanrtory ducs with
various authorities, A:utM.nrch 31, 2021, the
Holding Company has not depomud
following starutory ducs with the respective
authorities:

(a) Tax Deducted at Source - Y. 27.65
crores.

{b) Provideni Fund (including Pentinn) —
.3.91 crores

(c) Profession Tax-¥.0.28 crores
(d) ESIC- ¥.0.07crores

(¢) Salea tax and Service tax - ¥. 336
crores

Principal Audit Procedures

Obtatned details including ageing of varicus
statutory ducs payable by the Holding
Company to varipus authorities as at March
31,2021, from the Management.

authoritics from Ihc rdcvm: dncumcnu,
by the
HoldmgCompaAylhrmcho{lhemdduu

Adfustment of certain payable and receivable
balances of two subsidiaries and pending
approval from the Reserve Bank of India in this
regard.

Refer to the para “Basis for Qualified Opinion®
section of the repart.

of
of Going Concern Assessment:

has made an of the
Group's ability to continue 2 a Going Concern
as required by Ind AS! Presentation of
Financial Statcments considering all the
available information and has concuded that
the going concern basis of accounting is
appropriate.
GmngCumanmmcnlhubemzdmnﬁd

Principal Andit Procedures

Obtained an understanding of the process and
tested the internal controls associated with the
management’s assessment of Going Concern
assumption.

Discussed with management and asscssed the
assumptions, judgements and estimates used m
developing business plan and cash flow
Pprojections having regards to past performance
mdnmentemagmgbusmenmdsuﬁ'emng

asakey audit marter
judgements and estimates imvolved in the
end its d d upon
management’s ability o complete the planned
implementation of Restructuring Service
Agreement (RSA) entered with the Streamcast
Group including the possible option to
refinancing of certain current financial
obligations

industry.

Status of the Restructuring service agreement
(RSA)enIzmdwnhdm Streamcast Group and

P for ion of RSA
Assessed the adequacy of the discinsures in the
consolidaicd financial statement

Also refer to the comments in the "Material
Uncerminty Related to Gaing Concern” to the
Report.

A of disclosed
in respect of Corporate and Bank Guarantees
given and Indirect tax matters

As at March 31, 2021, the Company has given

senior notes issued by subsidiaries and also has
significant tax exposures end is subject
periodic assessments/ demands by tax
authorities on income tax and a range of
indirect tax matters.

Refer to our comment in para (ii) of the
Bmphasis of martters section of the report,

case.

Management judgement is involved in

asscasing whether an obligation exists and

‘whether a provision should be recognised a8 at

Balance gheet date ar the disclosure thereof as

conringen liabilitics.

‘We conzidered this a key andit matter as:

(2) The amonmts involved are significant to the
consolidated financial starements.

{b) Change in the management’s _rudmmu
and emmmm may ugmﬂmnﬂy

or
Habilities disclosed.

Principal Andit Procedures

Obtained management's assessment in respect
of key tax matters and status of the various
corporate and bank guarantees issued as to
whether outflow is either probable, possible or
remote.

Obraining an understanding of the risk analysis
performed by the company, with the relatng
supporting documentation and studying
writien statements from internal / external
legal experts, where applicable.

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statcments.

Based on the above procedures, we considered
the in isis

provisions and disclosing contingent liabilities
in respect of the stated tax maiters, as
reasonable.

Disclosure of exceptional Htems of Rs.
2,857.05 Crores in Statement of Profit & Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2021 [Refer nole
30 to the Cansolidared financial statements for
the yearended March 31, 2021]

Certain items of income or expense within
profit ar loss from ordinary activity is of such
size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is
relevant w explain the performance of the
Oompmyfonh:yeu,vh:nanuemdamoum
of such items is discl ! items.
‘We congldered this a key andit matter as:

(2) The amounts involved are significant to the
cemsolidaved financial sarcments.

(b) Involves a signi 's

Principal Audit Procedures:

Assessing the appropriateness ol‘ the
applied in the
recoverable amount

Placing the reliance on the impairment report
determining

the recoverable vatue of the IP's

Obtained from the management, the details of

the reversals made by the company during the

year ended March 31, 2021, along with the

mta-cumpany balance mnﬁ:rmaupm nﬂrr
i effectof such

Verification that the accounting and /or
duc.lo:uxe as the case may be in the

judgements and assessment that may

affect the p
recognised.

©

b of recei a y
in respect of the business (TP) transferred,
which has been written off by the said
subsidiary based on the valuation exercise
carried out by external agency.

financial is in
with the of legal
counsel/ management.

lmvu-bﬂkynfuﬂylnlnluzofﬂnndll
nssets such as i trnde

Principal Audit Procedures:

The assessment of recoverabie amount of the
Group's trade receivables, umbilled revenue
(wrum:l essets) md lnum is c(mnd:md as

the amounts mvnlved, judymenu lmmlved in
of i of

the carrying valuc of the investment or other
aforesaid financial assers, which includes
asscssment of conditions and financial
indicators of the parties from whom these
amounts are recoverahle, such as current
busincss operations, orders in hand, cxpected
sales, future business plan and the latest
correspondence with them.

A ing the i of the
applied in H

Verification that the accounting and /or

duc.losuxe as the case may be in the

financial is in

d with the of
management.

the

“Emphasis of matters” section of the repart.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and

Auditor's report thereon

Holding Company's inward foreign
remiftances in the bank accounts of
the group companies.

Refer to the comments in para (i) of the
“Emphasis of Matters” section of the repart

Recognition of deferred tax assets. (Carrying
amount of nct Deferred tax essets amounting
07T, 1,900.59 crore).

Refer to the comments in para (jii) of the
“Emphasis of Matters"” scction of the repart

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of other information. The Other information comprises the
information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to the
Board report, but does not include the Consolidated financial statement
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our qualified opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.



Independent Auditor's Report

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified undersection 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the respective board of
directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements are also responsible for overseeing their
Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
Consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated
financial statements that individually or in aggregate makes it probable that
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope pf
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of ant identified misstatements in the Consolidated financial
statements.

‘We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during ouraudit.

‘We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
Consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
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Independent Auditor's Report

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

(@) The Statement includes the audited financial statements of 3
Domestic subsidiaries 2 step down subsidiary and 1 subsidiary of
step down subsidiary international subsidiaries, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of ¥.211.87 Crores as at March 31,
2021 and total revenue of ¥.55.23 crores, total net loss after tax of
¥.2,174.08 crores and total comprehensive income of ¥.(2,174.08)
crores, for the year ended March 31, 2021, as considered in the
Staternent, which have been audited by their respective independent
auditors. The independent auditors report on the financial
statements of these subsidiaries have been furnished to us and our
opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries is based solely on
the report of such.

(b) The Statement includes the unaudited/ management reviewed
financial statements of 2 international subsidiaries and 5 step down
subsidiaries and 1 subsidiary of step down subsidiary, whose
financial results reflect total assets of ¥.3.93 crores as at March 31,
2021 and total revenue of . 1,161.82 crores, total net loss after tax of
¥.340.22 crores and total comprehensive income of ¥.(340.22) crores
for the year ended March 31, 2021, as considered in the Staternent. In
respect of one of the step down subsidiary of the company in US
namely Rolta Advizex LLP, the Bondholder took control somewhere
in March, 2021 and accordingly the account of the same has been
included on reviewed basis till 31st December, 2020. These
Unaudited Financial Results have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Results, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of these subsidiaries is based solely on such unaudited
financial statements.

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above
matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports
of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the
Board of Directors

(€) Theopeningbalances as of April 1, 2020 has been taken based on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
audited by the predecessor independent auditor who vide their
report dated July 15, 2020 have expressed an unmodified opinion.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based our audit and on
consideration of reports of other auditors and the other financial
information of subsidiaries, as noted on other matters paragraph
above, we report that:

(a) ‘We and other auditors whose report we have relied upon have
sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

®) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and reports of the other auditors.

© The Consolidated Balance sheet, the Consolidated Statement

@

@©

®

®

®

of Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, except for the matters stated in the Basis for
qualified opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Account) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representation received from the
directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on records by the Board
of Directors of holding company and reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiaries incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the group companies are disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a Directors in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries incorporated in India and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure “A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of Sec
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's
report in accordance with the rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of the report of
other auditors, as noted in the “Other matter” paragraph:

i. The Group has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial performance in its
Consolidated financial statements. (Refer note no. 20,
37, 45, 46 and 47 of the consolidated financial
statements).

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. The Group has not transferred an amount of ¥.1,800/-
pertaining to dividend which is unclaimed for more than
seven years, to Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Group.

For J. Kala & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 118769W

P

Jayesh Kala
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No. - 101686
Date: November 02, 2021 UDIN: 2110686 AAAACH5204



Annpexure - A to the Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

‘We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Rolta India Limited ("the Holding Company") and its subsidiaries
companies incorporated in India as at March 31, 2021, in copjunction with
our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of holding company and its subsidiaries
incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thata
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our disclaimer of opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the Company;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of the
Management and Directors of the Company; and

iif) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
Consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding
Company has not established its internal financial control over financial
reporting on criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Further, based on the audit carried out by us and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have observed high levels of
attrition in the financial year, which has resulted in the residual personnel
having had to carry out multiple tasks which would not be desirable from
the internal control mechanism perspective. However, the said risk has
been substantially mitigated, due to the fact that the size of operations of
the Group has also reduced significantly during the year, as compared to
the previous year.

Disclaimer of Opinion

Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis of
disclaimer of opinion paragraph above, we are unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion whether the
Holding Company had adequate Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting and whether such internal financial controls were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

Explanatory Paragraph

The above stated disclaimer of opinion was considered in determining the
nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in ouraudit of Consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2021 and
this report does not affect our report of even date, which expressed a
qualified opinion on those Consolidated financial statements.

For J. Kala & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 118769W

P

Jayesh Kala
Partner
Membership No. - 101686

Place: Mumbai UDIN: 2110686AAAACH5204

Date: November 02, 2021
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Rolta India Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As At 31st March 2021

M

@

®
(i)

@

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) (i) Property, plant and equipment
(ii) Intangible assets
(iii) Right-of Use Assets
(b) Goodwill on Consolidation
(c) Investments
(d) Other financial assets
(e) Deferred tax assets (net)
(f) Income tax assets (net)
(g) Other non-current assets

Current Assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other bank balances
(iv) Other financial assets
(v) Other current assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(D Equity Share Capital
Other equity
Equity Attributable to shareholders of the Company
Non-Controlling Interest

LIABILITIES
(a) Non-current liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities — Long term borrowings
Lease Liabilities
(ii) Long term provisions

(b) Current liabilities
() Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings
(b) Inter Corporate Deposit
(c) Senior Notes
(d) Trade payables
(e) Lease liabilities
(f) Others financial liabilities
(ii) Other current liabilities
(iii) Short term provisions

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

14

15
16

Accompanying notes forming integral part of the Financial Statements 1 - 53

Asg at

31% March 2021

1,097.50
9.09
504.27
10.23
5.95
18.26
1,900.59
95.38
0.33
3,641.61

367.55
21.83
1.62
312.27
31.92
735.19
4,376.80

165.89

(6,979.36)
(6,813.47)

(6l813.45

(0.30)
6.24
5.95

5007.37
551.11
3279.84
324.86
6.11
1789.52
222.61
2.90
11,184.32
4,376.80

(in ¥ Crore)
Asat '
31" March 2020

1,823.31
2,218.27
1,070.83
559.85
439
23.98
1,501.88
100.66
L11
7,304.28

31111
30.31
3.69
359.41
37.23
741.75
8,046.03

165.89
(2,790.96)
(2,625.07)
(0.04)
(2,625.11)

13.21
11.39
24.60

4,308.27
560.53
3,761.90
348.80
1147
1,348.83
304.39
235
10,646.54
8,046.03

This is the Consolidated balance sheet referred to in our report of even date
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K. K. Singh
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00260977

For J. Kala & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 118769W Ramdas B Gupta
Director
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Jayesh KalaPartner

Membership No. 101686 Dineshkumar Kapadia

UDIN:21101686AAAACH5204 Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai Mumbai

2nd November, 2021

2nd November, 2021

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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Director
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Lt. Gen. K T-Parnaik (Rtd.)
Joint Managing Director
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Ramnath Pradeep

Director
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Sateesh Dasari
Executive Director
DIN: 09042563

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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Rolta India Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit And Loss
For The Year Ended 31st March 2021

Revenue

Revenue from operations
Other Income

Total Income

Expenses

Cost of Materials & Technical Subcontractors

Employee Benefits Expense
Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Exchange Difference (Gain) / Loss
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax

Exceptional Items
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (A)
Tax expenses

Current tax

Deferred Tax

Taxation of Earlier Year

Net Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive income

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability / asset

Income tax relating to above

Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations

Total Other Comprehensive Income (B)

Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year (A+B)

Earnings per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 10 Each

Before Exceptional Item
Basic
Diluted

After Exceptional Item
Basic
Diluted

Note

25
26

27

29

30

31

36

Accompanying notes forming integral part of the Financial Statements 1 - 53

For the Year ended
31% March 2021

333.86
1277.60

666.28
270.49
957.31
125.04
4.72
65.46
2089.31

(811.70)

2857.05

(3,668.77)

(1.46)
405.96

(3,264.26)

1.11
0.39
123.62
125.12
(3,139.13)

(24.55)
(24.55)

(196.77)
(195.77)

(in ¥ Crore)

31" March 2020
1,492.67

1,005.32
42921
773.56
247.67
44.16
139.38
2639.30

(1,135.65)

(44.76)

(1,090.89)

@.19)
178.05
0.12

(914.91)

1.72)
0.57)
(411.38)

(413.67)
(1,328.58)

(57.85)
(57.85)

(55.15)
(55.15)

For the Year ended |

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For J. Kala & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118769W

Jayesh KalaPartner
Membership No. 101686
UDIN:21101686AAAACHS5204

Mumbai
2nd November, 2021
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K. K. Singh

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00260977

Ramdas B Gupta
Director
DIN: 08431597
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Dineshkumar Kapadia
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
2nd November, 2021
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Director
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Joint Managing Director

DIN: 07129253
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Ramnath Pradeep
Director
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Sateesh Dasari
Executive Director
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Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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Statement Of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 31st March 2021

A. Equity Share Capital

(in ¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2021 31" March 2020

Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 165,891,355 165.89 165,266,355 165.27
Add : Issued on Account of ESOP - - 625,000 0.62
Balance at the end of the year 165,891,355 165.89 165,891,355 165.89

B. Other Equity

For the year ended 31st March, 2021 (in ¥ Crore)

Balance as at Ist April, 2020 0.04 169.09 121.32 381.85 (3,900.82) 13.58 1,246.45 1.30 (823.77) (2,790.96)
Total profit/(loss) for the year - - - - (3,264.26) - - - - (3,264.26)
Cost of Employee stock options - - - - - (11.34) - - - (11.39)
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit _ _ _ _ 151 _ _ _ _ 151
plans (net of taxes) . .
Exchange difference on translation of - - - - - - -
foreign operations 123.62 123.62
Other addition \ (deductions) during the year (0.04) 0.06 - 3.81 - - (1,041.79) - - (1,037.96)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 0.00 169.15 121.32 385.66 (7,163.54) 2.24 204.66 1.30 (700.15) (6,979.36)
For the year ended 31st March, 2020 (in T Crore)

Balance as at 1st April, 2019 0.05 169.11 121.32 362.43 (2,983.62) 31.07 1,246.45 1.30 (412.38) (1,464.27)
Total profit/(loss) for the year - - (914.92) - - - - 914.92)
Cost of Employee stock options - - - - - 1.93 - - - 1.93
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

plans (net of taxes) (2.29) (2.29)
Exchange differcoce on translation of - - - - - - -

foreign operations (411.39) (411.39)
Other addition \ (deductions) during the year (0.01) (0.02) - 19.42 - (19.42) - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 0.04 169.09 121.32 381.85 (3,900.82) 13.58 1,246.45 130 (823.77) (2,790.94)

a. Capital reserve: Capital reserve arise on consolidation of group entities which represent excess of parent's share in equity company on date of investment over the cost of investment

b. Securities premium: Securities Premium is used to record the premium on issue of securities such as equity shares, preference shares, debentures etc. The reserve is utilized in accordance with
the provision of section 52 of the Companies Act,2013.

c. Retained earnings / General reserve: These are free reserves that are available for distribution of dividends.

d. Statutory reserve: The statutory reserve is created m accordance with Articles of Association of Rolta Saudi Arabia Ltd and the regulations for companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

. Revaluation reserve - The fair valuation reserve represent gain / (loss) arising on fair valuation of freehold and leasehold land & buildings held by the Cc

the Group maintains a statutory reserve equal to one half of its share capital. Such reserve is not currently available for distribution to the shareholders.
as permitted underInd AS 101.

The fair valuation has been carried out by an independent valuer. This reserve is not a free reserve,
Currency translation reserve - This reserve is used to record the foreign exchange translation differences arising on translation of foreign subsidiary into presentation currency of consolidated

accounts.

g. Sharebased payment reserve- This is used to recognize the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to employees, including key management personnel.

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For J. Kala & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118769W

N

Jayesh KalaPartner
Membership No. 101686
UDIN:21101686AAAACHS204

Mumbai
2nd November, 2021
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Chairman & Managing Director
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Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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Rolta India Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statements
As at and for the year ended 31" March 2021

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit before tax
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Finance Costs
Interest Income
License Fees
Exceptional Item

Bad debts & Provision for Doubtful Debts
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of property, plant and equipment (net)

Employee Stock Option Scheme

Exchange difference adjustment (net)

OPERATING PROFIT /(LOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Adjustments for :

Trade Receivables, Loans & Advances and Other Assets
Trade Payables, Other Liabilities and Provisions
CASH GENERATED / ( USED IN ) FROM OPERATIONS

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

NET CASH / (USED IN ) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

B CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP & Intangible)

Sale of Fixed Assets

Sale / (purchase) of Investment (net)

Interest received
License Fees

Business ( Acquisition ) / dilution
Fixed deposits with banks matured having original maturity over twelve months

NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

C CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Proceeds / (Refund) from issue of Share Capital (includes Security premium)

NET CASH FROM / (USED IN ) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (OPENING BALANCE)

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (CLOSING BALANCE) [Refer note no 10]

(in¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31%* March 2021 31" March 2020

(3,668.77) (1,090.89)
125.04 247.67
957.31 773.56
0.00 0.27)
(2.57) (3.82)
2,857.05 (44.76)
(1.06) 14.26
(0.39) (0.04)
(7.13) 1.93
218.64 (457.68)
478.15 (560.05)
46.21 122.24
(139.87) 1,024.04
384.49 586.23
(88.38) (44.26)
296.11 541.97
(9.94) (40.19)
0.22 0.10
(1.57) (1.37)
0.00 0.38
2.57 3.82
0.00 (0.86)
1.35 5.92
(7.37) (32.20)
(297.17) (495.71)
(0.05) (0.05)
(297.22) (495.76)
(8.48) 14.01
30.31 16.30
21.83 30.31
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Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies And Other Explanatory Information to
the Consolidated Financial Statement
Asatand for the year ended 31 March 2021

1.0. Background:
1.1. Overview:

Rolta is a multinational organization headquartered in India. Rolta India Limited (“RIL” or the “Company”), is a publicly held Company
together with its subsidiaries (Collectively referred as 'the Group'). Rolta is a leading provider of innovative IP-led IT solutions for many
vertical segments, including Federal and State Governments, Utilities, Oil & Gas, Petrochemicals, Financial Services, Manufacturing,
Retail, and Healthcare. Rolta has been recognized for its extensive portfolio of solutions based on field-proven Rolta IP tailored for Indian
Defence and Homeland Security. By uniquely combining its expertise in the IT, Engineering and Geospatial domains, Rolta has
developed State-of-the-Art Digital Solutions incorporating rich Rolta IP in the areas of Cloud, Mobility, IoT, B and Big Data Analytics.

1.2, Basis of Consolidation:
a) Basis of Preparation of Financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except leasehold land, freehold land and building which have been revalued at the transition date and
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (" Act’) (to the
extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The IndAS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Actread with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules
issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied, except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

b) Principles of Consolidation:

i) The Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by
adding together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group
balances and transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses.

if)  TheConsolidated Financial Statements (CFS) have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances and are presented to in the same manner as the Company's separate financial statements
except in respect of accounting policies of depreciation/amortisation and retirement benefit where it was not practicable to
use uniform accounting policies in case of certain subsidiaries. The amount of impact is however not material.

iii)  The excess of cost to the Company of its investment in a subsidiary company over the Company's portion of equity of the
subsidiary as at the date on which investment in subsidiary is made, is recognized in the financial statement as Goodwill. The
excess of Company's share of equity and reserve of the subsidiary company over the cost of acquisition is treated as Capital
Reserve.

iv)  In the case of foreign subsidiaries revenue items have been consolidated at the average exchange rate prevailing during the
period. All assets and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the period. The exchange difference arising out of
translation is debited or credited to Currency Translation Reserve shown under Reserves and Surplus.

v)  Minority Interest's share of net profit of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income of
the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to the shareholders of the Company.

¢) The CFSincludes the financial statements of Rolta India Limited. and all its Subsidiaries.

d) Theinformation on subsidiary companies whose financial statements are consolidated is given below.

Country of Incorporation Extent of Interest

Rolta Global BV (RGBV) Netherlands 100% 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
2 | Rolta International Inc. (RUS) US.A 100% * 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
3 | Rolta Canada Ltd. Canada 100% Subsidiary of RUS | 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
4 | Rolta Advizex Technologies LLC US.A 100% Subsidiary of RUS | 01.04.2020 to 28.02.2021
5 |Rolta LLC US.A 100% Subsidiary of RUS | 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
6 | Rolta Americas LLC US.A 100% Subsidiary of RUS | 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
7 | Rolta Hungary KFT Hungary 100% Subsidiary of RUS | 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
8 | Rolta Saudi Arabia Ltd Saudi Arabia 100% Subsidiary of RME | 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
9 | Rolta Middle East FZ-LLC (RME) UA.E 100% Subsidiary of RGBV| 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
10 | Rolta Muscat LLC Oman 100% Subsidiary of RME | 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
11 | Rolta U. K. Ltd. (RUK) UK. 100% Subsidiary of RGBV| 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
12 | Rolta Defence Technology Systems Pvt. Ltd India 100% 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
13 | Rolta BI and Big Data Analytics Pvt Ltd India 100% 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021
14 | Rolta Thales Limited India 51% 01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021

*48.22% held through Rolta Global BV
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. UseofEstimates

In preparation of the financial statements, the Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which the changes are made.

Significant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities include useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, provision for employee benefits
and other provisions and recoverability of deferred tax assets.

b. RevenueRecognition

i. Revenue from providing of solutions and services is recognized in accordance with the customer contract and when there are no
unfulfilled company obligations or any obligations that are inconsequential or perfunctory and will not affect the customer’s final
acceptance of the arrangement.

ii. Revenue from customer-related long-term contracts is recognised by reference to the percentage of completion of the contract at
the balance sheet date. The Group's long term contracts specify a fixed price for the sale of license and installation of software
solutions and services, and the related revenue is determined using the percentage of completion method. The percentage of
completion is based on efforts expended as a proportion to the total estimated efforts on the contract. If the contract is considered
profitable, it is valued at cost plus attributable profits by reference to the percentage of completion. Any expected loss on
individual contracts is recognised immediately as an expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss. Unbilled revenues included
under Other Financial Assets represent revenue recognized in respect of work completed but not billed as on the Balance Sheet
date.

iii. Income from maintenance contracts is recognized proportionately over the period of the contract.
iv. Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established.
v. Interestincomeisrecognized on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal amount outstanding.

vi. The Groups has, with effect from April 1, 2018, adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" by opting for the
cumulative catch-up method, which is applicable for all contracts that were not completed as on April 1, 2018. The impact of the
adoption of the standard onthe consolidated financial statements of the Group is insignificant.

c. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred initially to
acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All
other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when
incurred.

All items of PPE, except freehold Land, Leasehold Land & Buildings (which have been revalued) have been recognized in the
financial statements at their carrying value (deemed cost). Items of PPE purchased subsequent to the transition date are stated at cost
of acquisition or construction, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes all direct costs and
expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Capital Work-in-Progress is stated
atcost, comprising of direct costand related incidental expenditure.

In case of revaluation, if an asset's carrying amount is increased, the increase is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss. If an asset's carrying amount is decreased as
a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognised in profit or loss. However, the decrease is recognised in other comprehensive
income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation reserve in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in other
comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve.

Gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assetand is recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss

d. Intangible Assets

Intellectual Property Rights and software costs are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets, where they are clearly linked to
long term economic benefits for the Group. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. All other costs
on Intellectual Property Rights and software are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

Expenditure on development activities is recognized as intangible assets from the date that all of the following conditions are met:
i) completion of the development is technically feasible;

if) itistheintention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

iti) itisclear that the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

iv) adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset are available;
and
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v) itispossible toreliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

Recognition of costs as an asset is ceased when the project is complete and available for its intended use, or if these criteria no longer
apply.

‘Where development activities do not meet the conditions for recognition as an asset, any associated expenditure is treated as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation or amortization is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the management. The
estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Leasehold Land & Building Lease Period

Building 60 Years

Computer Systems 2 to 6 Years

Other Equipment 10 Years

Furniture & Fixture 10 Years

Vehicles 5 Years

Intangibles assets (Third party acquired IP) 10 Years

Internally developed IP with continuous upgradation 20 Years

Assets acquired for specific projects Over the period of the project
f. Impairmentof Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that the carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use.

If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if
any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value, less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value, using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the asset, for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

‘Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised

estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately. The last impairment effect was considered in the financial year ended March
2014.

Investments
Investments are measured at cost.
Foreign Currency Transactions

The financial statements of the Group are presented in INR, which is the functional currency of the Company and the presentation
currency for the financial statements. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, all monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing as at
the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

The exchange difference arising on account of the difference between the rates prevailing on the date of transaction and on the date of
settlement, as also on translation of monetary items at the end of the year is recognized as income or expense, as the case may be, in
the Statement of Profitand Loss for the year.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities, at fair value through profit and
loss, are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income
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or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

a) Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, if these financial assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold these assets, in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, if these financial assets are held within a business
model, whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, or to sell these financial assets, and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets not measured at amortised cost, or at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income are carried at fair value
through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, on a forward looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for
borrowing costs.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
Employee Benefits

i. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short Term Employees Benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of
the year in which the related services are rendered.

ii. Otherlong-term employee benefit obligations
Leave Encashment®

Liability in respect of leave encashment as at the balance sheet date is determined based on actuarial valuation, by using the
Projected Unit Credit Method and any incremental/differential charge on account of such actuarial valuation is recognized in
the Statement of Profitand Loss.
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tfii. Post EmploymentBenefits

Provident Fund*

The Group contributes monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are remitted to the Employee Provident Fund
Commissioner office and are charged to the Statement of Profitand Loss on accrual basis.

Gratuity*®

The Group provides for gratuity (a defined benefit retirement plan) to all the eligible employees. The benefit is in the form of lump
sum payments to vested employees on retirement, on death while in employment, or termination of employment for an amount
equivalent to 15 days' salary, payable for each completed year of service, subject to a maximum of Rs. 20 lacs. Vesting occurs on
completion of five years of service. Liability in respect of gratuity as at the balance sheet date is determined on the basis of
actuarial valuation, by using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Re-measurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit
liability/ (asset) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost, net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/ (asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs and are recognized immediately in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Employee Stock Options

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share based remuneration are measured at their fair values. These
are indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of the share options awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date and
excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, with a corresponding
credit to Employee Stock Compensation Reserve. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated
over the vesting period, based on the best available estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the number of share options expected to vest differs from previous estimates.
Once vested, no adjustment is made to expense recognised in prior periods if, ultimately, fewer share options are exercised than
originally estimated. Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received (net of any directly attributable transaction costs) up
to the nominal value of the shares issued are allocated to share capital, with any excess being recorded as additional paid-in
capital.

* Applicable only to the company and its Indian subsidiaries.

j-

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All
other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. In contrast,
deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values. The
amount of deferred income tax asset considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if the estimates of future
taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has alegally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to
items credited or debited either in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which gives rise to future economic benefits in
the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Group will
pay normal income tax during the specified period.
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Accordingly, MAT entitlement is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is
probable that the future economic benefit associated with it will fructify. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the
carrying amount of MAT Credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence for the effect that the
Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Earnings Per Share

In accordance with the Ind AS 33 “Earnings Per Share”, basic / diluted earnings per share is computed by taking the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by taking the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued by conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each
provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. When
appropriate, provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from the Groups's actions where:

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the Groups has
indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

(b) as a result, the Group has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those
responsibilities.

Leases

The Group determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulfillment of a transaction is

dependent on the use of a specific asset and whether the transaction conveys the right to use that asset to the Company, in return

for payment. Where this occurs, the arrangement is deemed to include a lease and is accounted for either as finance or operating
lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer, substantially, all the risks and rewards of ownership to
thelessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in a straight line basis, over the term of the
relevant lease, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with bank and other short term highly liquid investments, with
original maturities of 3 months orless.

3. Property plant and equipment and Intangible assets and Right of Use Asset

Current year :

(in ¥ Crore)

DEFPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION NET BLOCK

As Ar For the year

151 April
2020
A. Property, Plant and
Equipment

Freehold Land 441.33 0.00 368.17) 0.00 73.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 73.16
Buildings 1,480.56 0.00 (375.03) 183.85 921.68 233.66 20.90 250.07 4.49 917.19
Computer System 174.18 7.39 0.00 1.70 179.87 171.02 310 1.17 172.95 6.92
Other Equipment 253.31 2.50 0.00 0.64 255.17 158.63 17.83 (1.85) 178.31 76.86
Furniture & Fixture 247.78 0.00 0.00 0.11 247.67 210.68 13.72 0.10 224.33 23.34
Vehicles 3.19 0.00 0.00 2.53 0.66 3.05 0.14 2.53 0.66 0.00
Total 2,600.35 9.89 (743.20) 188.83 1,678.21 777.04 55.69 252.03 580.71 1,097.50
B. .Intangible Assets

Other (IPR) 2,942.10 0.05 0.00 2,820.19 121.96 735.95 35.19 649.18 121.96 0.00
Goodwill on Acquisition 28.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.74 16.62 3.03 0.00 19.65 9.09
Total 2,970.84 0.05 0.00 2,820.19 150.70 752.57 38.22 649.18 141.61 9.09
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Previons year : (in¥Crore)

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION NET BLOCK

During the year

Revaluation Sale /
Adjustments Adjustments

A. Property, Plant and

Equipment
Frechold Land 441.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 44133 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 441.33
Buildings 1,480.35 0.00 0.00 0.21 1,480.56 209.10 24.37 0.19 233.66 1,246.90
Computer System 184.71 1.97 0.00 (12.50) 174.18 177.13 6.39 (12.50) 171.02 3.16
Other Equipment 264.67 0.45 0.00 (11.81) 253.31 149.45 21.21 (12.03) 158.63 94.68
Furniture & Fixture 249.69 0.00 0.00 a9y 247.78 194.43 18.07 1.82 210.68 37.10
Vehicles 3.17 0.00 0.00 0.02 3.19 2.83 0.20 0.02 3.05 0.14
Total 2,623.92 2.42 0.00 25.99 2,600.35 732.94 70.24 (26.19) 777.04 1,823.31

B. .Intangible Assets

Other (IPR) 2,931.35 0.05 0.00 10.70 2,942.10 584.35 141.35 10.25 735.95 2,206.15
Goodwill on Acquisition 28.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.74 12.58 4.04 0.00 16.62 12.12
Total 2,960.09 0.05 0.00 10.70 2,970.84 596.93 145.39 10.25 752.57 2,218.27

C. Right of Use- Lease Asset

Current year : (in¥Crore)
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION NET BLOCK
At o
As At 31st < Deduction / As Ar3ist As A1 3lst
March 2021 ";;;%“‘ Fortheyear ) jotment March2021  March 2021
Leaschold Land 1,180.54 - (680.24) 0.02 500.28 133.74 19.92 152.93 0.73 49955
Leaschold Premises 35.47 - -~ 15.63 19.84 11.44 1129 7.61 15.12 472
Total 1,216.01 - (680.24) 15.65 520.12 145.18 31.21 160.56 15.83 504.27
Previous year : (in¥Crore)
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION NET BLOCK
At .
Deduction / As At3lst As At 3ist
Apdl  FOrheYSR  Ajostmest  March200  March2020
Leaschold Land 1,180.48 - - 0.06 1,180.54 112.48 21.20 0.06 133.74 1,046.80
Leaschold Premises 34.79 0.68 - - 3547 - 10.83 0.61 1144 24.03
Total 1,215.27 0.68 - 0.06 1,216.01 112.48 32.03 0.67 145.18 1,070.83
Note:

(I) Refernoteno. 18bfor charges created against the asset.

(ii) During the year, the Company has revalued its freechold land, leasehold land and building by obtaining a valuation report from an
independent registered valuer. Impact of revaluation has been adjusted directly in the other equity under the revaluation reserve.

4. Goodwill on Consolidation
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows:

(in ¥ Crore)
Gross carrying amount 31" March 2021 31" March 2020
Opening balance 559.85 513.70
Goodwill Written off (Refer note 30) (443.41) -
Net exchange difference (106.22) 46.15
Closing balance 10.23 | | 559.85
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In keeping with the Group's business strategy which is focused on transforming its business model from being services-centric to one that
increasingly leverages its intellectual property, the Group has reorganized its business into two segments -- Enterprise Geospatial and Engineering
Solutions ("EGES"); and Systems Integration and Enterprise IT Solutions (‘EITS').

The Group has identified EITS as the single Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated. Thus, for the purpose of annual
impairment testing goodwill is allocated in the current period only to one segment- EITS, which is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combinations in which the goodwill arises and which represents the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit has been determined based on value in use. Value in use has been determined based on future
cash flows after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results, growth rates and anticipated future
economic conditions.

The long-term growth rate used for terminal value at the end of the forecast period is 2%. This long-term growth rate takes into consideration
external macro-economic sources of data. Such long-term growth rate considered does not exceed that of the relevant business and industry sector.

The growth rates over the forecast period reflect the compounded annual growth rates for revenues of the cash-generating units as projected by the
management.

Based on the above, impairment is identified and recognised. The management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit

5. Investments (Non-Current)
(in T Crore)
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Non-Current Investments* 5.95 4.39
Total 5.95 4.39
*This represents an investment made by Rolta UK Ltd in a limited partnership viz Seraphim LLP
6. Other Financial Assets (Non-Current)
(in ¥ Crore)
Asg at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Security Deposits 0.17 1.27
Loans and Advances to Related Parties 0.00 4.62
Deposited with Court 18.09 18.09
Total 18.26 23.98
*QOther Bank Deposits are maintained for margin money with banks
7. Other Non-Current Assets
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Prepaid Expenses 0.33 1.11
Total 0.33 1.11

=]

Income Tax Assets (net)

As at 31° March 2021 As at 31" March 2020

Advance Income Tax (net of provision for tax) 8.20 21.58

MAT Credit Entitlement 87.18 87.18
Total : -

95.38 108.76

(in ¥ Crore)
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9. Trade Receivables
(in T Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 8.17 6.51
Less : Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 8.17) (6.51)
Unsecured and Considered Good 367.50 311.11
TOTAL 367.50 311.11
10. Cash and cash equivalenis
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
- Cash on Hand 10.51 0.19
- Balance with Banks in Current / Deposit Accounts 11.32 30.13
Total 21.83 30.32
11. Other Bank Balances
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31° March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
- Unpaid Dividend Account 1.10 1.81
- Bank Deposits* 0.52 1.88
Total 1.62 | 3.69
*Deposits are maintained for margin money with banks.
12. Other Financial Assets (Current)
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Security Deposits 6.43 6.65
Deposited with Court 0.00 -
Interest Receivable 0.08 0.08
Unbilled Revenues (Contract Assets) 300.97 331.55
Other Receivables 3.37 5.01
Loans and Advances to Related Parties 1.42 16.12
Total 312.27 359.41
13. Other Current Assels
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Prepaid Expenses 6.20 11.76
Duties and Taxes 22.26 19.73
Advances to Suppliers 3.46 5.74
Total 31.92 37.23
14, Equity Share Capital
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
a. Authorised :
250,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥10 each 250 250
(P.Y. 250,000,000 Equity shares of Y10 each)
Total 250 250
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b. Issued, Subscribed & Paid up :
165,891,355 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up.
(P.Y. 165,891,355 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each)

Total

. Reconciliation of share capital

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Issued on Account of ESOP
Balance at the end of the year

Total

d.

As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
165.89 165.89
165.89 165.89

As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020

Number of Shares Amount

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Shares

165,891,355

165,891,355

165.89

165.89

165,891,355

165,891,355

Number of Shares Amount

165.89

165.89

The Company has one class of equity shares, having a par value of .10/- each. Each shareholder is eligible for dividend and one vote
per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, in
proportion to their shareholding, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

Rolta Private Limited
Rolta Shares and Stocks Pvt. Ltd.

Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares

No Bonus Shares have been issued to the shareholders during the last five years.

As at 31" March 2021 #
No. of Shares

As at 31" March 2020*

No. of Shares %
10,330,546 6.23
8,544,600 5.15

*As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders, members and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares. The
holding of Rolta Shares and Stocks Pvt. Ltd. also consists of shares of the Company received on loan from Rolta Private Limited.

# Since, the holding is below 5%, the same is not disclosed.

Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

The Company, from time to time, provides share based payments to its employees. These payments are provided in the form of stock
options that can be exercised once the employee has completed specified service term with the Company. The options are accounted
for as 'equity settled share based payment' transactions. Refer the table below for disclosure as per requirement of Ind AS 102 — Share
based payments.

i.  Details of Employee stock options scheme

Particulars Tranche VIL Tranche IX Tranche XT Tranche XT1 Tranche XTI1 Tranche XIV
No of Options 1250000 625000 1050000 2350000 825000 775000
Granted
Grant Price %.10.00 %.10.00 %.10.00 %.10.00 %.10.00 %.10.00
Grant dates February 07, 2015 November 9, 2015 December 9, 2016 May 30, 2017 November 10, 2017 May 30,2018
Total Options 212500 0 0 0 0 0
Exercised
Total Options Lapsed 912500 575000 775000 2050000 787500 750000
Options outstanding 125000 50000 275000 300000 37500 25000
at the end of the year
Vesting of Options | Two equal instalments | Two equal instalments | Two equal instalments | Two equal instalments | Two equal instalments | Two equal instalments
at the end of 3rd, 4th |at the end of 3rd, 4th |at the end of 3rd, 4th |at the end of 3rd, 4th |at the end of 3rd, 4th |at the end of 3rd, 4th
(into Equity shares of |(into Equity shares of |(into Equity shares of |(into Equity shares of |(into Equity shares of |(into Equity shares of
.10 each) .10 each) .10 each) %.10 each) .10 each) .10 each)
Exercise Period 3 years from the 3 years from the 3 years from the 3 years from the 3 years from the 3 years from the
date of vesting date of vesting date of vesting date of vesting date of vesting date of vesting
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ii. Movement of Options Granted

— Rorsay e

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,637,500 1,862,500
Granted during the year* - -
Options forfeited during the year (825,000) (225,000)
Options Exercised during the year - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 812,500 1,637,500
Options Exercisable at the end of the period 587,500 475000

* Includes Nil (P.Y. Nil) granted to Key Management Personnel
iii. Fair valuation of options

For ESOPs outstanding as at 31st March 2021, exercise price is ¥ 10 and weighted average life of these options ranges from 26 to 39

months.

Allshare based employee remuneration would be settled in equity. The only vesting condition is the continuation of service. The group has

no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options.

In total, employee remuneration expense of ¥ 0.54 Crores. (P.Y. ¥ 0.94 Crores.) has been included in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
which gave rise to additional paid-in capital. No liabilities were recognized due to share-based payment transactions.

15. Lease Liabilities

Lease Liabilities (non-current)
Lease Liabilities (current)
Total

16. Long-term Provisions

a. Provision for Employee Benefits :
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 27)
Provision for Leave Encashment

b. Provision for Others
Total

17. Deferred Taxes

a. Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Liability on PPE

Deferred Tax Asset on carry forward business losses , unabsorbed
depreciation and others

( Refer Note 31(c) for movement)

Total

(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31° March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
(0.30) 13.21
6.11 11.47
5.81 | 24.68
(in T Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
3.76 7.24
2.48 412
- 0.03
6.24 11.39
(in T Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
(606.25) (879.32)
2,506.84 2,381.20
1,900.59 1,501.88
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18. Secured Borrowings

(in ¥ Crore)
a. Secured As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Working Capital Borrowings from US Bank 44.72 -
Term Loans from Banks 1,007.17 1,007.66
Other Loan from Banks 3,955.48 3,300.61
Total 5007.37 | 4,308.27

b. Details of Security and interest rates

Outstanding Loans are secured against pari-passu charge over, land & building situated at “Rolta Tower-1”, Plot No 39, MIDC-Marol,
Andheri (East), Mumbai 400093; leasehold rights of the land and building “Rolta Tower 2” located on Plot 35, Marol Industrial, Andheri
(East), Mumbai 400093; Unit No. 201 to 204, 2nd floor and 501 to 504, 5th floor, MIDC multi storied building, SEEPZ SEZ, Marol Industrial
Area, Andberi (East), Murmobai 400093, Land & Building situated at Rolta Tower— A, situated at Plotno 15C, Rolta Technology Park, MIDC-
Marol, Andberi (E); 6 flats (no. 1801 and 1802 (18th Floor), 1901, and 1902 (19th Floor), 2001 and 2002 (20th Floor), building known as
"Lake Primose" in Lake Homes, Wing-A, Building No.1, Phase-IV, off Adi Shankarcharya Marg, Vill - Chandivali, Powai, Mumbai-400076,
Rolta Tower "B", Plot No. C-12,Rolta Technology Park, MIDC, Andheri (E), Rolta Tower "C", PlotNo. C-11, Rolta Technology Park, MIDC,
Andheri (E); hypothecation charge on the current assets and movable PPE of the Company, movable PPE/ Intellectual Property Rights held
by Rolta Defence Technology Systems Pvt. Ltd. (RDTSPL), hypothecation and charge over cash flows and Corporate Guarantee of Rolta
Defence Technology Systems Pvt. Ltd. Exclusive charge over DSRA of the Company with the respective banks and pledge of 26,750 shares of
USD 1000 each in Rolta International Inc. held by Rolta India Limited, valued at 125% of the loan amount and guaranteed by Rolta
International Inc. Rolta Advizex Technologies LLC has pledged substantially all assets including receivables, property, computers and
equipment and all deposit accounts as collateral against borrowings. In addition, Rolta international Inc has pledged the member units of
Rolta Advizex Technologies LLC as additional collateral against borrowings from Huntington National Bank.

¢.  Breakup of Secured Borrowings

(in ¥ Crore)

Name of The Bank As at 31" March, 2021 As at 31" March, 2020
Union Bank of India 1,687.53 1,456.12
Bank of India 954.29 808.70
Bank of Baroda 728.77 635.15
Central Bank of India 1,167.22 1,045.16
Syndicate Bank 424 84 363.14
Huntington National Bank 44.72 Nill
Total 5,007.37 4,308.27
19. Inter Corporate Deposit
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Inter corporate Deposits (ICD) from related party 551.11 560.53
Total 551.11 560.53
20. Unsecured Borrowings
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
a. Senior Notes 3,279.84 3,761.90
Total 3,279.84 3,761.90

(a) The step down International subsidiary of the Company had issued in 2013 Bonds of US$ 200 Mn and in 2014 US$ 300 Mn. Both the bonds
have matured in Financial Year 2018 and 2019. Out of the above Bondholders, certain Bondholders obtained an order of Supreme Court of
The State of New York, County of New York, has been passed on September 02, 2020 in favour of certain Bondholders for an amount of US §
183 million (approx) plus interest at 9% upto the date of payment against the Company and six International Subsidiaries of the Company.
Further a turnover order dated October20, 2020 on a motion submitted by the plaintiffs was passed by the said Honble Court in New York in
favour of the Plaintiffs, directing the defendants to turn over their cash on hand and their stock/ membership interest owned in subsidiaries of
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the company. The international defendants except Rolta India Ltd. filed voluntary Chapter— 11 proceedings in the United States Bankruptcy
Court for the Northern District of Alabama in the U.S. on October 29, 2020. By virtue of this filing, enforcement of the judgment against the
international defendants has been stayed. The Federal Bankruptcy Court had finally rejected Chapter 11 proceedings in April 2021. Thereafter
Rolta International Inc. has filed appeal on May 17, 2021 against the rejection of Chapter 11 proceedings in Federal Court in District Court of
Alabama which is the Appellate Court. This appeal is still pending. Since now all the international companies are outside of Bankruptcy, they
continue to function normally. Accordingly the company continues to recognise the balances in their books as they appear on that date. Rolta
India Ltd. has filed a suit no. 3396 / 2020 dated November 10, 2020 in Hon'ble Bombay High Court with the main prayer to grant interim
injunction and declare that the summary judgement dated September 2, 2020 and turnover order dated October 20, 2020 cannot be executed
by the Plaintiffs against the defendants unless domesticated in India. The hearing for said suit are ongoing.

(b) Supreme Court of New York appointed a receiver vide its order dated 17th June, 2021 against RUS and Rolta India Ltd. The said Court of

9]

21

New York further appointed a receiver against other subsidiaries of Rolta India Ltd vide its order dated August, 24,2021. Such receiver had
also issued a letter dated September 3, 2021 for holding a meeting to remove the Board of RUS on 13th September, 2021. However, the
Receiver has been informed by the Legal Advisor of Rolta India Ltd in US that the said meeting is not valid as summary judgement dated
Sept.,2020 and Turnover Order of October,2020 against Rolta India Ltd and its subsidiary Rolta Global BV has not been domesticated in
India and Netherland. The matter remains disputed and is now with the Honourable Supreme Court of New York County for taking the
decision in the mater.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid, the financial statements of the said subsidiaries have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Bondholder holding order of the Honourable Supreme Court of New York County to recover an amount of US $ 183 Million, took
control of the step down subsidiary of the company in US namely Rolta Advizex LLP somewhere inMarch, 2021 and put Rolta Advizex LLP
on auction. In the said auction, the same Bondholders purchased Rolta Advizex LLP for US $ 55 Million. The RUS have considered this
amount as Sale value and the difference between its investment cost and the Sale value is considered as other Income. Inspite of legal notices to
the management of Advizex and to the Advizex Company and the protracted discussion by our US legal advisors with the Legal Advisors of
Advizex and Bond holders, the Bond holders who have taken control as mentioned above, have refused in writing to give Audit Report for full
year of financial records upto 31st March 2021. Therefore, inspite of best efforts by the Company, it could only consolidate the nine months
financials upto December 2020 in the current financial year for Rolta Advizex LLP which has been subject to Limited review by the Auditors.

Trade Payables (in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020

a. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise (refer note b below)Others 2.21 0.75
324.65 348.05

324.86 | 348.80

The disclosure pursuant to The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, (MSMED Act) is as under:

Particulars 31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 2.21 0.75

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amount Not ascertainable NIL

Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year| Not ascertainable 0.46

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, (Other than Section 16) NIL NIL

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, (Section 16) NIL NIL

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payment already made Not ascertainable NIL

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year under MSMED Act. Not ascertainable NIL

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as "Micro, Small and Medium" enterprises on the
basis of information available with the Company.

22. Other Financial Liabilities (in ¥ Crore)

As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings 327.59 220.76
Interest accrued and due on Borrowings 1,457.05 1,120.80
Finance Lease Obligation 0.00 11.47
Unpaid Dividends (Deposited in Bank) 1.10 1.81
Provision for Other Benefits to Employee 1.00 1.03
Creditors for Capital Goods 0.00 571
Deposits (Refer note 36) 2.77 6.82
Total 1,789.52 1,368.39
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23. Other Current Liabilities (in X Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Income received in advance 0.00 1.27
Deferred Revenue 30.49 37.47
Duties and Taxes 58.88 59.75
Salary & Commission Payable 9291 73.62
Advances from Customers 0.22 240
Provision for Warranty 0.10 0.13
Provision for Expenses 29.73 108.35
Employee related Statutory Dues 10.28 21.40
Total 222.61 304.39
24, Short Term Provisions (in T Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
a. Provision for Employee Benefits :
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 27 ) 1.98 1.40
Provision for Leave Encashment 0.92 0.95
Total 2.90 2.35
25. Revenue from Operations (in T Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2021 31"March 2020
Sale of IT Solutions & Services 943.74 1,492.67
Total 943,74 1,492.67
- Sales of IT solutions and services include Sale of IT product/Systems procured for the purpose of system integration purpose
amount to T 703.82 Crores. (PY - ¥ 1,124.74 Crores.)
- Contracted price is equivalent to the amount of revenue recognised.
26. Other Income (in X Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2021 31"March 2020
Interest Income 0.00 0.27
License Fees 2.57 3.82
Profit on sale of item of property, plant and equipment 0.39 0.04
Miscellaneous Income 333.77 6.85
Total 336.72 10.98
27. Employee Benefit Expense (n ¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2021 31"March 2020
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 263.93 419.55
Contribution to Gratuity 0.95 1.22
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 4.86 6.82
Cost of Employee Stock Option Scheme (refer notel4g) 0.49 0.94
Staff Welfare Expenses 0.26 0.68
Total 270.49 429.21
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Employee benefits

A,

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company participates in defined contribution plan on behalf of relevant personnel. Expenses recognized in relation to the
planrepresents the value of contributions payable during the year by the Company at rates specified by the rules of the plan.

Provident fund

In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of The Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a
defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of
the covered employees “ salary (currently 12% of employees “salary).

The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Central
Provident Fund under the State Pension scheme.

The total cost charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year ended 31st March, 2019, is ¥ 3.92 crores (Previous year:
34.64 crores)

B. Defined benefit plans
Retiring gratuity (Unfunded)
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan
provides for a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service. Group account for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial
valuation. The Group is exposed to actuarial risk with respect to this plan.
The following table sets out the amounts recognized in the financial statements for the retiring gratuity plans in respect of the
Group.
I. ChangeinNetDefined Benefit Obligation
(in ¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended

i 31"March, 2021 31*March, 2020

1. Net defined benefit liability at the start of the period 7.55 8.57

Addition: Employees transferred from Rolta Defence Technology Services Pvt. Ltd. 1.06 -

2. Service Cost 0.35 0.59

3. Past Service Cost - -

4. Net Interest Cost (Income) 0.60 0.66

5. Re-measurements 0.03 1.70

6. Benefits paid directly by the enterprise (3.85) (2.86)

7. Net defined benefit liability at the end of the period 5.75 8.64

II. Theamountrecognized in the income statement

(in T Crore)

Particulars i Mo 301 31"Manch 020,
1. Service Cost 0.35 0.59

2. Net Interest Cost 0.60 0.66

3. Past Service Cost - -

4. Expense Recognised in the Income Statement 0.95 1.24
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. Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)

(in ¥ Crore)
Particulars SiMarchy 2021 31°Mavch, 2020
1. Net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) opening -
2. Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year on PBO 0.03 (1.70)
3. Actuarial gain /(loss) for the year on Asset - -
4. Unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) at the end of the year 0.03 (1.70)
IV. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (in T Crore)
_
Apr 2021- Mar 2022 2.40
b) Apr 2022- Mar 2023 2.35
c) | Apr 2023- Mar 2024 2.70
d) | Apr 2024- Mar 2025 2.92
e) | Apr 2025- Mar 2026 3.06

V.  Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation (in T Crore)
Particulars Sl March, 2021 31 March, 2020
A) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 3.39 8.64
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50% (0.04) 0.22)

b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 0.04 022
B) Impact of the change in salary increase

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 3.39 8.64
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50% 0.04 0.22
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (0.04) (0.12)

V1. Assumptions (in ¥ Crore)
— e
a. Discount rate (per annum) 6.81% 6.92%

b. Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 5% 5%
c. Rate of attrition
Upto 30 Years 38% 40%
From 31 to 44 Years 35% 29-36%
Above 44 Years 31% 8%-14%
d. Mortality India Assured Lives India Assured Lives
Mortality(2012-14) Mortality(2012-14)

*The employee remuneration included . 1.78 Crores provided as managerial remuneration, which was in excess of the limit prescribed therefor
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 by ¥.0.94 Crores. The same was regularised by the Holding Company by
obtaining the approval of share holder at the Annual General Meeting.

28, Finance Costs

(in T Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
Interest Expenses 957.31 769.30
Debt Issuance Cost . - 4.26
Total 957.31 773.56
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29. Other Expenses (in ¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31"March 2021 31"March 2020
Repairs — Building 6.89 9.26
Repairs - Plant & Machinery 0.43 3.19
Repairs - Other Assets 0.96 1.19
Utilities & Communication 6.22 10.61
Rent 0.15 4.01
Rates & Taxes 1.16 4.49
Insurance 1.73 2.39
Adbvertisement & Sales Promotion 5.06 15.34
Travelling & Conveyance 2.09 20.05
Printing & Stationery 0.39 0.76
Bank & Other Charges 2.76 5.29
Auditors' Remuneration 0.90 1.05
Directors' Sitting Fees 0.34 0.37
Legal & Professional Fees 23.03 27.04
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.10
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts - 14.26
Donation 0.00 0.03
Interest on statutory dues 6.50 9.05
Miscellaneous Expenses 6.84 10.90
Total 65.46 139.38
30. Exceptional items (in X Crore)
Exceptional items comprise of the following:
For the ended For the ended
ety 31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
‘Write off of amount receivable from the Company's subsidiary, Rolta Defence
Technology Systems Pvt. Ltd. (RDTSPL) pursuant to the transfer of defencebusiness
to RDTSPL in the year 2015. The yvrite off of the receivable was necessitated.on 2.165.28 3
account of the write off of the IPs in the books of RDTSPL based on a valuation ’
exercise undertaken by RDTSPL through an external agency, pursuant to which were
fully written off, on account of their obsolescence.
‘Write off of Building value of Rolta Tower 'C' due to fire in February 2020 162.84 -
Trade Receivables Written. Off 8.32 77.99
Excess Provisions and credit balances written back no longer Required written back (33.86) -
Old Advance Received from Customers — Written back (1.56) -
Goodwill Written off 44341 -
Amount payable to Rolta Private Limited no longer payable (25.72) -
Foregin Exchange Difference on account of adjustment stated at paragraph 48 below 138.37 (122.75)
Total 2,857.05 (44.76)
31. Income Taxes
a. Income tax expense recognized in the Statement of Profit/(Loss) are analysed as below:
(in ¥ Crore)
For the ended For the ended
Particulars 31‘mrr:: 2021 31'& 2020
Current taxes (1.46) (2.19)
Deferred taxes 405.96 178.05
Taxation of Earlier Year - 0.12
Total 404.50 175.98

b. Since the Company does not have an accounting profit in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020, the
reconciliation of the tax expense to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the profit before taxes has not been

presented.
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¢. The Parent Company has recognized net Deferred Tax Asset of ¥ 810.37 Crores after adjusting the Deferred Tax Liability of ¥ 584.91 Crores.
The Deferred Tax Asset has arisen mainly on account of business loss incurred during the year. Management is of the opinion that the
Company will be able to utilize the Deferred Tax Asset of X 558.57 Crores against taxable profit from future years based on orders in hand and
expected new orders for which negotiations are in an advanced stage. Accordingly, the Company has recognized the Deferred Tax Asset. The
projections of the future profitability have been examined and approved by the Board of Directors. Apart from above there are Deferred Tax
Assets in Subsidiaries which have been accounted for.

d. Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended 31st March, 2021 is as follows:

(in T Crore)
Deferred tax
Opening expense/ (income ;
A AN Closing balance
profit and loss)
Deferred tax assets
Business tax-loss carry forwards 2,309.15 132.21 - - 2,441.36
Retirement benefits liabilities 6,43 0.68 0.39 (7.64) (0.14)
Provision for doubtful debts 0.85 - - - 0.85
Long term capital loss carry forward 35.10 - - - 35.10
Others 29.67 - - - 29.67
Total (A) 2,381.20 132.89 0.39 (7.64) 2,506.85
Deferred tax liabilities
Tangible and intangible assets 538.00 (268.16) - - 269.84
Fair valuation of land & buildings 341.32 4.91) - - 336.41
Total (B) 879.32 (273.07) - - 606.25
Net deferred tax liability / (Assets)-[B-A] (1,501.88) (405.96) (0.39) 7.64 (1,900.59)
Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows:
(in ¥ Crore)

e Closing balance
profit and loss)
Deferred tax assets
Business tax-loss carry forwards 2,084.45 183.50 - 41.20 2,309.15
Retirement benefits liabilities 7.09 (0.09) 0.57) - 6.43
Provision for doubtful debts 0.78 - - 0.07 0.85
Long term capital loss carry forward 35.11 (0.01) - - 35.10
Others 39.27 (10.53) - 0.93 29.67
Total (A) 2,166.70 172.87 (0.57) 40.06 2,381.20
Deferred tax liabilities
Tangible and intangible assets 536.59 (0.26) - 1.67 538.00
Fair valuation of land & buildings 346.24 (4.92) - - 341.32
Total (B) 882.83 (5.18) - 1.67 879.32
Net deferred tax liability / (Assets)-[B-A] (1,283.87) (178.05) (0.57) (39.39) (1,501.88)
32. Expenditure on R&D (in  Crore)
For the ended For the ended

Particulars 3 mﬁ: 2021 31 Mﬁ 2020
Capital expenditure - -
Revenue Expenditure 11.67 18.69
Total 11.67 18.69
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33. Corporate Social Responsibility Activities
a.  Gross Amountrequired to be spent by the company during the year NIL (P.Y. NIL)

b. Amountspent during the yearon (in % Crore)

Yet to be paid
in cash

Construction / acquisition of any asset - _ _

Total

id. On purposes other than i. above - - -
Total - - -

34. Segment Reporting

a. In accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment”, the Company reviewed its activities in various IT Related
solutions and services and identified following two distinguishable Business activities as Primary Segments

i.  Enterprise Geospatial & Engineering Solutions,
ii.  System Integration & Enterprise IT Solutions
The disclosure requirement as per Ind AS 108 is as under

(in ¥ Crore)
Particulars SlstMarch, 2001 3ist Moeeh, 2000
Segment Revenue
Enterprise Geospatial & Engineering Solutions 222.94 404.09
System Integration & Enterprise IT Solutions 720.11 1,088.58
Net revenue from operations 943.05 1,492.67
Segment Profit/(loss) before tax, interest & depreciation
Enterprise Geospatial & Engineering Solutions 122.42 135.26
System Integration & Enterprise IT Solutions (180.91) (216.50)
Total (58.49) (81.29)
Unallocated
Less: Finance Costs 957.31 773.56
Less / (Add): Exchange difference gain / (loss) 4.72 44.16
Less: Depreciation and amortization expenses 125.04 247.67
Add: Other Income 333.86 10.98
Total Profit/(loss) before Tax (811.71) (1,135.65)
Exceptional Item 2,857.05 (44.76)
Profit/(Loss) after exceptional item before tax (3,668.76) (1,090.89)
Tax ( expense)/ benefit 404.50 175.98
Profit / (loss) for the year (3,264.26) (914.91)

b. Secondary segment reportisbased on Geographical locations. Revenue Attributable to different geographical segment is as follows:

(in ¥ Crore)
A For the year ended For the year ended
Geographical segments 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
India 9.54 6.31
Rest of the World 933.51 1,486.36
Total 943.05 1,492.67

Note on segment information: Segmental Capital Employed: PPE used in the company's business or liabilities contracted have not been identified
to any of the reportable segments. The company believes that it is currently not practicable to provide segment disclosures relating to total assets and
liabilities
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35 Related Parties
a. List of Related Parties and Relationships

Mr. K K Singh Chairman & Managing Director
.............. L tGenKTPa_mmk(Retd)JtMDuectorDefense&seqmty
MrDmeshkuma_rKapadm ......................................... Chlemeang gqaloﬁicer ...................................................................................
MsHeta_[Vlch]u ........................................................ Companysecremy .........................................................................................
B Execuuve Duector ..........................................................................................
(w.e.f 11* February, 2021)
MsHomalADa:uwa_ua ............................................ IndependentDuector ......................................................................................
MrRamnathPradeep ................................................ IndependentDuector ......................................................................................
.............. L tGenPPSBhandan(Retd)Independem])uector
.............. (UptO 117JaIUArY, 2021) | oo s
Mr. Ramdas Gupta Independent Director
.............. e
Rolta Private Limited Company controlled by Mr. K K Singh

Company controlled by Mr. K K Singh

Sunsolar Renewable Energy Private Limited

Charitable Trust in which Mr. K K Singh is a Trustee

b. Disclosures required for related parties transactions
(Current year's figures are shown in bold & comparative figures for the previous year are shown below the current year)

Enterprises over which
significant influence
Management
exercised by Key Mgmt,
Personnel P ]

1 Transactions during the year

Sale of IP — 10.00 10.00
Sale of Motor Car - 0.10 0.10
Interest on Royalty Expenses - 1.47 1.47
- 5.11 5.11

Reversal of Interest on Royalty Expenses -- 14.82 14.82
Interests on Inter Corporate Deposit taken - 121.06 121.06
- 103.40 103.40

Excess Provision for Expenses Written-Back - 6.32 6.32
Reversal of Royalty Payable - 19.40 19.40
Reimbursements of Expenses - 9.75 9.75
-- (0.01) (0.01)

Royalty Fees - - -
- 2.99 2.99

Managerial Remuneration (excluding Commission) 2,23 - 2,23
2.63 - 2.63

52-53



Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies And Other Explanatory Information to

the Consolidated Financial Statement
Asatand forthe year ended 31" March 2021

(in ¥ Crore)

Managerial Remuneration (Commission)
0.78 - 0.78
Directors Sitting Fees 0.33 - 0.33
0.34 - 0.34
Inter Corporate Deposit Taken - 10.04 10.04
2.22 222
Temporary Loans Taken - 20.76 20.76
Assignment of Trade Receivable to - 35.17 35.17
Corporate Gurantees Given - - -
- 514.55 514.55
Adjustment of receivables against loan liability - 2.00 2.00

I Closing Balances
Trade Payable - - _
- 6.64 6.64
Salary & Commission Payable 6.69 - 6.69
4.77 - 4.77
Inter Corporate Deposits Taken

i) Rolta Private Limited - 548.67 548.67
- 541.36 541.36
Corporate Guarantee - 940.00 940.00
- 940.00 940.00

c. Significant Transactions during the year

(in ¥ Crore)

Sale of IP
Rolta Private Limited - 5.00 5.00
Rolta Overseas Private Limited -~ 5.00 5.00
CY - TOTAL - 10.00 10.00
PY - TOTAL - —~ _
Sale of Motor Car
Rolta Private Limited - 0.10 0.10
CY - TOTAL - 0.10 0.10
PY - TOTAL - - _
Interest on Royalty Expenses
Rolta Private Limited -~ 1.47 1.47
- 5.11 5.11
CY - TOTAL - 1.47 1.47
PY - TOTAL - 5.11 5.11
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(in T Crore)

Reversal Interest on Royalty Expenses
Rolta Private Limite - 14.82 14.82
CY-TOTAL - 14.82 14.82
PY - TOTAL - - —
Interests on Inter Corporate Deposit taken
Rolta Private Limited - 121.06 121.06
- 103.40 103.40
CY-TOTAL - 121.06 121.06
PY-TOTAL -- 103.40 103.40
Reversal of Royalty Payable
Rolta Private Limited - 19.40 19.40
CY - TOTAL -- 19.40 19.40
PY - TOTAL - -- -
Reimbursements of Expenses
Rolta Private Limited -~ 4.29 4.29
- -0.01 -0.01
Rolta Overseas Pvt Ltd - 5.46 5.46
CY - TOTAL - 9.75 9.75
PY - TOTAL - (0.01) (0.01)
Royalty Fees
Rolta Private Limited - - -
-- 2.99 2.99
CY - TOTAL - - --
PY - TOTAL - 299 2.99
Managerial Remuneration (excluding Commission)
Mr. K.K.Singh - - -
Lt. Gen. K.T. Parnaik (Rtd.) 0.61 - 0.61
1.78 - 1.78
Mr. Dineshkumar Kapadia 0.78 - 0.78
0.77 - 0.77
Ms. Hetal Vichhi 0.09 - 0.09
0.08 - 0.08
Mr. Sateesh Dasari 0.75 - 0.75
CY - TOTAL 2.23 - 2.23
PY -TOTAL 2.63 - 2.63
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(in T Crore)

Managerial Remuneration (Commission)
Mr. KK Singh - - -
0.78 - 0.78
CY - TOTAL - - -
PY -TOTAL 0.78 - 0.78
Directors Sitting Fees
Lt.Gen.PPS Bhandari (Rtd.) 0.07 - 0.07
0.10 - 0.10
Mr. Ramnath Pradeep 0.11 - 0.11
0.13 - 0.13
Ms. Homai Ardeshir Daruwalla 0.10 - 0.10
0.11 - 0.11
Mr Ramdas Gupta 0.05 - 0.05
CY - TOTAL 0.33 - 0.33
PY -TOTAL 0.34 - 0.34
Inter Corporate Deposit Taken
Rolta Private Limited (ICD) Taken - 10.04 10.04
- 2.22 2.22
CY - TOTAL - 10.04 10.04
PY -TOTAL - 2.22 2.22
Excess Provision for Expenses Written-Back
Rolta Private Limited -- 6.32 6.32
CY - TOTAL -- 6.32 6.32
PY -TOTAL - - -
Temporary Loans Taken
Rolta Overseas Pvt Ltd -- 4.58 4.58
Rolta Private Limited -- 16.18 16.18
CY - TOTAL -- 20.76 20.76
PY -TOTAL - - -
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(in T Crore)

Adjustment of Receivables against Loans Liability
Rolta Overseas Pvt Ltd -- 1.00 1.00
Rolta Private Limited -- 1.00 1.00
CY - TOTAL - 2.00 2.00
PY -TOTAL - - —
Assignment of Trade Receivable to
Rolta Private Limited -- 32.63 32.63
Rolta Overseas Pvt Ltd - 2.54 2.54
CY - TOTAL -- 35.17 35.17
PY -TOTAL - - -
Corporate Guarantees Given
Rolta Private Limited - - -
- 514.55 514.55
CY - TOTAL - - -
PY -TOTAL - 514.55 514.55
CLOSING BALANCES
Trade Payable
Rolta Private Limited - -- -
- 6.64 6.64
CY -TOTAL - -- -
PY -TOTAL - 6.64 6.64
Salary & Commission Payable
Mr. KK Singh  Salary - -- -
Commission 3.17 - 3.17
3.17 - 3.17
Lt. Gen. K.T. Parnaik Salary 0.31 -- 0.31
0.36 - 0.36
Commission 1.10 -- 1.10
1.10 - 1.10
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(in ¥ Crore)

Mr. Sateesh Dasari Salary 0.41 - 0.41
Commission - - -
Mr. Dineshkumar Kapadia Salary 0.59 - 0.59
0.14 - 0.14
Commission 1.10 - 1.10
Mr. Hetal Vichhi Salary 0.01 - 0.01
Commission - - -
CY - TOTAL 6.69 - 6.69
PY -TOTAL 4.77 - 4.77
Inter Corporate Deposit Taken
Rolta Private Limited - 548.67 548.67
- 541.36 541.36
Corporate Gurantees Given
Rolta Private Ltd. - Counter Guarantees - 940.00 940.00
- 940 00 940 00

Notes:

a) Related party relationship is as identified by the group on the basis of information available.

b) Noamounthasbeen written off or written back during the year in respect of debts due from or to related parties, except what is stated above.

c) The Company hasentered into transactions with certain parties as listed above during the year under consideration. Full disclosures have been made and
the board considers such transactions to be in the normal course of business and at rates agreed upon between the parties.

d) Allloans to subsidiaries are given for meeting their working capital requirements.

e) Some of the Key Management Personnel are also covered under the Company’s Gratuity Plan along with the other employees of the Company which is

not included in the above disclosure.
36. EarningPer Share—EPS

EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year. Numbers used for calculating basic and diluted earnings per equity share are as stated below.

raiin el
a. | Before Exceptional Item
Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders for Basic EPS (in ¥ Cr.) (407.21) (959.67)
EPS ) Basic (24.55) (57.85)
EPS ) Diluted (24.43) (57.28)
— et
b. | After Exceptional Item
Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders for Basic EPS (in ¥ Cr.) (3,264.26) (914.91)
EPS (X ) Basic (196.77) (55.15)
EPS X ) Diluted (195.81) (54.61)
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Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Particulars Mo, 2021 31" M, 2020
Weighted nos. of shares for Basic Earnings per share 165,891,355 165,891,355
Adjusted on account of ESOPs 8,12,500 1,637,500
‘Weighted nos. of shares for Diluted Earnings per share 166,703,855 1,67,528,855

37. Contingent Liabilities not provided for

 Particalars utMacch, 2021 31st Masch, 2020
I. | Corporate guarantees issued to customers & third party 1,033.59 1,124.08
ii. | Bank Guarantee issued for projects 35.28 35.28
iii. | Claims against the company by customers and employees not acknowledged as debt 19.29 18.09

iv. | Disputed demands in respect of
« Sales tax and VAT 13.58 11.17
« Service tax 0.88 0.88
« GST 30.01 -

v ?_,iabilities, if any, in respe(;t o_f non c_:omp]ja.nce with _va.rious laws/acts and Amount not determinable
interest /penalty on such liabilities, if any, as may arise.

Notes:

38.

a) The Company's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company and proceedings pending with Tax and other Authorities
(including the cases, where the tax authorities have filed the appeal against the matters decided in favour of the Company). The Company
has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions wherever required and disclosed the
contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial statements the Company does not reasonably expect the outcome of these

proceedings to have a material impact on its financial statements.
Right of USE —Lease Assets and Lease Liabilities

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash

flows.
The group has applied the incremental borrowing rate to its lease liabilities.
The Summary of practical expedients elected on initial application.

a) Applied the exemption not to recognize ROU assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of

initial application.

b) Applied the practical expedient by not reassessing whether a contract is, or contains, a Iease at the date of initial application. Instead
applied the standards only to contracts that were previously identified asleases underInd AS 17.

The future obligation on account of non-cancellable Operating Leases, mainly for office premises, payable as per the rental status in respective
agreement are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
Upto 1 year - 10.04
Later than 1 years not later than 5 years - 18.32
Later than 5 years - -
Total - 28.36

39. Financial Instrument

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance
sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income
and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2h to the
financial statements.

(a) CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILIITIES
All financial assets and financial liabilities are valued at amortized cost.
(b)) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

There are no financial assets or liabilities of the Company which, after their initial recognition, have been fair valued either during the
year or in the previous year.
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() FINANCIAL RISKMANAGEMENT POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES:

The Company, in the course of its business, is exposed to a variety of financial risks, viz. market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk which
can adversely impact the financial performance. The Company’s endeavour is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and
seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company has a risk management policy that which not only
covers the foreign exchange risk but also other risks such as interest rate risk and credit risk which are associated with financial assets and
liabilities. The risk management policy of the Company is approved by its board of directors. The risk management framework focuses
on actively securing the Company’s short to medium terms cash flows by minimising the exposure to financial markets.

1.  Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the
price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates, equity price fluctuations, liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be
normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

A. Foreign currency exchange rate risk:

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have a potential impact on the consolidated statement of profit and loss and
equity. This arises from transactions entered into in foreign currency and assets/liabilities which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the Company.

Most of the transactions of the subsidiaries are dominated in the functional currency of the respective subsidiary. Other foreign currency
transactions entered into by the subsidiaries are immaterial. Therefore Foreign currency sensitivity analysis has been performed only by
the holding Company. A majority of the Holding Company's foreign currency transactions are denominated in US Dollars. Other
foreign currency transactions entered into by the Company are in Sterling Pound (GBP), Euro, Saudi Riyal, Canadian Dollar, Australian
Dollar and UAE Dirhams. However, the size of these transactions is relatively small in comparison to the US dollar transactions. Thus,
the foreign currency sensitivity analysis has only been performed in relation to the US Dollar (USD).

The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange rate risks. Further, in
accordance with its risk management policy, Company does not hedge its risks by using any derivative financial instruments.

Details of foreign currency exposure in USD are as follows:

(in T Crore)
As at 31" March, 2021 As at 31" March, 2020
Foreign Currency in Lakhs  (in¥Crore  Foreign Currency in Lakhs  (in3¥Crore
Trade Receivables USD 1.08 0.79 2.03 1.54
Trade payable UsD 3.42 2.50 3.40 2.56
Borrowings USD - - 403.85 304.45
Foreign Currency sensitivity

A 5% appreciation / depreciation of the USD with respect to INR would result in decrease / increase in the Company's net profit before
tax for the year ended 31st March, 2021 by approximately ¥ 0.16 Crores. / ¥0.16 Crores. respectively (previous year ended 31st March,
2020: ¥15.27 Crores. / ¥ 15.27 Crores. respectively).

B. Interestraterisk

The Groupis exposed to Interest rate risk because entities in the Group have borrowed funds at both fixed & floating interest rates. Interest
rate risk has been measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. Any movement in the reference rates could
have an impact on the Company's cash flows as well as costs.

The Group had borrowed through a number of financial instruments such as External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs), Rupee term
loans and working capital demand loans. The Group is subject to variable interest rates on some of these interest bearing liabilities. As at
the end of the current reporting period, the liability on account of ECBs has devolved on the parent Company and is now payable in
Indian Rupees.

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 50 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also assumes that
the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The year end
balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the year.

Based on the composition of net debt, a 50 basis points impact on interest rates over the 12 months period would result in Company's net
finance expense by approximately I+ 16.18 crores (previous year ended 31st March, 2020: ¥+ 16.18 crores).

2. Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or
obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as
concentration risks.

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables and loans.

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk

controls. The Company's policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. The Company management considers that all the
financial assets that are not impaired for each of the reporting dates under review are of good credit quality, including those that are past
due. None of the Company financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.
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In respect of receivables other than trade receivables, the Company's exposure to any significant credit risk exposure to any single
counterparty or any groups of counterparties having similar characteristics is considered to be negligible. The credit risk for liquid funds
and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external
credit ratings. The Company has customer concentration risk as around 50% of the customers are government department / semi-
government organization and public sector undertakings.

The Company's exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the balance sheet date.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the probability that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management
is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

The Company is presently facing a severe liquidity crisis, primarily on account of non-realization of its receivables, as a result of which it
hasnotbeen able to discharge its financial obligations.

40. Statement pursuant to details to be furnished for subsidiaries as prescribed by Companies Act, 2013

# | Name of entity As % of ¥ in crores As % of ¥ in crores As%of | Tin crores As % of % in crores
consoli- consolida- consolidated consolidated
dated ted profit other compr- total
net assets or loss ehensive comprehensive
income income
Holding Company:
Rolta India Limited 44% (3,248.06) 97% (3,161.69) 100% 1.49 97% (3,160.20)
Subsidiaries
Indian
1 | Rolta Defence
Technology Systems -8% 564.43 -8% 250.76 0% 0.01 -8% 250.77
Pvt Ltd
2 | Rolta Bl and
BIG Data 0% (11.01) 0% (5.11) 0% - 0% (5.11)
Analytics Pvt Ltd
Rolta Thales Ltd 0% (0.09) 0% (0.01) 0% - 0% (0.01)
Foreign
1 i{noclta International 23% (1,683.99) 0% (274.82) 0% - * (274.82)
2| Rolta Saudi 0% (28.32) 0% 2.82) 0% - 0% 2.82)
3 | Rolta Middle East -
FZLLC (702.35) (69.53) (69.53)
4 | Rolta UK Ltd (462.91) (2.19) - 2.19)
Rolta Global B.V (288.26) (42.78) - (42.78)
:‘:jt::t;li;ﬁnauon/ 20% (1,506.93) 1% 43.95 0% - 1% 43.95
Total 100% (7,367.48) 100% (3,264.25) 100% 1.50 100% (3,262.76)

41. Pursuant to the execution of a definitive Restructuring Services Agreement (RSA) entered with the Streamcast Group on August 6, 2019,
under the terms of which the Streamcast Group will assist Rolta India Ltd., its group companies and its subsidiaries in repayment and
restructuring of its liabilities, the Company expects that this along with the valuable IPs that the Company and its subsidiaries possess, would
also result in getting more orders in due course, after the investment of Streamcast Group has been received as per RSA subject to receipt of
statutory approval by them. The Streamcast Group has been vigorously following up for the said international approval but have been delayed
due to COVID -19 situation World over. After restructuring of the business, the management of the Company is confident, that the business
will improve substantially. Under the circumstances, the Management of the Company is of the view that the Company continues to be a going
concern.

42. The Company has recognized deferred tax asset on the incremental tax losses during the period as the management is of the view that the
Company will be able to generate enough taxable profits in the subsequent years for setting off the accumulated losses, in view of what is stated
innote 41 above.

43. InFebruary 2020, Tower C which is situated in the same complex as the Corporate Office caught fire due to a short circuit, causing substantial
damage to the building and the assets housed therein. The police panchanama was done at that time. Company has received a Structural
Survey Report from the Surveyor appointed by the Company, who has recommended to demolish the entire building due to severe damages to
the Structural work of the building and recommended for new construction.

Accordingly, the Company has written off ¥. 162.84 Crores towards cost of net Written Down Value of the building as on 31.3.2020 in the
books. The Company has applied for the insurance claim and it is under process of being settled towards cost of buildings, furniture and
computer systems and other equipments.
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44,

45.

47.

49,

50.

51.

52.
53.

Unbilled receivable includes an amount of ¥.274.83 crores receivable from a Government Department towards maintenance and support
services provided by the holding Company, at the request of the user department, pending renewal of the contract. The process for approval of
this amount is almost at the last stage of finalisation and the Company is confident of recovering the amount at an early date.

Union Bank of India and certain Bondholders have filed application in NCLT seeing relief under Section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code. The said petition is still to be heard for admission.

. Union Bank of India, Central Bank of India, Bank of Baroda and Syndicate Bank (now owned by Canara Bank) have filed Securitisation

Application (SA) in DRT Court, Mumbai and the company is contesting the same and the said applications are pending in the DRT-1 Court,
Mumbeai.

The National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) uploaded on 25th May,2021 on their website the appointment of Interim Resolution
Professional (IRP) vide order dated 13th May 2021 by NCLT by admitting the application of certain ex-employees of Rolta India Ltd
(CP1069/2020) and its subsidiary Rolta BI Big Data Analytics Pvt Ltd (CP 1370/2020) and Rolta Defence Technology Systems Pvt. Ltd (CP
1032/2020). The IRP took control of the company on 25/05/2021 from Board of Directors and started the CIRP process.

The company thereafter entered into a settlement agreement with concerned ex-employees and submitted to NCLT. Subsequent to the
submission of these agreements before the NCLT, the NCLT did not consider the said Settlement Agreement and continued the IRP process.
Based on the above order of NCLT, the Company and its subsidiaries mentioned above filed petitions before NCLAT and NCLAT was pleased
to stay the appointment of “Committee of Creditors” vide its orders No. CA 384 of 2021, CA 382 OF 2021 dated 28.05.2021.

Thereafter, on behalf of the Company, Mr. Kamal K. Singh, challenged the NCLT Orders in the Hon'ble Supreme Court by filing a Special
Leave Petition and the Hon'ble Supreme Court was pleased to pass the orders for dismissal of the CIRP process by NCLT for Rolta India Ltd
vide its order No.CA 4993 of 2021 dated 25.08.2021. Further, the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order No. 5028 of 2021 dated 27/08/2021
and Order No. 5679 of 2021 dated 27/08/2021 passed the Orders dismissing the IRP in respect of Rolta BI Big Data Analytics Private Ltd and
Rolta Defence Technology Systems Private Ltd.

Thereafter, the Board of Directors was reinstated based on the said orders of the Hon'ble Supreme Court, Immediately after taking control of
the company and its subsidiaries, the Management started compliances and finalisation of its books of accounts for the year ended
3170372021 and the same have been audited and approved by the Audit Committee and by the Board as on today's date

. The Company has adjusted in its book the amount receivable from its US subsidiary, Rolta International Inc.(RUS) arising from devolvement

of Standby Letters of Credit (SBLC) and interest thereon against long term export advances received. Further, the company has also adjusted
amount payable to step down subsidiary of RUS against the SBLC dues receivable from RUS. The Company has made necessary applications
stating the above facts to Reserve Bank of India for their permission for adjusting the amount receivable from RUS against the amount payable
to them, which is still awaited.

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has impacted and continues to impact the operations of the Company. The Management of the Company
continues to monitor the situation closely. However as there is a uncertainty regarding as to when the situation will return to normalcy, it is
currently not possible to ascertain the complete impact of the pandemic on the Company.

Company's current bank accounts (except for current account with Axis Bank where inward foreign remittances were not permitted) were
attached by the Income Tax Department (TDS division) during September 2019. In absence of operating Current accounts, the export
remittances from RIL's overseas subsidiaries were received by the Group Companies Rolta Private Limited (RPL) and Rolta Overseas Private
Limited (ROPL) by way of assignments of Invoices raised on RIL's overseas subsidiaries and the funds so received were utilised / transferred to
RIL's accounts with Axis Bank for meeting the operational expenses.

The Company has adjusted the funds so received by RPL and ROPL from overseas subsidiaries against the export Invoices raised on these
subsidiaries. The above adjustment by the Company is supported by an opinion from a legal firm.

In respect of the international subsidiaries wherein the 'Senior Notes 2013' (Bond 1) amounting to USD 126.65 million which was due for
repayment on May 16, 2018 & 'Senior Notes 2014' (Bond 2) amounting to USD 372.36 million which was due for repayment on July 24, 2019,
both of which continue to be outstanding, the international subsidiaries have not made any further provision for interest for the period from
May 17, 2018 to March 31, 2020 on Bond 1 and from July 25, 2019 to March 31, 2020 on Bond 2, on the grounds that the respective Bond
indentures are not specific on payment of interest on the outstanding loan amount beyond the date of their maturity.

Other Comprehensive Income is not to be considered for the purpose of computation of earning per share as perInd AS.

Previous period figures are regrouped /rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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Chairman & Managing Director Director Director

DIN: 00260977 DIN: 00365880 DIN: 02608230

For J. Kala & Associates % e Z-YMM& j’ﬂ &« ~—

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 118769W Ramdas B Gupta Lt. Gen. K-F-Parnaik (Rtd.) Sateesh Dasari

Director Joint Managing Director Executive Director

w DIN: 08431597 DIN: 07129253 DIN: 09042563
~ D Folapodly T e
Jayesh KalaPartner

Membership No. 101686 Dineshkumar Kapadia Hetal Vichhi
UDIN:21101686AAAACHS204 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Mumbai Mumbai

2nd November, 2021 2nd November, 2021



Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Tothe

Board of Directors of Rolta India Limited
Qualified Opinion

‘We have audited the accompanying statement of standalone financial results of
Rolta India Limited (“the Company”) for the quarter and year ended March 31,
2021 (“the Statement”), being submitted by the Company pursuant to the
requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015, as amended (Listing Regulations').

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Statement:

a. is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the
Listing Regulations; and

b. except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for
qualified opinion paragraph below, gives a true and fair view in conformity
with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net loss, total
comprehensive loss and other financial information of the Company for
the quarter and for the year ended March 31,2021.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

‘We draw attention to Note 12 of the Statement. The Company has adjusted in its
book the amount receivable from its US subsidiary, Rolta International Inc.(RUS)
arising from devolvement of Standby Letters of Credit (SBLC) and interest
thereon against long term export advances received. Further, the company has
also adjusted amount payable to step down subsidiary of RUS against the SBLC
dues receivable from RUS. The Company has made necessary applications stating
the above facts to Reserve Bank of India for their permission for adjusting the
amount receivable from RUS against the amount payable to them, which is still
awaited.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the “Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results” section of our
report. We are independent of the Company, in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant toouraudit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the standalone
financial results.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

‘We draw attention to Note 4 of the Statement. The Company has incurred a net
loss of Rs.424.23 crores and Rs.3268.87 crores for the quarter and year ended
March 31, 2021, respectively, continuing liquidity crunch, applications pending
against the Company in NCLT/DRT and the significant fall in revenues coupled
with the continuing COVID 19 lockdown indicate that presently a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. The management of the Company has represented
that with the Restructuring Services Agreement (RSA) entered into with the
Streamcast Group, continuing to be effective, and the Streamcast Group
continuing to work on the implementation of the RSA, the Company continues to
be a going concern.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Emphasis of Matter

a. ‘We draw attention to Note 14. Company's current bank accounts (except
for Current account with Axis Bank where inward foreign remittances were
not permitted) were attached by the Income Tax Department (TDS
division) during September 2019. In absence of operating Current
accounts, the export remittances from Company's overseas subsidiaries
were received by the Group Companies Rolta Private Limited (RPL) and
Rolta Overseas Private Limited (ROPL) by way of assignments of Invoices

raised on Companies overseas subsidiaries and the funds so received were
utilised / transferred to RIL's account with Axis Bank for meeting the
operational expenses.

The Company has adjusted the funds so received by RPL and ROPL from
RILs overseas subsidiaries against the export Invoices raised on these
subsidiaries.

The above adjustment by the Company is supported by an opinion from a
legal firm.

‘We draw attention to Note 3 of the statement. An order of Supreme Court
of The State of New York, County of New York, has been passed on
September 02, 2020 in favour of certain Bondholders for an amount of US
§ 183 million (approx) inclusive of interest at 9% upto September 02, 2020
against the Company and six International Subsidiaries of the Company.
Further a turnover order dated October 20, 2020 on a motion submitted by
the plaintiffs, was passed by the said Hon'ble Court in New York in favour
of the Plaintiffs, directing the defendants to turn over their cash on hand
and their stock / membership interest owned in certain subsidiaries of the
company. The international defendants except Rolta India Ltd. filed
voluntary Chapter — 11 proceedings in the United States Bankruptcy Court
for the Northern District of Alabama in the U.S. on October 29, 2020. By
virtue of this filing, enforcement of the judgment against the international
defendants has been stayed. The Federal Bankruptcy Court has finally
rejected Chapter 11 proceedings in April 2021.

Thereafter, Rolta International Inc., has filed appeal on May 17, 2021
against the rejection of Federal Court in District Court of Alabama which
is the Appellate Court. This appeal is still pending. Since now all the
international companies are outside of Bankruptcy, they continue to
function normally. accordingly the company continues to recognise the
balances in their books as they appear on that date. Rolta India Ltd. has
filed a suit no. 33962020 dated November 10, 2020 in Hon'ble Bombay
High Court with the main prayer to grant interim injunction and declare
that the summary judgement dated September 2, 2020 and turnover order
dated October 20, 2020 cannot be executed by the Plaintiffs against the
defendants. The hearing for said suit are ongoing.

Supreme Court of New York appointed a receiver vide its order dated 17th
June, 2021 against RUS and Rolta India Ltd. The said Court of New York
further appointed a receiver against other subsidiaries of Rolta India Ltd
vide its order dated August, 24, 2021. Such receiver had also issued a letter
dated September 3, 2021 for holding a meeting to remove the Board of RUS
on 13th September, 2021. However, the Receiver hasbeen informed by the
Legal Advisor of Rolta India Ltd in US that the said meeting is not valid
as summary judgement dated Sept., 2020 and Turnover Order of
October,2020 against Rolta India Ltd and its subsidiary Rolta Global BV
has notbeen domesticated in India and Netherland. The matter remains
disputed and is now with the Honourable Supreme Court of New York
County for taking the decision in the matter.

Notwithstanding these developments, the Company continues to carry in
it's books the amount receivable from these entities amounting to Rs 2.64
crores.

‘We draw attention to Note 5 of the Statement as per which, during the year
ended March 31, 2021, the Company has incurred a business loss of
Rs.3268.87 crores, on which it has recognized an incremental Deferred Tax
Asset of Rs.107.17 crores. The net Deferred Tax Asset attributable to
unabsorbed business loss as at March 31, 2021 recognized by the Company
amounts to Rs.810.37 crores. The Management of the Company is of the
view that for the reasons mentioned in the said Note 4, the Company will be
able to generate taxable profits in the future for setting off the accumulated
business losses.

‘We draw attention to Note 7 of the Statement in which the Management of
the Company has represented that in respect of long outstanding amounts
aggregating Rs. 274.83 crores receivable from a Government department,
the process towards recovering the said amount continues to be at advanced
stage.

We draw attention to Note 13 of the Statement, as regards the
Management's evaluation to the extent to which COVID-19 pandemic will
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impact the performance of the Company dependent on the future
developments, which are highly uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone financial
statements.

The Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Staterent that gives a true and fair view of the net loss and other comprehensive
income and other financial information, in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records, in
accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement, that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement, as
a whole, is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually, or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users, taken on the basis of the Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion through a separate report on the complete set of financial
statements on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Board of Directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone

financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement,
including the disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the standalone financial statements.

‘We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

‘We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

L Due to the COVID 19 pandemic and the resultant lockdown and other
restrictions imposed by the Government and local authorities, the audit
processes were carried out based on the remote access to the records and
documents which were made available by the management through digital
medium.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

ii.  In the Statement, the figures of the financial results as reported for the
quarter ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are the balancing
figures between audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the
published year to date figures upto the end of the third quarter of the
relevant financial year, which figures were subjected to a limited review.

The standalone financial results for the corresponding quarter and year
ended March 31, 2020 were audited by the previous auditors who
expressed a qualified opinion on those results on July, 15, 2020.

For J. Kala & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:118769W

&

Jayesh Kala

Partner

Membership No.: 101686
UDIN: 21101686AAAACD5621

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 02, 2021



Independent Auditors’ Report

To The

Members of Rolta India limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

‘We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Rolta
India Limited (“the Company”), which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2021, its loss (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
thatdate.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We draw attention to Note 41 of the standalone financial statements. The
Company has adjusted in its book the amount receivable from its US subsidiary,
Rolta International Inc. (RUS) arising from devolvement of Standby Letters of
Credit (SBLC) and interest thereon against long term export advances received.
Further, the company has also adjusted amount payable to step down subsidiary
of RUS against the SBLC dues receivable from RUS. The Company has made
necessary applications stating the above facts to Reserve Bank of India for their
permission for adjusting the amount receivable from RUS against the amount
payable to them, which is still awaited.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics.

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 42 of the Standalone financial statements. The
Company has incurred a loss before tax of Rs. 3,268.87 crores for the year ended
March 31, 2021. Continuing liquidity crunch, applications pending against the
Company in NCLT/DRT and the significant fall in revenues coupled with the
continuing COVID 19 lockdown indicate that presently a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. The Management of the Company has represented that with the
Restructuring Services Agreement (RSA) entered into with the Streamcast
Group, continuing to be effective, and the Streamcast Group continuing to work
on the implementation of the RSA, the Company continues to be a going concern.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Emphasis of Matters:

(i) We draw attention to Note 43 to the standalone financial statement
regarding Company's current bank accounts (except for Current account
with Axis Bank where inward foreign remittances were not permitted) were
attached by the Income Tax Department (TDS division) during September
2019. In absence of operating Current accounts, the export remittances
from Company's overseas subsidiaries were received by the Group
Companies Rolta Private Limited (RPL) and Rolta Overseas Private
Limited (ROPL) by way of assignments of Invoices raised on Companies
overseas subsidiaries and the funds so received were utilised / transferred to
RIL's account with Axis Bank for meeting the operational expenses.

The Company has adjusted the funds so received by RPL and ROPL from
RILs overseas subsidiaries against the export Invoices raised on these
subsidiaries.

The above adjustment by the Company is supported by an opinion from a
legal firm.

(i) We draw attention to Note 40 of the standalone financial statement
regarding an order of Supreme Court of The State of New York, County of
New York, has been passed on September 02, 2020 in favour of certain
Bondholders for an amount of US $ 183 million (approx.) inclusive of
interest at 9% upto September 02, 2020 against the Company and six
International Subsidiaries of the Company. Further a turnover order dated
October 20, 2020 on a motion submitted by the plaintiffs, was passed by the
said Hon'ble Court in New York in favour of the Plaintiffs, directing the
defendants to turn over their cash on hand and their stock / membership
interest owned in certain subsidiaries of the company. The international
defendants except Rolta India Ltd. filed voluntary Chapter - 11 proceedings
in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of
Alabama in the US. on October 29, 2020. By virtue of this filing,
enforcement of the judgment against the international defendants has been
stayed. The Federal Bankruptcy Court has finally rejected Chapter 11
proceedings in April 2021.

Thereafter, Rolta International Inc., has filed an appeal on May 17, 2021
against the rejection of Chapter 11 proceedings in Federal Court in District
Court of Alabama which is the Appellate Court.

Rolta India Ltd. has filed a suit no. 3396/2020 dated November 10, 2020 in
Hon'ble Bombay High Court with the main prayer to grant interim
injunction and declare that the summary judgement dated September 2,
2020 and turnover order dated October 20, 2020 cannot be executed by the

Plaintiffs against the defendants. The hearing for said suit are ongoing.

Supreme Court of New York appointed a receiver vide its order dated 17th
June 2021 against RUS and Rolta India Ltd. The said Court of New York
further appointed a receiver against other subsidiaries of Rolta India Ltd
vide its order dated August 24, 2021, Such receiver had also issued a letter
dated September 3, 2021, for holding a meeting to remove the Board of
RUS on 13th September, 2021. However, the Receiver has been informed
by the Legal Advisor of Rolta India Ltd. in US that the said meeting is not
valid as summary judgement dated Sept.,2020 and Turnover Order of
October,2020 against Rolta India Ltd and its subsidiary Rolta Global BV
has not been domesticated in India and Netherland. The matter remains
disputed and is now with the Honourable Supreme Court of New York
County for taking the decision in the matter.

Notwithstanding these developments, the Company continues to carry in
its books the amount receivable from these entities amounting to Rs 2.64
crores.

(iii) We draw attention to Note 30(C) of the Standalone Financial Statements,
during the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has incurred a
business loss of Rs. 3,268.87 crores, on which it has recognized an
incremental Deferred Tax Asset of Rs. 107.17 crores. Carrying amount of
the net Deferred Tax Asset as at March 31, 2021 is Rs. 810.37 crores. The
Management of the Company is of the view that for the reasons mentioned
in the Note 42, it will be able to generate taxable profits in the future for its
reversal.

(iv) We draw attention to Note 48 of the Standalone Financial Statement, the
Management of the Company has represented that in respect of long
outstanding amounts aggregating Rs. 274.83 crores receivable from the
Government department, the process towards recovering the said amount
continues to be at advanced stage,

(v) We draw attention to Note 49 of the Standalone Financial Statement, as
regards the Management's evaluation to the extent to which COVID-19
pandemic will impact the performance of the Company dependent on the
future developments, which are highly uncertain.

Ouropinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Key AuditMatters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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i
o

1 Accuracy of booking of revenmes in respect of
fixed price ongolng contracts involving
critical estimates

Estimatc of cifort is a critical cstimaic to
determine revenues in case of ongoing
contracts. This estimate has a high inherent
uncertainty as it requires consideration of
progress of the contract, efforis incurred till
date and efforts required o complete the

Refer note no. 2(b) to the standalone financial
statements

Auditor's Response:
Principal Andit Procedures

Qur audit approach was a combination of test
of internal controls and substantive procedures
‘which included the following:

. Evaluatmg the design ol' internal

conirols relating to of efforts

incurred and estimation of efforts

required to complete the performance
obligations;

. Testing the access and apphcaunn

prevents unauthorised changes to
recording of effarts incurred;

. Selecting a sample of conimcts and
thorough. inspection of evidemee of
performance of these controls, testing

controls relating to efforts incurred and
estimated;

. Selactmg a sample of contracts and
a retrospective review of
effarts incurred with estimated efforts, so
as to identify significant variations and
vmfywhﬂhcﬂhosevamnmxhawheen
in the
efforts to complete the contract;

. Reviewing a sample of contracts with
unbilled revenues to identfy possible
delays in achicving milcstones, which

obligations; and

Perﬁ:rming analytical
testing details for scasonsblencss of
incurred and estimated efforts,

Key Aundit

of disdosed

in respect of Corporate and Bank Guarantees
given and indirect tax matters

A.ulMan:hSl 2021, lbe&)mpanyha:given

smmnomnmldbymd.hdaandulsohu
significant tax exposures and is subject to
penod.u: asscssments/ demands by tax

on income tax and a range of
mdneamxmm

Refer 1o our comment in para (i) of the the
Bmphasis of marcrs scction of the report,

Auditor's Response
Principal Audit Procedures

Obtained management's assessment in respect
of key tax matiers and status of the various
carporate and bank guarantees issued as to
‘whether cutflow is either probable, possible or
remote,

Obtaining an understanding of the risk analysis
performed by the company, with the relating
supporting documentation and srudying
written. sticments from internal / cxtcrnal
legal experts, where applicable.

Munag:m:nt judgement is involved in
assessing whether an obligation exists and
‘whether a provision should be recognised as at
Balance sheet date or the disclosure thereof as
contingent liabilities.

‘We congidered this a key sndit matter ae:

(@) The amounrs involved are significant to
the gtandalone financial staterments.

[1V] Change in the mapagement's
Judgemenls and estimates _may
affect the
recognised or contingent liabilities
disclosed.

the adequ of di madc in
thegtandalome financial staterments,

Based on the above procedures, we considered
the b i

s in
iions and disclogi ingent liabili
in respect of the staed tax matters, as

reasonable.

2 Noan repayment of principal and interest doe
thereon in respect of borrowings

Non rcpayment of barrowings is one of the
events/ conditions that may cast significant
doubt on a Company's ability to contime as &
going concern.

The Compmyhu defaulted in repayment of

and interest duc thereon, aggregating
Rs. 4,962.65 crores, in respect of Secured
Bmvwmydemhng Capital Term Loans
taken from various banks,

Further, the aforesaid amount also includes
Uabl.l]ty on mmtof devolvement of Letter of

Refer note no. 18 to the standalone financial
statements

Principal Andit Procedures

‘We obtained details of principal and interest
duc thereon to various banks as et March 31,
2021, from the Management and confirmed the

ancumcy of the amounts outstanding pqynble
inst cach of

Disclosure of exceptional items of Rs.
2,417.19 Crores in Statement of Profit & Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2021 [Refer note
29 to the Standalone financial statcments for
the year ended March 31, 2021]

Certain items of income or cxpense within
profit or loss from ordinary activity is of such
size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is
relevant to cxplain the performance of the
Company for ihe yw, t.he nakureudamaum

Principal Audit Procedures:

Asgessing the appropriateness of the
eppiicd in ining the
recoverable amount

Placing the reliance on the impairment repart
determining the recoverable value of the IP's

Obtained from the management, the details of
the reversals made by the company during the

3 Non-payment of statirtory dues

During the year, the Company has defanlted in
depositing statutory dues with various
euthoritics. As at March 31, 2021, the
Qmpmy has mx deposltcd the folluwing

smatutory dues

(a) Tax Deducted at Source —Rs. 27.65
crores,

(®) Provident Pund (including Pension)
-Rs3.91 crores

() Profestion Tax-Rs. 0.28 crores
(d) ESIC-R20.07 crores

(c) Salcs tax and Service tax - Rs. 3.36
crores

Principal Andit Procedures

Obtained details inchuding ageing of various
statutory dues payable by the Company to

various authoritics as at March 31,2021, from
the Management.

Confirmed the accuracy of the stattory ducs
payable, as at March 31, 2021, to various
um.hcmues from lh: ml.evml documents,

ined by the

Q)mpnnylbrnchofﬂwmdduq

of suchi items. year ended March 31, 2021, along with the
inter-company confirmations after
‘We cansidered this a key andit marter ne: i flisct of such | entri
@ T involved are significant to i that the ing and /ar
the standalone financial statements. diaclosure as the case may be in the standalone
financial statements is in accordance with the
()  Involves a Tegal counsel/
udg:m:nu end assessment that may
affect the p
reCo,
© TImpairment of receivable from a
subsidiary in respect of the business
(IP) ransferred, which has been written
off by the said subsidiary based on the
valuetion exercise carried out by
external agency.
10. Recuverbility of carrying valve of financial Principal Audit Procedures:
mmmnhnlnvenmgm:,hmmcdnblu,
dloans. A i the i of the
eppiied in ining the
The assessmenr of recoverable amount of the recoverable amount

Company’s investments, trade receivables,
unbilled revenue (contract assets) and loans is
considered as significant risk area in view of the
matcriality of the amounts involved,
judgements involved in determining of
impairment/ recoverability of the carrying
vatue of the investment or other nlbruud
financial assets, which includes

Vcrification that the accounting and /or
diaclosure as the case may be in the standalone
financial statements is in accordance with the
assessment of management.

Refertothe comments in para if) and (iv) of the
of matters”

conditions and financial indicators of lh:
parties from whom these amounts are
recoverable, such as current business
opcrations, opders in

future business plan and the latest

correspondence with them.

section of thereport.

4 Adjugtment of certain payable and receivable Rgﬂnmmemmmﬁarmﬂdmm-
balances of two subsidiaries and pending section of the report.
upproval from the Reserve Bank of India in
thisregard.

5 Company's inward foreign remittances Refer to the comments in para (i) of the
recetved in the bank accoumts of the group “Emphasis of Matiers” section of the report
companies.

6 Recognition of deferred tnx assets. (Carrying Refer to the comments in para (iii) of the
amount of net Deferred tax aosets “Emphasis of Matters™ section of thereport
toRs. 810.37 crore).

7 of Principal Audit Procedures
of Going Concern Assessment: . 5

Obtained an understanding of the process and
has madc an of the tested the internal controls associated with the

Company's ability to continue as a Going
Concern as required by ind AS1 Prescnation
of Financial Statements considering all the
available information and has concluded that
the gaing concern basis of accounting is
appropriate.

Going Concern assessment hu been ndcnuﬁed

management’s assessment of Going Concern
essumption.

Discussed with management and assessed the
el ‘end et p

n
developing business plan and cash flow
projectians having regards to past performance
andcumlemagmgbunne-mdaaﬂemng

as.a key audit maner
judgements and estimates luvolved i the

end its d upon
management's ability to complete the planned
implementation of Restructuring Service
Agreement (RSA) entered with the Streamcast
Group iocluding the possible option to
refinancing of ceriain current financial
obligations

dindustry.
Status of the Restructuring service agrecment
(RSA) entered with ihe Shmmmn Group and
for fRSA.

Assessed the adequacy of the disclosurcs in the
standalonc Ind AS financial statement

Algo refer to the comments in the "Material
Uncerainty Related to Going Concern” to the
Report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's

report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other
information. The Other information comprises the information included in the
Board's Report including Annexures to the Board report, but does not include the

standalone financial statement and our auditor's report thereon.

Our qualified opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance / conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Respongsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the

Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
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performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
€rror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the standalone financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial control system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
n our auditor's report to the related disclosures i the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial
statements that individually or in aggregate makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of an identified misstatements in the standalone
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in mternal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The opening balances as of April 1, 2020 have been taken based on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 audited by the predecessor
independent auditor who vide their report dated July 15, 2020 have expressed a
modified opinion. Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Pursuant to the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of ouraudit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and records.

() The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss (including other
comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

(d) In our opinion, except for the matters stated in the Basis for qualified
opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014.

() Onthe basis of the written representation received from the directors as
on March 31, 2021 taken on records by the Board of Directors, none of
the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a Directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure “B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with the requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its

directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section

197 of the Act.

(h)  With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's report in
accordance with the rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given tous:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on
it financial performance in its standalone financial statements.
(Refer note nos. 37 , 40, 45, 46 and 47 of the standalone financial
statements).

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

iii. The Company has not transferred an amount of Rs. 1,800
pertaining to dividend which is unclaimed for more than seven
years, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company. (Refer note no 51 to standalone financijal statements).

For J. Kala & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:118769W

%

Jayesh Kala

Partner

Membership No. - 101686
UDIN: 21101686AAAACG6704

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 02, 2021
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ROLTA INDIA LIMITED

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date)

i.  Fixed Assets (Property, Plant & Equipment)

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.

b)  As explained to us, according to the practice of the Company,
fixed assets are physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable,
considering the size of the company and nature of its business.

¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of
the Company.

ii. The Company is a service company, primarily rendering software

No deposits have been accepted by the Company within the meaning
of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost
records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services
rendered by the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi)
of the Order are not applicable.

ii. (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and

on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company is
not regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income-tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), duty
of customs, cess and other material statutory dues during the
year with the appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues were
outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable except
the following dues:

iv.

services. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Hence,
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has granted interest free unsecured loans to its four
companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act').

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on the audit procedures conducted by us, we are of the
opinion that the terms and conditions of loans granted by the
company to four body corporates covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, 'the
balance outstanding of which as at April 01, 2021 was Rs 214.85
crores and has it March 31, 2021 is Rs. 2.11 crores' are prejudicial
to the company's interest on account of the fact that the loans
have been granted without any underlying agreement. These
loans are interest free which is unreasonable against the cost of
funds to the company.

(b) In the case of the loans granted to the body corporates listed in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Act, there is no
fixed schedule for repayment of the principal since the loans have
been granted withoutany underlying agreement.

(¢) According to information and explanations given to us, as there
are no agreements and the repayment schedule has not been
specified, there are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan
granted to a body corporate listed in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, during the year, there are no loans, investments, guarantees
and securities given in respect of which the provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Actare applicable and hence not commented upon.

Profession Tax 0.25 7-32 Months
Provident & Pension Fund 453 7-32Months
ESIC & Labour Welfare Fund 0.05 7-32Months
TDS 2341 7-35 Months
GST (RCM) 0.02 7 Months
B e | 193] ovents

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no dues of income tax, GST, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, value added tax and cess which have been not deposited

on account of any dispute except the following disputed dues:

_ A eprnt Period to which Fmg_im wl%r_.te
Name of Statute ®s o crores) the amount dispute is
a related pending
Income Tax 82.52 | AY 2015-16 Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Finance Act, 0.15| FY2013-14 Commissioner
1994 - Service Tax| 0.37| FY 201415 of Service Tax
0.36| FY 2015-16 (Appeals)
Central Sales Tax 0.49| FY 2008-09 Deputy
Commissioner
0.59| FY 2014-15 of Sales Tax
6.36 | FY 2015-16
Mabharashtra 1.08| FY 2008-09 Deputy
Value Added Tax Commissioner
0.32| FY 201415 of Sales Tax
2.32| FY 2015-16
Goods and Service 20.63| FY 2017-18 Director General
Tax (Input Tax of GST
Credit) Intelligence
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viii. During the year, the Company neither had any loan from financial

Name of the Natoreofloem Amount of Defundt

institutions, government and nor any outstanding dues to debenture
holders. The Company had defaulted in repayment of borrowings to
the following banks:

Hank.

ot March 31, 2021 (R
inow)

Union Bank of March 26, 2018 | Continuing
India Commercial till date Default
Banks
Bank of Baroda
Bank of India
(Cansortium
Balance)
UBL-ECB-Rupee | Rupee Term 180.58 March 26, 2018 | Continuing
Term Loan Loan till date Default
Bank of Baroda External 68.86 Janmary 26, 2018 | Continuing
Commercial till date Default
Banks
Syndicate Bank Term Loan 36.68 March 31, 2019 | Continuing
till date Default
Bank of Baroda Working Capital 180.56 September 29, | Continuing
term loan - I 2018 Default
Central Bank of 155.34 December 28,
India 2018
Union Bank of 401.07 December 28,
India 2018
Bank of India 270.16 December 31,
2018
(All the above
loans are
outstanding  till
date)
Bank of Baroda Working Capital 195.66 December 31, | Continuing
term Joan - IT 2017 till date defoult
Union Bank of 31124
India
Bank of India 21198
Bank of Baroda Overdraft 117.26 December 2017 | Continuing
till dates defoult
Central Bank of 39.89 Jan 18 till date
India
Union Bank of 241.95 February 2018 till
India date
Bank of India 204.81 November 2017 | Continuing
till date Default
Central Bank of | LC devalvement 113.00 BetweenMarch7, | Cantinuing
India 2018 to July 29, | Default
2018 ill date
Union Bank of 54.91 Between April 18
India 2018 to July 17,
2018 - till date
Syndicate Bank SBLC invoked 1811.56 Between Continuing
November 01, | default
Central Bank of 2018 to January
India 23, 2019 till date
Union Bank of
India
Bank of India
Central Bank of | BG Invocation 2171 Between March | Continuing
India 18, 2019 to | defoult
Jaruary 08, 2020
Union Bank of —till date
India
Bank of India

ix.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not taken any term loans during the year.
The Company has not raised any money by way of Initial public offer
or further public offer (including debt instrument) during the year or in
therecent past.

Xiv.

Xvi.

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 02, 2021

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted
auditing practices in India and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by
the management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the books and records of the Company, the
Company has paid / provided for the managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and based

on our examination of the records of the Company, all the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Act and all the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standard.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year or in the recent
past. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions prescribed
under Section 192 of the Act with directors or persons connected with
them during the year.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For J. Kala & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:118769W

&

Jayesh Kala

Partner

Membership No. - 101686
UDIN: 21101686AAAACG6704
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Annexure - B to the Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*'the Act")

‘We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of Rolta India Limited ("the Company") as at March 31, 2021, in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICALT'"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAT and deemed to be prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
dueto fraud orerror.

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our disclaimer of opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonmable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of

the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of the Management and Directors of the
Company; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Due to the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not established its internal financial control over
financial reporting on criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Further, based on the audit carried out by us and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have observed high levels
of attrition in the financial year, which has resulted in the residual
personnel having had to carry out multiple tasks which would not be
desirable from the internal control mechanism perspective. However,
the said risk has been substantially mitigated, due to the fact that the
size of operations of the Company has also reduced significantly
during the year, as compared to the previous year.

Disclaimer of Opinion

Due to the significance of the matter described in the Basis of
disclaimer of opinion paragraph above, we are unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion
whether the Company had adequate Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting and whether such internal financial controls were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

Explanatory Paragraph

The above stated disclaimer of opinion was considered in determining
the nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2021 and this report does not affect our report of even date,
which expressed a qualified opinion on those standalone financial
statements.

For J. Kala & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 118769W

&

Jayesh Kala

Partner

Membership No. - 101686
UDIN: 21101686AAAACG6704

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 02, 2021



Rolta India Limited

Balance Sheet
As at 31" March 2021

ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
@ @
(ii) Intangible assets
(iii) Right-of Use Asset
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments

(ii) Other financial assets

(c) Deferred tax assets (net)
(d) Income tax assets (net)
(e) Other non-current assets

(2) Current Assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Other bank balances

(iv) Other financial assets

(b) Other current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

() Equity
(i) Equity Share Capital
(ii) Other equity

(2) LIABILITIES
(a) Non-current liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities
(ii) Provisions

(iii) Other non-current liabilities

(b) Current liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings

Property, plant and equipment

(b) Inter Corporate Deposit

() Trade payables
(d) Lease liabilities

(e) Others financial liabilities

(i) Other current liabilities

(iii) Provisions

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(in T Crore)
Note As at Asat

31% March 2021 31" March 2020
3A 1,076.47 1,803.50
3B - -
3C 500.66 1,048.55
4 237.46 244.30
5 81.60 3,537.79
16 810.37 701.68
7 94.36 98.42
6 0.33 1.11
2,801.25 7,435.35
8 76.23 119.77
9 7.99 0.67
10 1.25 2.46
11 293.20 374.37
12 14.81 24.84
393.49 522.11
3,194.73 7,957.46
13 165.89 165.89
(3,413.95) 794.75
(3,248.06) 960.64
14 0.46 1.11
15 6.24 10.00
17 382.41 1,515.24
389.11 1,526.35
18 4,962.65 4,308.27
19 551.11 560.53
20 104.07 199.20
14 0.65 0.65
21 331.46 235.10
22 100.83 165.24
23 2.90 1.48
6,053.67 5,470.47
3,194.73 7,957.46

Accompanying notes forming integral part of the Financial Statements 1 - 53

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For J. Kala & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118769W

N

Jayesh Kala

Partner

Membership No. 101686
UDIN:21101686AAAACG6704

Mumbai
2nd November, 2021

o ol
K. K. Singh

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00260977

Ramdas B Gupta
Director
DIN: 08431597

A ?/&M
Dineshkumar Kapadia
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
2nd November, 2021

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

.. _,_,c«o . i ﬁ.
%/—/ =N e
Homai A Daruwalla Ramnath Pradeep
Director Director
DIN: 00365880 DIN: 02608230

e Sptee ~——
Lt. Gen K T-Parnaik (Rtd.) Sateesh Dasari
Joint Managing Director Executive Director
DIN: 07129253 DIN: 09042563

A}
}QQ\(QI‘Q’ v
Hetal Vichhi
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

\
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Rolta India Limited

Statement of Profit And Loss
For the Year Ended 31" March 2021

(in ¥ Crore)
Note For the Year ended | For the Year ended |
) 31° March 2021 31" March 2020
Revenue
Revenue from operations 24 28.81 79.67
Other Income 25 75.93 | 7348
Total Revenue 104.75 | 153.15
Expenses
Cost of Materials & Technical Subcontractors 7.66 44.08
Employee Benefits Expense 26 32.85 54.77
Finance Costs 27 771.60 688.38
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 71.23 86.17
Exchange Difference (Gain) / Loss 47.42 26.87
Other Expenses 28 25.67 | 38.28
Total Expenses 956.43 | 938.55
Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (851.68) (785.40)
Exceptional Items 29 (2,417.19) (44.76)
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (A) (3,268.87) ' (740.64)
Tax expenses 30
Current tax - -
Deferred Tax 107.17 143.67
Taxation of Earlier Year - 0.12
Profit/(Loss) for the year (A) (3,161.70) (596.85)
Other Comprehensive income / (Loss)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability / asset 1.10 (1.62)
Income tax relating to above 0.39 0.57)
Total Other Comprehensive Income /(Loss) (B) 1.49 | (2.19)
Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year (A+B) (3,160.21) | 599.04
Earnings per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 10 Each 36
Before Exceptional Item
Basic (74.64) (38.68)
Diluted (74.64) (38.68)
After Exceptional Item
Basic (190.59) (35.98)
Diluted (190.59) (35.98)
Accompanying notes forming integral part of the Financial Statements 1 - 53
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
.. _,_,c«o ‘ i f
y -2’/—/ — =N .),;
K. K. Singh Homai A Daruwalla Ramnath Pradeep
Chairman & Managing Director Director Director
, DIN: 00260977 DIN: 00365880 DIN: 02608230
For J. Kala & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 118769W e~
) Ramdas B Gupta Lt. Gen. K T-Parnaik (Rtd.) Sateesh Dasari
vbﬂ/ Director Joint Managing Director Executive Director
~ : DIN: 08431597 DIN: 07129253 DIN: 09042563
Jayesh Kala — \ ‘
Partner D7 '/C‘M m,&;ﬂn
Membership No. 101686 . . s
UDIN:21101686AAAACG6704 Dineshkumar Kapadia Hetal Vichhi _
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Mumbai Mumbai \

2nd November, 2021 2nd November, 2021



Statement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31" March 2021

A. Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Issued on Account of ESOP
Balance at the end of the year

B. Other Equity
For the year ended 31st March, 2021

(in ¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31% March 2021 31" March 2020
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
165,891,355 165.89 165,891,355 165.89
165,891,355 165.89 165,891,355 165.89
(in T Crore)

Balance as at 1* April, 2020 0.00 121.32 369.82 (956.43) 13.59 1,246.45 794.75
Total profit/(loss) for the year - - - (3,161.70) - - (3,161.70)
ESOP cost during the year - - - - 0.14 - 0.14
ESOP cost of Subsidiary employees - - - (6.96) - (6.96)
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans (net of taxes) - - - 1.49 - - 1.49
Other addition \ (deductions) during the year - - 232 - (2.21) (1,041.79) (1,041.66)
Balance as at 31" March, 2021 0.00 121,32 372.15 (4,116.65) 4.56 204.67 (3,413.95)

For the year ended 31" March, 2020

(in T Crore)

Balance as at 1* April, 2019 0.05 121.32 362.43 (357.39) 31.06 1,246.45 1,403.92
Total profit/(loss) for the year - - (596.85) - - (596.85)
ESOP cost during the year - - - - 0.54 - 0.54
ESOP cost of Subsidiary employees - - - - 1.40 - 1.40
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans (net of taxes) - - - 2.19) - - 2.19)
Other addition \ (deductions) during the year (0.05) - 7.39 - (19.41) - (12.07)
Balance as at 31" March, 2020 0.00 121.32 369.82 (956.43) 13.59 1,246.45 794.75

a. Securities P: Securities Pr

the provision of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Retained earnings / General Reserve: These are free reserves that are available for distribution of dividends.

c. Fair Val

Reserve (Reval

permitted underInd AS 101. The fair valuation has been carried out by an independent valuer. This reserveis not a free reserve.

Surplus): Fair Valuation Reserve represents gain / (loss) arising on fair valuation of freehold and leasehold land & buildi

is used to record the premium on issue of securities such as equity shares, preference shares, debentures etc. The reserve is utilized in accordance with

held by the Comp as

d. Share based payment reserve: This is used to recognize the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to employees, including key management personnel.

For J. Kala & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118769W

P

Jayesh Kala

Partner

Membership No. 101686
UDIN:21101686AAAACG6704

Mumbai
2nd November, 2021

L

K. K. Singh

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00260977

Ramdas B Gupta
Director
DIN: 08431597

b ?/&M
Dineshkumar Kapadia
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
2nd November, 2021

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

)
e

Homai A Daruwalla
Director
DIN: 00365880

gk

Lt. Gen.
Joint Managing Director
DIN: 07129253

m‘.&ﬁﬂ";

Hetal Vichhi

CT-Parnaik (Rtd.)

—-’..T—:v;]'\ﬁ",)r;.‘
Ramnath Pradeep

Director
DIN: 02608230

e~

Sateesh Dasari
Executive Director
DIN: 09042563

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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Rolta India Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31" March 2021

A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Finance Costs

Interest Income

License Fees

Exceptional Items

Building Discarded ( Burnt due to fire)

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Assets property, plant and equipment (net)
Employee Stock Option Scheme share based payment expenses
Exchange difference adjustment (net)

OPERATING PROFIT /(LLOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
Adjustments for :

Trade Receivables, Loans & Advances and Other Assets

Trade Payables, Other Liabilities and Provisions

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP)

Sale of property, plant and equipment

Loans & Advances to Subsidiaries

Interest received

License Fees

Deposits having original maturity over three months and restricted balance
NET CASH FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Exchange Difference of Short-term borrowings

Interest paid

Proceeds from issue of Share Capital (includes Security Premium)
NET CASH (USED IN ) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (OPENING BALANCE)
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (CLOSING BALANCE)

For the Year ended
31° March 2021

(3,268.86)

7123
771.92
(70.45)

@57

(2,210.00)

162.84
©.21)
0.14
199.30
(4,340.67)

4,424.74
675.47
759.58

293
762.52

(8.92)
0.22
70.44
2.57
0.50
64.82

7.60
(827.61)
(820.02)

7.32

0.67

7.99

(in ¥ Crore)

For the Year ended |
31* March 2020

(740.64)

86.17
688.38
(69.23)

(3.82)

77.99

0.14
0.06
0.54
(98.97)
(59.39)

(108.44)
1,577.31
1,409.48

(1.34)
1,408.14

(5.97
(1,026.72)
69.34
3.82
696
(952.57)

123.36
(579.32)
(0.05)
(456.01)
0.49)
1.11
0.67

This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date

K. K. Singh
Chairman & Managing Director

. DIN: 00260977
For J. Kala & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118769W

Ramdas B Gupta
) vbﬂ/ Director
( g DIN: 08431597
Jayesh Kala —
Partner b o r/CA.M
Membership No. 101686 . .
UDIN:21101686AAAACG6704 Dineshkumar Kapadia
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai Mumbai

2nd November, 2021 2nd November, 2021
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information to
the Standalone Financial Statements

As at and the For the year ended 31" March 2021

1. Background

a. Overview

Rolta is a multinational organization headquartered in India. Rolta India Limited (“RIL” or the “Company”), is a publicly held
Company. Rolta is a leading provider of innovative IP-led IT solutions for many vertical segments, including Federal and State
Governments, Utilities, Oil & Gas, Petrochemicals, Financial Services, Manufacturing, Retail, and Healthcare. Rolta has been
recognized for its extensive portfolio of solutions based on field-proven Rolta IP tailored for Indian Defence and Homeland Security.
By uniquely combining its expertise in the I'T, Engineering and Geospatial domains, Rolta has developed State-of-the-Art Digital
Solutions incorporating rich Rolta IP in the areas of Cloud, Mobility, IoT, Bl and Big Data Analytics.

b. Basisof Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except leasehold land, freehold land and building which have been revalued at the transition date and
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) (to the
extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The IndAS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules
issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied, except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Useof Estimates

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which the changes are made.

Significant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities include useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, provision for employee
benefits and other provisions and recoverability of deferred tax assets.

b. RevenueRecognition

i Revenue from providing of solutions and services is recognized in accordance with the customer contract and when there are
no unfulfilled company obligations or any obligations that are inconsequential or perfunctory and will not affect the
customer's final acceptance of the arrangement.

ii.  Revenue from customer-related long-term contracts is recognised by reference to the percentage of completion of the contract
at the balance sheet date. The Company's long term contracts specify a fixed price for the sale of license and installation of
software solutions and services, and the related revenue is determined using the percentage of completion method. The
percentage of completion is based on efforts expended as a proportion to the total estimated efforts on the contract. If the
contract is considered profitable, it is valued at cost plus attributable profits by reference to the percentage of completion. Any
expected loss on individual contracts is recognised immediately as an expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss. Unbilled
revenues included under Other Financial Assets represent revenue recognized in respect of work completed but not billed as
on the Balance Sheet date.

iii. Incomefrom maintenance contracts is recognized proportionately over the period of the contract.
iv.  Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established.
V. Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal amount outstanding.

c. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred
initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or
service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, as
and when incurred.

All items of PPE, except freehold Land, Leasehold Land & Buildings (which have been revalued) have been recognized in the
financial statements at their carrying value (deemed cost). Items of PPE, which are purchased subsequent to the transition date are
stated at cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes all direct costs
and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Capital Work-in-Progress is
stated at cost, comprising of direct cost and related incidental expenditure.

In case of revaluation, if an asset's carrying amount is increased, the increase is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss. If an asset's carrying amount is decreased

74-75



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information to
the Standalone Financial Statements
As at and the For the year ended 31" March 2021

as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognised in profit or loss. However, the decrease is recognised in other comprehensive
income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation reserve in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in other
comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve.

Gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assetand is recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

d. Intangible Assets

Intellectual Property Rights and software costs are presented in the Balance Sheet as intangible assets, where they are clearly linked
to long term economic benefits for the Company. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. All
other costs on Intellectual Property Rights and software are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

Expenditure on development activities is recognized as intangible assets from the date that all of the following conditions are met:
i) completion of the development is technically feasible;

if)  itistheintention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

iii)  itisclear that the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

iv)  adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset are
available; and

v)  itispossible toreliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

Recognition of costs as an asset is ceased when the project is complete and available for its intended use, or if these criteria no
longer apply.

‘Where development activities do not meet the conditions for recognition as an asset, any associated expenditure is treated as an
expensein the period in which it is incurred.

e. Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company depreciates/ amortises property, plant and equipment and intangibles over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Leasehold Land & Building Lease Period

Building 60 Years

Computer Systems 2 to 6 Years

Other Equipment 10 Years

Furniture & Fixture 10 Years

Vehicles 5 Years

Intangibles assets (Third party acquired IP) 10 Years

Internally developed IP with continuous upgradation 20 Years

Assets acquired for specific projects Over the period of the project

Based on technical evaluation, the Management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the
Management expects to use these assets.

f. Impairmentof Assets

At each Balance Sheet date, the property, plant and equipment and intangibles are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if
any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value, using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the asset, for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

‘Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately. The last impairment effect was considered in the financial year ended March 2014.

8. Investment in Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost.
h. Foreign Currency Transactions
The financial statements of the Company are presented in INR, which is the functional currency of the Company and the



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information to
the Standalone Financial Statements
As at and the For the year ended 31" March 2021

presentation currency for the financial statements. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the
date of transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, all monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing as at
the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

The exchange difference arising on account of the difference between the rates prevailing on the date of transaction and on the date
of settlement, as also on translation of monetary items at the end of the year is recognized as income or expense, as the case may be,
in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

i.  Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss, are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest
income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

a)  Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, if these financial assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold these assets, in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, if these financial assets are held within a business
model, whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, or to sell these financial assets, and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets not measured at amortised cost, or at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, are carried at fair value
through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses, on a forward looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

b)  Financialliabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the Company's accounting
policy for borrowing costs.
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the Standalone Financial Statements
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
j- Employee Benefits
i. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss
forthe year in which the related services are rendered.

ii.  Otherlong-term employee benefit obligations
Leave Encashment

Liability in respect of leave encashment as at the Balance Sheet date is determined based on actuarial valuation, by using the
Projected Unit Credit Method and any incremental/differential charge on account of such actuarial valuation is recognized
in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

iii. Post EmploymentBenefits
Provident Fund

The Company contributes monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are remitted to the Employee Provident Fund
Commissioner and are charged to the Statement of Profitand Loss on an accrual basis.

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity (a defined benefit retirement plan) to all the eligible employees. The benefit is in the form
of lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, on death while in employment, or termination of employment,
being the amount equivalent to 15 days' salary, payable for each completed year of service, subject to a maximum of Rs. 20
lacs. Vesting occurs on completion of five years of service. Liability in respect of gratuity as at the Balance Sheet date is
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Re-measurement gains and losses of
the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost, net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs and are recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

iv. Employee Stock Options

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share based remuneration are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of the share options awarded. Their value is appraised at the
grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, with a corresponding
credit to Employee Stock Compensation Reserve. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated
over the vesting period, based on the best available estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to become exercisable.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the number of share options expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. Once vested, no adjustment is made to expense recognised in prior periods if, ultimately, fewer share
options are exercised than originally estimated. Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received (net of any directly
attributable transaction costs) up to the nominal value of the shares issued are allocated to share capital with any excess being
recorded as additional paid-in capital.

k. BorrowingCost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profitand Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

i. Taxation
Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit, as reported in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
Balance Sheet method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. In contrast, deferred
tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values. The amount
of deferred income tax asset considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if the estimates of future taxable
income during the carry forward period are reduced.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items
credited or debited either in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly in equity.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the
form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period. Accordingly, MAT entitlement is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when
the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with it will fructify. Such asset is
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a
convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

m. EarningsPerShare

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

n. Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized in the Balance Sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each
provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date, When
appropriate, provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or where the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

0. Leases

On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified IndAS 116 — Leases as a part of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019. IndAS 116 replaces the existing standard on leases i.e IndAS 17 - Leases for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st April 2019. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of
the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Where this occurs, the arrangement is deemed to include a lease and is accounted for either as
finance or operating lease. Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All otherleases are classified as operating leases.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) thecontractinvolves the use of an identified asset

(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” for all lease contracts existing on April, 2019, using the modified retrospective method
of adoption, along with the transition option to recognise Right-of-Use asset (ROU) at an amount equal to the lease liability as
provided under Para C8(c)(ii) in Appendix C of Ind AS 116. The effect of this adaption is not material on the profit for the year and
earnings per share.

The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term
of 12 months orless and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of
low value (low-value assets).

Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases for which it is the
lessee, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. The Company recognised lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. In accordance with the modified retrospective method of
adoption, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted at the
incremental borrowing rate as on the date of transition and has measured right of use asset an amount equal to lease liability.

Land (Leasehold) is carried at costless amortization and will be amortized on the straight line method over the period of lease.

ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
notberecoverable.

p- Cashand CashEquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with bank, and other short term highly liquid investments, with
original maturities of 3 months orless.
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3. Property, plant and equipment, Intangible assets and Right-of - use assets
Current year : (in T Crorc)

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

DESCRIFTION

As At For the year  Deduction / As At As At
1st April Adjustment  31stMarch 3]st March
2020 2021 2021

A. Property, Plant and
Equipment

Freehold Land 441.32 - (368.17) 0.00 73.15 - - - - 73.15
Buildings 1,475.72 -~ (375.03) 184.10 916.59 229.09 20.90 249.99 - 916.59
Computer System 93.52 0.49 - - 94.01 91.62 1.06 - 92.67 1.34
Other Equipment 195.72 0.46 - - 196.18 119.17 14.99 - 134.16 62.02
Furniture & Fixture 239.31 -~ - - 239.31 202.22 13.71 - 215.93 23.37
Vehicles 1.94 -~ - 1.50 0.43 1.94 - 1.50 0.43 -
Total 2,447.53 0.95 (743.20) 185.60 1,519.68 644.04 50.66 251.50 44321 1,076.47
B. .Intangible Assets

Other (IPR) 2.81 -~ - - - 2.81 - - 2.81 -
Total 2.81 - - - - 2.81 - - 2.81 -

Previous year: (in ¥ Crore)

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION NET BLOCK

During the year

Additions/ Revaluation Sale /

Adjustments Adjustments
A. Property, Plant and
Equipment

Freehold Land 441.32 - - - 441.32 - - - - 441.32
Buildings 1,475.72 - - - 1,475.72 204.82 24.27 - 229.09 1,246.63
Computer System 108.38 115 -~ 16.01 93.52 102.40 5.22 16.00 91.62 1.90
Other Equipment 209.56 031 - 14.15 195.72 116.33 16.98 14.14 119.17 76.55
Furniture & Fixture 241.87 - -~ 2.56 239.31 186.80 17.89 247 202.22 37.09
Vehicles 1.94 - - - 1.94 1.94 - - 1.94 -
Total 2,478.79 1.46 - 32.75 2,447.53 612.29 64.36 32.60 644.04 1,803.50
B. Intangible Assets

Other (IPR) 281 - - - 2,81 2.70 0.11 - 2.81 -
Total 2.81 - - - 2.81 2.70 0.11 - 2.81 -

C. Right of Use- Lease Asset

Current year: (in ¥ Crore)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION NET BLOCE
During the year Al
" Deduction / As At st As Ar3imt
Additions/ s Sale / Ist April Faor the year At sant 5

Adj Revaluation 5 5 . 200 j March2021  March 2021
Leasehold Land 1,179.79 - (680.24) - 499.55 132.99 19.92 15291 - 499.55
Leasehold Premises 227 - - - 227 0.51 0.65 - 1.16 L11
Total 1,182.06 - (680.24) - 501.82 133.50 20.57 152.91 1.16 500.66
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Previous year:

(inTCrore)

GROSS BLOCK DEFRECIATION AND AMORTISATION NET BLOCK
As Ar During the year At
DESCRIFTION 1st April As At 3lst | Deduction / As At3lst As At 31st
2019 Additions/ " Sale / Lst April For the year F
Adi Revaluation 40 March 2020 2019 Adjustment  March 2020  March 2020
Leasehold Land 1,179.79 - - - 1179.79 111.79 21.20 - 132.99 1,046.80
Leasehold Premises L.59 0.68 - - 2.27 - 0.51 - 0.51 1.75
Total 1,181.38 0.68 - - 1182.06 111.79 21.71 - 133.50 1,048.55
Note:

(D Refernoteno. 18b for charges created against the assets.

(ii) During the year, the Company has revalued its freehold land, leasehold land and building by obtaining a valuation report from an
independent registered valuer. Impact of revaluation has been adjusted directly in the other equity under the revaluation reserve.

4, Investments (Non-current) (valued at cost)
(Trade and Unquoted)

Investments in Equity — Subsidiary Companies (fully paid up)

(in ¥ Crore)
Units Currency Face % of 31" March 2021 31" March 2020
Value Holding
39,725 Us$ 1,000 51.78 Common Shares of Rolta International Inc. 206.94 213.27
(39,725) AtlantaUS A (26,750 Common
Shares pledged with Bank of Baroda)
2,550,000 INR 10 51 Equity Shares of Rolta Thales Ltd 2.55 2.55
(2,550,000)
1,001 Us$ 1 100 Equity Shares of Rolta Global BV 1.20 1.16
(1,001)
9,999 INR 10 100 Equity Shares of Rolta BI and Big 0.52 0.52
(9,999) Data Analytics Pvt Ltd
59,993 INR 10 100 Equity Shares of Rolta Defence 26.25 26.80
(59,993) Technology Systems Pvt Ltd
TOTAL 237.46 244.30
Aggregate amount of quoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 237.46 24430
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investment . - S
5. Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) ;
(Unsecured, considered Good) fia X G
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Deposited with Court 18.09 18.08
Loans to Subsidiaries 2.11 214.85
Other Receivables from Subsidiaries (Refer Note 34) 61.40 3,304.86
Total 81.60 3,537.79
6. Other Non-Current Assets (in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Prepaid Expenses 0.33 | 1.11
0.33 1.11
7. Income Tax Assets (net) (in T Crore)
As at 31° March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Advance Income Tax (net of provision for tax) 8.16 12.22
94.36 98.42
8. Trade Receivables
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Unsecured and Considered Good 76.24 119.77
Total 76.24 119.77

Refer note 34 for receivables from related parties.
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9.

Cash and cash equivalents

- Cash on Hand
- Balance with Banks in Current / Deposit Accounts
Total

. Other Bank Balances

- Unpaid Dividend Account
- Bank Deposits*
Total

*Deposits are maintained for margin money with banks.

Other Financial Assets (Current)
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Security Deposits

Interest Receivable

Unbilled Revenues (Contract Assets)
Other Receivables

Total

Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expenses
Duties and Taxes
Advances to Suppliers
Total

Equity Share Capital

a. Authorised :
250,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥10 each
(P.Y. 250,000,000 Equity shares of ¥10 each)
Total

b. Issued, Subscribed & Paid up :

165,891,355 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up.

(P.Y. 165,891,355 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each)
Total

c. Reconciliation of share capital
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Issued on Account of ESOP
Balance at the end of the year
Total

(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
0.13 0.19
7.86 0.48
7.99 0.67
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
1.10 1.81
0.15 0.65
1.25 2.46
(in T Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
0.33 0.31
- 68.89
292.87 305.16
- 0.01
293.20 374.37
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
0.99 2.56
12.55 19.06
1.27 3.22
14.81 24.84
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
250 250
250 250
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
165.89 165.89
165.89 165.89
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020

Number of Shares Amount

165,891,355 165.89

Number of Shares Amount

165,891,355 165.89

165,891,355 165.89 | |

165,891,355 165.89
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d. Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Shares

The Company has one class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each shareholder is eligible for dividend and one
vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, in
proportion to their shareholding, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

e.  NoBonus Shares have been issued to the shareholders during the last five years.
f. Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares

As at 31" March 2021 # As at 31" March 2020*

No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
Rolta Private Limited - - 10,330,546 6.23
Rolta Shares and Stocks Pvt. Ltd. - - 8,544,600 5.15

*As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders, members and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares. The
holding of Rolta Shares and Stocks Pvt. Ltd. also consists of shares of the Company received on loan from Rolta Private Limited.

# Since, the holding is below 5%, the same is not disclosed.
Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

The Company, from time to time, provides share based payments to its employees. These payments are provided in the form of stock
options that can be exercised once the employee has completed specified service term with the Company. The options are accounted
for as 'equity settled share based payment' transactions. Refer the table below for disclosure as per requirement of Ind AS 102 —Share
based payments.

1. Details of Employee stock options scheme

No of Options 1250000 625000 1050000 2350000 825000 775000

Granted

Grant Price %.10.00 %.10.00 %.10.00 %.10.00 %.10.00 %.10.00

Grant dates February 07, 2015 November 9, 2015 December 9, 2016 May 30, 2017 November 10, 2017 May 30,2018

Total Options 212500 ] 0 ] 0 0

Exercised

Total Options Lapsed 912500 575000 775000 2050000 787500 750000

Options outstanding 125000 50000 275000 300000 37500 25000

at the end of the year

Vesting of Options | Two equal instalments | Two equal instalments | Two equal instalments | Two equal instalments | Two equal instalments | Two equal instalments
at the end of 3rd, 4th |at the end of 3rd, 4th |at the end of 3rd, 4th |atthe end of 3rd, 4th |at the end of 3rd, 4th |at the end of 3rd, 4th
(into Equity shares of |(into Equity shares of |(into Equity shares of |(into Equity shares of |(into Equity shares of |(into Equity shares of
%.10 each) %.10 each) .10 each) .10 each) .10 each) %.10 each)

Exercise Period 3 years from the 3 years from the 3 years from the 3 years from the 3 years from the 3 years from the

date of vesting date of vesting date of vesting date of vesting date of vesting date of vesting
ii, Movement of Options Granted

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,637,500 1,862,500
Granted during the year* - -
Options forfeited during the year (825,000) (225,000)
Options Exercised during the year - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 812,500 1,637,500
Options Exercisable at the end of the period 587,500 475000

* Includes Nil (P.Y. Nil) granted to Key Management Personnel

Fair valuation of options

For ESOPs outstanding as at 31st March 2021, exercise price is ¥.10 and weighted average life of these options ranges from 26 to 39

months,

All share based employee remuneration would be settled in equity. The only vesting condition is the continuation of service. The group has
no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options.

In total, employee remuneration expense of . 0.14 crores (P.Y. X. 0.54 crores) has been included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. No
liabilities were recognized due to share-based payment transactions.
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14. Lease Liabilities

Lease Liabilities (non-current)

Lease Liabilities (current)
Total

Long-term Provisions

(in ¥ Crore)

. Provision for Employee Benefits :
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note26)
Provision for Leave Encashment

TOTAL

. Deferred Tax (Liability) / Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Liability on account of items of Property,

Plant & Equipment

Deferred Tax Asset on carry forward business losses and others
Net Deferred Tax (Liability) / Assets
(Refer Note 30 for movement)

17. Other Non-Current Liabilities

Advance against inter-entity shares
Contract liability - Advances from customers (Subsidiaries)*

Provision for Warranty
TOTAL

*Refer note 41

18. Secured Borrowings

a. Secured

Term Loans from Banks
Other Loan from Banks

As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
0.46 1.11
0.65 0.65
1.11 1.76
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
3.76 6.46
2.48 3.54
6.24 10.00
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
(584.91) (568.61)
1,395.28 1,270.29
810.37 701.68
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
- 399.05
382.41 1,116.16
- 0.03
382.41 | 1,515.24
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
1007.17 1007.66
3955.48 3300.61
4,962.65 4,308.27
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b.

Details of Security and interest rates

Outstanding Loans are secured against pari-passu charge over land & building situated at “Rolta Tower-1", Plot No 39, MIDC-Marol,
Andheri (East), Mumbai 400093; leasehold rights of the land and building “Rolta Tower 2” located on Plot 35, Marol Industrial Area,
Andheri (East), Mumbai 400093; Unit No. 201 to 204, 2nd floor and 501 to 504, 5th floor, MIDC multi storied building, SEEPZ SEZ, Marol
Industrial Area, Andheri (East), Mumbai 400093; Land & Building of Rolta Tower — A, situated at Plot no 15C, Rolta Technology Park,
MIDC-Marol, Andheri (E); 6 flats (no. 1801 and 1802 (18th Floor), 1901, and 1902 (19th Floor), 2001 and 2002 (20th Floor), in building
known as "Lake Primose” in Lake Homes, Wing-A, Building No.1, Phase-IV, off Adi Shankarcharya Marg, Vill - Chandivali, Powai,
Mumbai-400076, Rolta Tower "B", Plot No. C-12,Rolta Technology Park, MIDC, Andheri (E), Rolta Tower "C", Plot No. C-11, Rolta
Technology Park, MIDC, Andheri (E); hypothecation charge on the current assets and movable items of Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE) of the Company, movable PPE/ Intellectual Property Rights held by Rolta Defence Technology Systems Pvt. Ltd. (RDTSPL),
hypothecation and charge over cash flows and Corporate Guarantee of Rolta Defence Technology Systems Pvt. Ltd. Exclusive charge over
DSRA of the Company with the respective banks and pledge of 26,750 shares of USD 1000 each in

Rolta International Inc. held by Rolta India Limited, valued at 125% of the loan amount and guaranteed by Rolta International Inc.

Outstanding balances (in T Crore)
As at 31" March, 2021 As at 31" March, 2020
Union Bank of India 1,687.53 1,456.12
Bank of India 954.29 808.70
Bank of Baroda 728.77 635.15
Central Bank of India 1,167.22 1,045.16
Syndicate Bank 42484 363.14
Total 4,962.65 4,308.27
19, Inter Corporate Deposit
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
Inter corporate Deposits (ICD) from related parties 551.11 560.53
Total 551.11 560.53
20. Trade Payables
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
a. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise (refer Note below) 2.16 0.75
Others 101.91 198.45
TOTAL 104.07 199.20

b. The disclosure pursuant to The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, (MSMED Act) is as under:

(in ¥ Crore)

Particulars 31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 2.16 0.75
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amount Not ascertainable NIL
Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year| Not ascertainable 0.45
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, (Other than Section 16) NIL NIL
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, (Section 16) NIL NIL
Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payment already made Not ascertainable NIL
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year under MSMED Act. Not ascertainable NIL

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as "Micro, Small and Medium" enterprises on the

basis of information available with the Company.
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[ #%]

[ o]
un

Other Financial Liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings
Unpaid Dividends (Deposited in Bank)
Creditors for Capital Goods

TOTAL

Other Current Liabilities

Income received in advance

Provision for Expenses

Salary and Directors Commission Payable
Duties and Taxes

Contract liability - Advances from Customers
Provision for Warranty

Employee related Statutory & other dues
TOTAL

Short Term Provisions

Provision

Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 26 )
Provision for Leave Encashment
Total

Revenue from Operations

Sale of IT Solutions & Services
Total

(in T Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
327.59 220.76
1.10 1.81
- 571
2.77 6.82
331.46 235.10
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31° March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
- 1.27
5.20 90.09
59.03 38.45
31.56 28.18
0.22 240
0.10 0.13
4.72 4.72
100.83 165.24
(in ¥ Crore)
As at 31" March 2021 As at 31" March 2020
1.98 1.09
0.92 0.39
2.90 1.48
(in ¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31" Maxch 2021 31"March 2020
28.81 79.67
28.81 79.67

- Sales of IT solutions and services include Sale of IT product/Systems procured for the purpose of system integration purpose

amount to ¥ 0.00 Crores. (PY - 0.87 Crores.)

- Contracted price is equivalent to the amount of revenue recognised.

Other Income

Interest Income
License Fees

Profit on sale of item of property, plant and equipment

Miscellaneous Income
Total

Employee Benefit Expense

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to Gratuity
Contribution to Provident and other Funds

Cost of Employee Stock Option Scheme (refer notel3g)

Staff Welfare Expenses
Total

(in ¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2021 31"March 2020
70.45 69.22
2.57 3.82
0.22 0.04
2.70 0.40
75.94 73.48

(in ¥ Crore)

For the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2021 31"March 2020
30.70 51.38

0.95 1.03

1.03 1.56

0.14 0.54

0.03 0.26

32.85 54.77
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Employee benefits

A.

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company participates in defined contribution plan on behalf of relevant personnel. Expenses recognized in relation to the plan
represent the value of contributions payable during the period by the Company at rates specified by the rules of the plan.

Provident fund

In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered
employees “ salary (currently 12% of employees " salary).

The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Central
Provident Fund under the State Pension scheme. The total cost charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year ended 31st
March, 2021, is—¥.0.94 crores (Previous year—3.1.43 crores)

B. Defined benefit plans
Gratuity (Unfunded)
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a
lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The
Group accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation. The Group is exposed to
actuarial risk with respect to this plan.
The following table sets out the amounts recognized in the financial statements for the gratuity plans in respect of the Group.
I.  ChangeinNetDefined Benefit Obligation (in ¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
iiabdimasci 31"March, 2021 31*March, 2020
1. Net defined benefit liability at the start of the period 7.55 5.82
Addition: Employees transferred from Rolta BI & Big Data 1.06 1.17
Analytics Private Limited (RBDA)
2. Service Cost 0.35 0.50
3. Past Service Cost - -
4, Net Interest Cost (Income) 0.60 0.53
5. Re-measurements 0.03 1.62
6. Benefits paid directly by the enterprise (3.85) (2.09)
7. Net defined benefit liability at the end of the period 5.75 7.55
II. Theamountrecognized in the income statement (in ¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
p ol 31"March, 2021 31"March, 2020
1. Service Cost 0.35 0.50
2. Net Interest Cost 0.60 0.53
3. Past Service Cost - -
4. Expense Recognised in the Income Statement 0.95 1.03
III. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) (in ¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
ol 31"March, 2021 31" March, 2020
1. Net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) opening - -
2. Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year on PBO 0.03 1.62
3. Actuarial gain /(loss) for the year on Asset - -
4. Unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) at the end of the year 0.03 1.62
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IV. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

(in ¥ Crore)
Particulars Amount
a) | Apr 2021- Mar 2022 2.40
b) | Apr 2022- Mar 2023 2.35
c) | Apr 2023- Mar 2024 2.70
d) | Apr 2024- Mar 2025 2.92
e) | Apr 2025- Mar 2026 3.06
V.  Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation (in ¥ Crore)
A) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 3.39 7.55
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50% (0.04) (0.20)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 0.04 0.19
B) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 3.39 7.55
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50% (0.04) 0.19
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 0.04 0.10
VI. Assumptions (in T Crore)
prici T
a. Discount rate (per annum) 6.81% 6.92%
b. Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 5% 5%
c. Rate of attrition
Upto 30 Years 38.00% 40.00 %
From 31 to 44 Years 35.00% 29%
Above 44 Years 31.00% 8%
d. Mortality 100% India Assured Lives| 100% India Assured Lives
Mortality(2012-14) Mortality(2012-14)
27. Finance Costs (in T Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
Interest Expenses on Borrowings 771.60 688.38
Total 771.60 688.38
28. Other Expenses (in ¥ Crore)
For the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2021 31"March 2020
Repairs — Building 1.06 1.18
Repairs - Plant & Machinery 042 3.19
Repairs - Other Assets 0.40 0.23
Utilities & Communication 3.21 6.16
Rent, Rates & Taxes 0.92 3.51
Insurance 1.20 1.14
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 0.02 0.97
Travelling & Conveyance 0.51 1.28
Printing & Stationery 0.39 0.74
Bank & Other Charges 1.47 3.00
Auditors' Remuneration (Refer Note 38) 0.20 0.63
Directors' Sitting Fees 0.33 0.34
Legal & Professional Fees 8.54 5.70
Donation (includes expenditure on CSR) - 0.03
Loss on Sale of Property, plant & equipment - 0.10
Interest on statutory dues 6.50 9.05
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.50 1.03
TOTAL 25.67 38.28




Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information to

the Standalone Financial Statements
As at and the For the year ended 31" March 2021

29. Exceptional items (in T Crore)
Exceptional items comprise of the following:
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31" March, 2021 31"March, 2020
Write-off of amount receivable from the Company’s subsidiary, Rolta Defence (2,160.25) -
Technology Systems Pvt. Ltd. (RDTSPL) pursuant to the transfer of defence business
to RDTSPL in the year 2015. The write off of the receivable was necessitated on
account of the write off of the IPs in the books of RDTSPL based on a valuation
exercise undertaken by RDTSPL through an external agency, pursuant to which IPs
having a net book value of . 2,165.28 crores were fully written off, on account of their
obsolescence.
Reduction in cost of purchase of earlier years on account of Reversal of Sales by 35.71 -
Rolta BI & Big Data Analytics Pvt. Ltd (RBDA)
‘Write off of Building value of Rolta Tower 'C' due to fire in February, 2020 (162.84) -
Trade Receivables Written Off (8.32) 77.99
Excess Provisions and credit balances no longer Required written back 31.00 -
Old Advance Received from Customers — Written back 1.56 -
Amount receivable from RBDA not recoverable now written off (41.43) -
Amount payable to Rolta Private Limited no longer payable 25.72 -
Foregin Exchange Difference on account of adjustment as stated at Point No.41 (138.34) (122.74)
TOTAL (2,417.19) (44.75)
30. Income Taxes (in T Crore)
a. Income tax expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss are analysed as below:
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31°March, 2021 31" March, 2020
Current taxes - -
Deferred taxes 107.17 143.67
MAT credit - -
Taxation of Earlier year - 0.12
Total 107.17 143.79

b. Since the Company does not have an accounting profit in the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 and 31st March, 2020
the reconciliation of the tax expense to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the profit before taxes has not been

presented.

o

The Company has recognized net Deferred Tax Asset of Y. 810.37 Crores after adjusting the Deferred Tax Liability of . 584.91 Crores. The

Deferred Tax Asset has arisen mainly on account of business losses. The Company has recognized deferred tax asset on the incremental tax
losses during the year as the management is of the view that the Company will be able to generate enough taxable profits in the subsequent
years for setting off the accumulated losses, in view of what is stated in note 42. The projections of future profitability have been examined and

approved by the Board of Directors.

d. Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended 31st March, 2021 is as follows:

Deferred tax ~~ Deterred tax
Opening expense/ _(i.no?me ?fg::f::
balance mcogmzed o recognized in
profit and loss) ocn

Deferred tax assets
Business tax-loss carry forwards 1,210.46 123.52 - - 1,333.98
Retirement benefits liabilities 5.64 (0.05) 0.39 1.13 7.11
Long term capital loss carry forward 35.10 - - - 35.10
Others 19.08 - - - 19.08
Total 1,270.28 123.47 0.39 1.13 1,395.27
Less:
Deferred tax liabilities
Tangible and intangible assets 227.28 21.21 - - 248.49
Fair valuation of land & buildings 341.32 4.91) - - 33641
Total 568.60 16.30 - - 584.90
Net deferred tax (liability) / Assets 701.68 107.17 0.39 1.13 810.37
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Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows: (in ¥ Crore)

Deferred tax assets

Business tax-loss carry forwards 1,082.86 127.60 - 1,210.46
Retirement benefits liabilities 5.39 0.81 (0.56) 5.64
Long term capital loss carry forward 35.10 - - 35.10
Others 27.07 (7.99 - 19.08
Total 1,150.42 120.42 (0.56) 1,270.28
Less :

Deferred tax liabilities

Tangible and intangible assets 245.62 (18.34) - 227.28
Fair valuation of land & buildings 346.23 4.91) - 341.32
Total 591.85 (23.25) - 568.60
Net deferred tax liability / (Assets) 558.57 143.67 (0.56) 701.68

31. Intangibles

List of Copyrights

Rolta OnPoint ™ (Rolta OnPoint Core) SW-7641/2014
Rolta Map Navigator SW-8824/2016
Rolta Spatial Query Engine SW-8818/2016
Rolta Location Services SW-8836/2016
Rolta Spatial Routing SW-8819/2016
Rolta Spatial Security SW-8838/2016
Rolta Spatial Editing SW-8817/2016
Rolta Metadata Manager SW-8801/2016
Rolta Cartographer SW-8848/2016
Rolta Localizer SW-8851/2016
Rolta Carto Print SW-8869/2016
Rolta Spatial Admin Console SW-8882/2016
Rolta OnPoint™ SDK SW-8837/2016
Rolta Unified Mobility SW-8828/2016
Rolta 3D Visulaisation and Analytics SW-8827/2016
Rolta Map Server™ SW-8756/2016
Rolta Spatial workflow analyser SW-8883/2016
Rolta Embeddable Maps SW-8871/2016
Rolta GeoWorkflow Manager SW-8876/2016
Rolta Soil Ananlytics SW-8825/2016
Rolta Linear Referencing System (LRS) SW-8826/2016
Rolta GeoBI SW-7241/2013
Rolta 2D/3D City Model SW-8849/2016
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Name of [Ps Copyright Reference Number
Rolta Building Permit Approval SW-8739/2016
Rolta Land Management SW-8780/2016
Rolta Property Management SW-8891/2016
Rolta Flood Simulation SW-8858/2016
Rolta Disaster Impact Analytics SW-8890/2016
Rolta Disaster Response Management SW-8856/2016
Rolta Investor Portal SW-8839/2016
Rolta Industrial Land Development SW-8787/2016
Rolta Single Window Clearance SW-8808/2016
Rolta Enterprise Asset Management SW-8854/2016
Rolta Qutage Monitoring SW-8803/2016
Rolta Work Order Management SW-8805/2016
Rolta Mobile Field Inspection SW-8850/2106
Rolta Safe to Dig SW-8879/2016
Rolta Customer Complaint Analysis SW-8760/2016
Rolta Billing Management SW-8884/2016
Rolta Meter Billing Analytics SW-8870/2016
Rolta Utilities Asset Tagging SW-8852/2016
Rolta Sewerage Flooding Analysis SW-8860/2016
Rolta Optical Fiber Network Management SW-8886/2016
Rolta Gas Distribution Management SW-8762/2016
Rolta Solid Waste disposal SW-8859/2016
Rolta Waste Management System SW-8857/2016
Rolta Environment Portal SW-8783/2016
Rolta Air quality monitoring SW-8786/2016
Rolta Land Scar monitoring SW-8806/2016
Rolta Ground water monitoring SW-8885/2016
Rolta Forest reservoir monitoring SW-8807/2016
Rolta Traffic portal SW-8829/2016
Rolta Road safety audit system SW-8802/2016
Rolta Traffic Congestion Analytics SW-8804/2016
Rolta Road Permit System SW-8861/2016
Rolta Election Information SW-8789/2016
Rolta Encroachment Management SW-8785/2016
Rolta Facility Management SW-8784/2016
Rolta Fleet Management SW-8781/2016
Rolta Parking Meter Monitoring SW-8878/2016
Rolta Citizen Grievance Management SW-8788/2016
Rolta City Performance Portal SW-8738/2016
Rolta Citizen Mobi-Connect SW-8809/2016
Rolta Citizen Portal SW-8840/2016
Rolta State Residential Data Hub (SRDH) SW-8761/2016
Utility Network Toolkit Not yet Registered
32. Expenditure on R&D (in % Crore)

Capital expenditure - -
Revenue Expenditure 11.67 18.69
Total 11.67 18.69
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33. Corporate Social Responsibility Activities
a.  Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during the year NIL. (P.Y. NIL)
b. Amountspentduringthe yearon

(in ¥ Crore)
Yet to be paid
In cash ia cad Total
i Construction / acquisition of any asset - - -
ii. On purposes other than i. above - - -
Total - - -
34 Rclated Parties
a. List of Related Parties and Relationships
1. Party Relation
Rolta Global BV Subsidiary

Subsidiary of Rolta International Inc.
(01.04.2020 to 28.02.2021)

Rolta LLC Subsidiary of Rolta International Inc
e Rolta o en cas LLC ............................................................................. Subsldla.ry ofRoltaIntemauona_l Inc ....................................
e Rolta Hunga.ry T Subsldla.ry ofRoltaIntemauona_l Inc ....................................
e Rolta De fence Tech_nology SystemsttLt d ........................................... Subsldla.ry ...........................................................................
Rolta 'I‘halesLmuted ........................................................................... Subs1d1a.ry ...........................................................................
Rolta o Blg = Ana.lyt1cs Pvt R Subs1d1a.ry ...........................................................................
Mr. K K Singh
" Lt. Gen. K. T, Parnaik (Retd.)
MrDmeshkumarKapadla ...............................................................................................................................................................
MsHetalvlchm ..............................................................................................................................................................................
MrSateeshDa,sa_n ...........................................................................................................................................................................
(w.e.f 11th February, 2021)
MSHomaJAmeaua ..................................................................................................................................................................
LtGenP P SBhandan(Retd) ............................................................. IndependentDlrector ...........................................................
(upto 11th January, 2021)
B Ra_mda.sGupta ............................................................................... Independent Dlrector ...........................................................
(wee.f 17th October, 2020)
Rolta Private Limited Company controlled by Mr. K K Singh
.............. S umochnewab]eEwgypnvatemedcgmpmyconmuedbyMrKKSmgh
e Rolta Foundauon .................................................................................. Chantable Tmst m Wthh M_r K K Smgh 1s ; Tmstee ............
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b. Disclosures required for related parties transactions

(Current year's figures are shown in bold & comparative figures for the previous year are shown below the current year)

Transactions during the year
Sale of Goods/Rendering of Services 10.48 15.58 - - 26.06
11.28 62.08 - - 73.36
Sale of IP - -- -- 2.00 2.00
Sale of Motor Car - -- -- 0.10 0.10
Interest on Royalty Expenses - - - 1.47 1.47
- - - 5.11 5.11
Reversal of Interest on Royalty Expenses - - - 14.82 14.82
Interests on Inter Corporate Deposit taken -- -- -- 121.06 121.06
~ - - 103.40 103.40
Puarchase Return 35.711 -- -- -- 35.71
Repairs & maintenance Expenses-P&M - 0.04 - - 0.04
Legal expenses - 0.01 - - 0.01
‘Written off other receivable 2,201.97 - - - 2,201.97
Excess Provision for Expenses Written- Back - - - 6.32 6.32
Reversal of Royalty Expenses - - - 19.40 19.40
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.04 - - 9.75 9.79
245 -- -- (0.01) 2.44
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Royalty Fees - - - - -
- - - 299 299
Managerial Remuneration (excluding - - 2.23 - 2.23
Commission)
- - 2.63 -- 2.63
Managerial Remuneration (Commission) -- -- - - -
- - 0.78 - 0.78
Directors Sitting Fees - - 0.33 - 0.33
- - 0.34 - 0.34
Inter Corporate Deposit Taken -- 0.88 -- 10.04 10.92
- 2.50 - 2.22 4.72
ESOP Given / Reversed (6.84) - - - (6.84)
1.40 - - - 1.40
Loans & Advances Given 10.29 0.03 - -- 10.32
1,092.60 59.23 -- - 1,151.84
Loans Taken 7.81 0.88 - 20.76 29.45
Adjustment of Export advance received / 1,251.13 - - - 1,251.13
(payable) against receivable on account of
Devolvement of Stannd by Letter of
Credits.
Adjustment of receivables against loan - - - 2.00 2.00
Assignment of Trade receivable of 7.81 - 27.36 - 35.17
Assignment of Trade receivable to - - 35.17 - 35.17
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Liabilities Transferred 2.22 - - - 2.22
Corporate Guarantees - - -- - -
Rolta Private Ltd - - - 514.55 514.55
II | Closing Balances
Trade Receivable 2.70 69.75 - - 72.45
2.98 83.53 - - 86.51
Other Receivable 0.05 - - - 0.05
2,217.82 - - - 2,217.82
Other Deposit Taken - 0.88 - - 0.88
- 25.02 - - 25.02
Security Deposit - - - - -
Loans & Advances Given - 59.37 - - 59.37
1,297.29 59.23 - - 1,356.52
Trade Payable 7.77 42.29 - - 50.06
0.01 111.27 - 6.64 117.92
Inter Entity Advances Received 0.01 357.45 - - 357.46
1,132.74 357.45 - - 1,490.19
Investments at the Year End 237.46 - - - 237.46
244.30 - - - 244.30
Salary & Commission Payable - - 6.69 - 6.69
- - 4.77 - 4.77
Inter Corporate Deposits Taken
Rolta UK Ltd - - - - -
Rolta Private Limited - - - 548.67 548.67
- - - 541.36 541.36
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Corporate Guarantee 5,967.52 93.59 -- 940.00 7,001.12
6,208.74 97.26 - 940.00 7,246.00
Sale of Goods/Rendering of Services
10.48 - - - 10.48
Rolta International Inc. USA 11.28 — — — 11.28
-- 14.08 - - 14.08
Rolta UK Limited
- 28.35 - - 28.35
. - 0.48 - - 0.48
Rolta Middle East FZLLC
- 2.13 - - 2.13
- 1.01 - -- 1.01
Rolta Canada Ontario Limited
— 0.99 - - 0.99
Rolta Middle East FZ LLC (Oman) - ~ ~ - -
- 0.62 - - 0.62
Rolta Saudi Arabia Ltd. - — - - —
- 29.99 - - 29.99
CY - TOTAL 10.48 15.57 - -- 26.06
PY -TOTAL 11.28 62.08 - - 73.36
Sale of IP
Rolta Private Limited - - - 1.00 1.00
Rolta Overseas Private Limited - - - 1.00 1.00
CY - TOTAL - - - 2.00 2.00
PY -TOTAL - - - - -
Sale of Motor Car
Rolta Private Limited - - - 0.10 0.10
CY - TOTAL -- - - 0.10 0.10
PY -TOTAL - - - - -
Interest on Royalty Expenses
Rolta Private Limited - - - 1.47 1.47
- — — 5.11 5.1
CY - TOTAL - - - 1.47 1.47
PY -TOTAL -~ - - 5.11 5.11
Reversal of Interest on Royalty Expenses
Rolta Private Limited - - - 14.82 14.82
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CY - TOTAL - - - 14.82 14.82
PY -TOTAL - - - - -
Interests on Inter Corporate Deposit
taken
Rolta Private Limited - - - 121.06 121.06
- - - 103.40 103.40
CY - TOTAL - - - 121.06 121.06
PY -TOTAL - - - 103.40 103.40
Purchase return
Rolta BI and Big Data Analytics Pvt. Ltd. 35.71 - - - 35.71
CY - TOTAL 35.71 - - - 35.71
PY -TOTAL - - - - -
Repairs & Maint. P&M
Rolta Canada Ltd - 0.04 - — 0.04
CY - TOTAL - 0.04 - - 0.04
PY -TOTAL - - - - -
Legal Expenses
Rolta Canada Ltd - 0.01 - - 0.01
CY - TOTAL - 0.01 - - 0.01
PY -TOTAL - - - - -
‘Written-Off Other Receivables
Rolta Bl and Big Data Analytics Pvt. Ltd. 41.72 - - - 41.72
Rolta Defence Technology Systems Pvt 2,160.25 - - - 2,160.25
Ltd. - - - - -
CY - TOTAL 2,201.97 - - - 2,201.97
PY -TOTAL - - - - B
Excess Provision for Expenses Written-Back - - - 6.32 6.32
Rolta Private Limited - - - - -
CY - TOTAL - - - 6.32 6.32
PY -TOTAL - - - - -
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Reversal of Royalty Expenses

Rolta Private Limited - - - 19.40 19.40
CY - TOTAL - - - 19.40 19.40
PY -TOTAL - - - - -

Reimbursement of Expenses

Rolta International Inc. USA 0.04 - - - 0.04
2.45 - - - 2.45

Rolta Private Limited -- - - 4.29 4.29
- - - -0.01 -0.01

Rolta Middle East FZLLC - - - - -
-- -0.05 - - 0.05

Rolta UK Ltd -- - - - -
- -0.04 - - -0.04

Rolta Saudi Arabia Ltd -- - - - -

Rolta Canada Ontario Limited -- - - - -

- 0.09 - - 0.09
Rolta Overseas Pvt Ltd -- - -- 5.46 5.46
CY - TOTAL 0.04 - - 9.75 9.79
PY -TOTAL 2.45 - - (0.01) 2.44
Royalty Fees
Rolta Private Limited - - - - -
- - - 2.99 2.99
CY - TOTAL -- - - - -
PY -TOTAL - - - 2.99 2.99
Managerial Remuneration (excluding
Commission)
Mr. K.K.Singh -- - - - -
Lt. Gen. K.T. Parnaik (Rtd.) - - 0.61 - 0.61
- - 1.78 - 1.78
Mr. Dineshkumar Kapadia - - 0.78 - 0.78
- - 0.77 - 0.77
Ms. Hetal Vichhi -- - 0.09 - 0.09

- - 0.08 - 0.08
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Mr. Sateesh Dasari -- - 0.75 - 0.75
CY - TOTAL == - 2.23 - 2.23
PY - TOTAL - - 2.63 - 2.63
Managerial Remuneration (Commission)
Mr. KK Singh -- - - - -
-- - 0.78 - 0.78
CY - TOTAL -- - - - -
PY -TOTAL == - 0.78 - 0.78
Directors Sitting Fees
Lt.Gen.PPS Bhandari (Rtd.) -- - 0.07 - 0.07
-- - 0.10 - 0.10
Mr. Ramnath Pradeep - - 0.11 - 0.11
- - 0.13 - 0.13
Ms. Homai Ardeshir Daruwalla - - 0.10 - 0.10
- - 0.11 - 0.11
Mr Ramdas Gupta - - 0.05 - 0.05
CY - TOTAL - - 0.33 - 0.33
PY -TOTAL - - 0.34 - 0.34
Inter Corporate Deposit Taken
Rolta Middle East FZLLC - - - - -
-- 2.50 -- - 2.50
Rolta UK Limited -- 0.88 - - 0.88
Rolta Private Limited (ICD) Taken - - - 10.04 10.04
- - - 222 2.22
CY - TOTAL - 0.88 - 10.04 10.92
PY -TOTAL - 2.50 - 222 4.72
ESOP Given / Reversed
Rolta International Inc. USA -6.33 - - - -6.33
0.52 - - - 0.52
Rolta Global BV 0.04 - - - 0.04
0.42 - - - 042
Rolta BI and Big Data Analytics Pvt Ltd - - - - -
0.06 - -- - 0.06
Rolta Defence Technologies Systems Pvt 1td -0.55 - - - -0.55
0.40 - - - 0.40

98-99



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information to

the Standalone Financial Statements
As at and the For the year ended 31" March 2021

CY -TOTAL -6.84 - - - -6.84
PY -TOTAL 1.40 - - - 1.40
Loans & Advances Given
Rolta International Inc.USA - - - - -
1,082.45 - - - 1,082.45
Rolta Overseas Private Ltd - - - - -
Rolta Defence Technology Systems Pvt Ltd. 6.12 - - - 6.12
8.84 - - - 8.84
Rolta BI and Big Data Analytics Pvt Ltd. 4.17 - - - 4.17
1.32 - -- - 1.32
Rolta UK Ltd. -- - -- - -
~ 19.39 - -~ 19.39
Rolta Middle East FZLLC - 0.03 - - 0.03
- 39.84 - - 39.84
CY - TOTAL 10.29 0.03 - - 10.32
PY -TOTAL 1,092.61 59.23 - - 1,151.84
Loans Taken
Rolta International Inc.USA 7.81 - - - 7.81
Rolta Overseas Pvt Ltd - - - 4.58 4.58
Rolta Private Limited - - - 16.18 16.18
Rolta UK Ltd. - 0.88 - - 0.88
CY - TOTAL 7.81 0.88 - 20.76 29.45
PY -TOTAL - - - - -
Adjustment of Export advance received /
(payable) against receivable on account
of Devolvement of Stand by Letter of
Credits.
Rolta International Inc.USA 1,132.73 - - - 1,132.73
Rolta Canada Ltd 118.40 - - - 118.40
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CY - TOTAL 1,251.13 - - - 1,251.13
PY -TOTAL - - - - _
Adjustment of Receivables against Loans

Liability

Rolta Overseas Pvt Ltd - - - 1.00 1.00
Rolta Private Limited - - - 1.00 1.00
CY - TOTAL == - - 2.00 2.00
PY -TOTAL - - - - -
Assignment of Trade receivable of

Rolta International Inc.USA 7.81 - - - 7.81
Rolta UK Ltd. -- 27.36 - - 27.36
CY - TOTAL 7.81 27.36 - - 35.17
PY -TOTAL == - - - -
Assignment of Trade receivable to

Rolta PvtLtd - - - 32.63 32.63
Rolta Overseas Pvt Ltd - - - 2.54 2.54
CY - TOTAL - - - 35.17 35.17
PY -TOTAL == - - - -
Liability Transfer

Rolta Defence Technology Systems Pvt Ltd. 2.22 - - - 2.22
CY - TOTAL 2.22 - - - 2.22
PY -TOTAL - - - - _
Corporate Guarantee Given - - - - -
Rolta Private Ltd - - - 514.55 514.55
CLOSING BALANCES

Trade Receivable

Rolta International Inc. USA 2.65 - - - 2.65
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Rolta UK Ltd. -- 19.30 - - 19.30

- 30-02 - - 30-02

ROLTAMIDDLE EASTFZ1LC,, - 50.44 - - 50.44

- 51.25 - - 51.25

ROLTA MIDDLE EAST OMAN - - - - -

Rolta Middle East Ltd. (Bahrain) - - - - -

ROLTA SAUDI ARABIA -- - - - -

Rolta Canada Ontario Limited - - - - -

- 2.25 - - 2.25

Rolta American LLC - 0.01 - - 0.01

-- 0.01 - - 0.01

Rolta BI and Big Data Analytics Pvt. Ltd. -- - - - -

2.98 - - - 2,98

Rolta Thales Limited 0.05 - - - 0.05

CY - TOTAL 2.70 69.75 - - 72.45

PY -TOTAL 298 83.53 - - 86.51

Other Receivable

Rolta International Inc. USA - - - - -

59.71 - - - 59.71

Rolta Defence Security Systems Pvt Ltd. - - - - -

2,156.74 - - - 2,156.74

Rolta BI and Big Data Analytics Pvt Ltd -- -- - - -

1.36 - - - 1.36

Rolta Thales Ltd 0.05 - - - 0.05

0.01 - - - 0.01

CY - TOTAL 0.05 - - - 0.05

PY -TOTAL 2,217.82 - - - 2,217.82
Other Deposit Taken

Rolta UK Ltd - 0.88 - - 0.88

Rolta Middle East FZLLC - - - - -

- 25.02 - - 25.02

CY - TOTAL - 0.88 - - 0.88

PY -TOTAL - 25.02 - - 25.02
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Loans & Advances Given
Rolta Defence Security Systems Pvt Ltd. - - - - -
153.77 - - - 153.77
Rolta BI and Big Data Analytics Pvt Ltd - - - - -
1.36 -- - -- 1.36
Rolta Thales Ltd - - - - -
Rolta International Inc. USA - - - -- -
1,142.16 -- - - 1,142.16
Rolta UK Ltd. -- 19.44 - - 19.44
- 19.39 - - 19.39
Rolta Middle East FZLLC -- 39.93 - - 39.93
- 39.84 - - 39.84
CY - TOTAL -- 59.37 - - 59.37
PY -TOTAL 1,297.29 59.23 - - 1,356.52
Trade Payable
Rolta Private Limited -- - - - -
- - - 6.64 6.64
Rolta UK Ltd - 0.31 - - 0.31
- 0.30 - - 0.30
Rolta Middle East FZLLC - 35.81 - - 35.81
-- 11.44 -- - 11.44
Rolta Middle East Ltd. (Oman) - - - - --
- 0.08 - - 0.08
Rolta Middle East Ltd. (Baharin) -- - -- - -
- 0.03 - -- 0.03
Rolta Saudi Arabia Ltd . - . . -
- -6.94 - - -6.94
Rolta Canada Ontario Limited - 6.17 - - 6.17
- 106.36 - - 106.36
Rolta Defence Security Systems Pvt Ltd. 3.76 - - - 3.76
Rolta BI and Big Data Analytics Pvt Ltd 4.01 - - - 4.01
0.01 - - - 0.01
CY - TOTAL 7.77 42.29 - - 50.06
PY - TOTAL 0.01 111.27 - 6.64 117.92
Inter Entity Advances Received
Rolta International Inc - - - - -
1,132.73 - -- - 1,132.73
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Rolta UK Ltd. -- 188.20 -- - 188.20
-- 188.20 -- - 188.20
Rolta Middle East FZ LLC - 169.25 - - 169.25
- 169.25 - - 169.25
Rolta Thales Ltd 0.01 - - -- 0.01
0.01 -- - - 0.01
CY - TOTAL 0.01 357.45 - - 357.46
PY -TOTAL 1,132.74 357.45 == - 1,490.19
Investments
Rolta International Inc. USA 206.94 -- - -- 206.94
213.27 - -- -- 213.27
Rolta Thales Ltd. 2.55 -- - -- 2.55
2.55 - -- -- 2.55
Rolta Global BV 1.20 - - - 1.20
1.16 - - - 1.16
Rolta Bl and Big Data Analytics Pvt Ltd. 0.52 - - - 0.52
0.52 - - -- 0.52
Rolta Defence Technologies Systems Pvt ltd 26.25 - - - 26.25
26.80 - - - 26.80
CY - TOTAL 237.46 - - - 237.46
PY -TOTAL 244.30 - - - 244.30
Salary & Commission Payable
Mr. K K Singh Commission - - 3.17 - 3.17
-- -- 3.17 - 3.17
Lt. Gen. K.T. Parnaik Salary -- - 0.31 - 0.31
- - 0.36 - 0.36
Commission -- - 1.10 - 1.10
-- -- 1.10 - 1.10
Mr. Sateesh Dassari Salary - - 0.41 - 0.41
Commission -- - - - -
Mr. Dineshkumar Kapadia Salary - - 0.59 - 0.59
-- - 0.14 - 0.14
Commission - - 1.10 - 1.10
Ms. Hetal Vichhi Salary -- - 0.01 - 0.01
Commission - - -- - --
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Enterprises over
which significant
influence
exercised by Key
Mgmt. Personnel
CY - TOTAL - - 6.69 - 6.69
PY-TOTAL - - 4.77 - 4.77
Inter Corporate Deposits Taken
Rolta Private Limited -- -- == 548.67 548.67
- - - 541.36 541.36
CY - TOTAL -- - - 548.67 548.67
PY -TOTAL - - - 541.36 541.36
Corporate Gurantees
Rolta UK Ltd. - Corporate Guarantees for
- 93.59 - - 93.59
Performance
- 97.26 - - 97.26
Rolta International Inc. - Bond
5,967.52 - - - 5,967.52
Guarantees
6,208.74 - - - 6,208.74
Rolta Private Ltd. - Counter Guarantees - - - 940.00 940.00
- - - 940.00 940.00
CY - TOTAL 5,967.52 93.59 - 940.00 7,001.11
PY -TOTAL 6,208.74 97.26 - 940.00 7,246.00
Notes:

a) Related party relationship is as identified by the company on the basis of information available.

b) No amount has been written off or written back during the year in respect of debts due from or to related parties, except what is stated
above.

¢) The Company has entered into transactions with certain parties as listed above during the year under consideration. Full disclosures
have been made and the Board considers such transactions to be in the normal course of business and at rates agreed upon between the
parties.

d) Allloansto subsidiaries are given for meeting their working capital requirements.

e) Some of the Key Management Personnel are also covered under the Company's Gratuity Plan along with the other employees of the
Company which is not included in the above disclosure.

f)  Disclosure pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Maximum
As at Outstanding during As at
31" March, 2021 the year ended 31" 31" March, 2020
March, 2021

Maximum

Outstanding during
the year ended 31"
March, 2020

Rolta Defence Technology Systems Pvt ltd. 0.52 0.52 153.77 153.77
Rolta BI and Big Data Analytics Pvt Ltd. 1.57 1.57 1.36 1.36
Rolta Thales Ltd. 0.12 0.12 0.01 0.01
Rolta International Inc. USA - - 59.71 59.71

Note : None of the above mentioned parties hold shares of the company.

35. Rightof Use-Lease Assets and Lease Liabilities

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash
flows.

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 15.81%.

The Summary of practical expedients elected on initial application.

. Applied the exemption not to recognize ROU assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial
application.

. Applied the practical expedient by not reassessing whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial application. Instead
applied the standards only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.
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36. Earning Per Share—EPS

EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Numbers used for calculating basic and diluted earnings per equity share are as stated below.

. For the year ended For the year ended
Setaias 31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
2. | Before Exceptional Item
Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders for Basic EPS (in ¥ Cr.) (744.51) (641.61)
EPS X ) Basic (44.88) (38.68)
EPS X ) Diluted (44.66) (38.30)
For the year ended For the year ended
Eearylan 31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
b. | After Exceptional Item
Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders for Basic EPS (in ¥ Cr.)) (3,161.70) (596.85)
EPS X ) Basic (190.59) (35.98)
EPS ] ) Diluted (189.66) (35.63)
Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
‘Weighted nos. of shares for Basic Earnings per share 165,891,355 165,891,355
Adjusted on account of ESOPs 8,12,500 1,637,500
Weighted nos. of shares for Diluted Earnings per share 166,703,855 1,67,528,855
37. Contingent Liabilities not provided for
Partical For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Corporate guarantees issued to customers & third party 7,001.12 7,246.00
ii. | Bank Guarantee issued for projects 35.28 35.28
iii. | Claims against the company by customers and employees not acknowledged as debt 19.29 18.09
iv. | Disputed demands in respect of
* Sales tax and VAT 13.58 11.17
« Service tax 0.88 0.88
» GST 30.01 -
v | Liabilities, if any, in respect of non compliance with various laws/acts and .
interest /penalty on such liabilities, if any, as may arise. Amount not determinable

The Company's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company and proceedings pending with Tax and other Authorities (including
the cases, where the tax authorities have filed the appeal against the matters decided in favour of the Company). The Company has reviewed all its
pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities, wherever
applicable, in its financial statements and the Company does not reasonably expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact on
its financial statements.

38. Auditor's Remuneration

Auditor's Remuneration F;;.u;;;:: g‘;‘l F;;.w ;;gzd

Audit fees 0.20 0.25
Limited Review - 0.29
Other Matters - 0.06
Out of Pocket expenses - 0.03
Total 0.20 0.63




Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information to

the Standalone Financial Statements
As at and the For the year ended 31" March 2021

39. Financial Instrument

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on Balance
Sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income
and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments are disclosed in note 2i to
the financial statements.

(@) CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILOTIES
All financial assets and financial liabilities are valued at amortized cost.
(b) FAIRVALUEHIERARCHY

There are no financial assets or liabilities of the Company which, after their initial recognition, have been fair valued either during the
year orin the previous year.

(c) FINANCIAL RISKMANAGEMENT POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES:

The Company, in the course of its business, is exposed to a variety of financial risks, viz. market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk which
can adversely impact the financial performance. The Company's endeavour is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and
seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company has a risk management policy which not only
covers the foreign exchange risk but also other risks such as interest rate risk and credit risk which are associated with financial assets and
liabilities. The risk management policy of the Company is approved by its Board of Directors. The risk management framework focuses
on actively securing the Company's short to medium term cash flows by minimising the exposure to financial markets.

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the
price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates, equity price fluctuations, liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be
normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

A. Foreign currency exchange rate risk:
The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have a potential impact on the standalone statement of profit and loss and equity.
This arises from transactions entered into in foreign currency and assets/liabilities which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the Company.
A majority of the Company's foreign currency transactions are denominated in US Dollars. Other foreign currency transactions entered
into by the Company are in Sterling Pound (GBP), Euro, Saudi Riyal, Canadian Dollar, Australian Dollar and UAE Dirhams. However,
the size of these transactions are relatively small in comparison to the US dollar transactions. Thus, the foreign currency sensitivity
analysis has only been performed in relation to the US Dollar (USD).
The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange rate risks. Further, in
accordance with its risk management policy, Company does not hedge its risks by using any derivative financial instruments.

Details of foreign currency exposure in USD are as follows:

Currency As at 31" March, 2021 As at 31" March, 2020
. Foreign Currency in Lakhs  (in¥Crore) Foreign Currency in Lakhs (in¥Crore)
USD 76.12 55.95 75.79 54.87
) GBP 18.70 18.87 - -
Trade Receivables EUR 0.24 021 — B
CAD - -- - -
USD 19.41 14.27 4,53 30.56
GBP 0.14 0.14 - -
Trade payable EUR 0.16 0.13 - -
AUD 0.15 0.01 ~ -
Borrowings USD - - 403.85 304.45
Foreign Currency sensitivity

A 5% appreciation / depreciation of the USD with respect to INR would result in decrease / increase in the Company's net profit before tax for
the year ended 31st March, 2021 by approximately ¥ 4.48 Cr. / Y 4.48 Cr. respectively (previous year ended 31st March, 2020 : ¥14.01 Cr. /
¥14.01 Cr. respectively).

B. Interestrate risk

The Company is exposed to Interest rate risk because the Company has borrowed funds atboth fixed & floating interest rates. Interest rate risk
has been measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. The sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to financial instruments at the end of the reporting period. Any movement in the reference rates could have an impact on the
Company's cash flows as well as costs.

The Company had borrowed through a number of financial instruments such as External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs), Rupee term loans
and working capital demand loans. The Company is subject to variable interest rates on some of these interest bearing liabilities. As at the end
of the current reporting period, the liability on account of ECB's has devolved on the parent Company and is now repayable in Indian Rupees.
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41.

43.

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 50 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also assumes that the
change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The year end balances are
not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the year.

Based on the composition of net debt, a 50 basis points impact on interest rates over the 12 month period would result in Company's net finance
expense by approximately ¥+ 16.18 crores (P.Y. ¥+ 14.83 crores).

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or
obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration
risks.

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables and loans.

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk
controls. The Company's policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. The Company management considers that all the financial
assets that are not impaired for each of the reporting dates under review are of good credit quality, including those that are past due. None of
the Company financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

In respect of receivables other than trade receivables, the Company's exposure to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty
or any groups of counterparties having similar characteristics is considered to be negligible. The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-
term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. The
Company has customer concentration risk as majority of the customers are government department / semi-government organization and
public sector undertakings.

The Company's exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the Balance Sheet date.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the probability that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

The Company is presently facing a severe liquidity crisis, primarily on account of non-realization of its receivables, as a result of which it has
not been able to discharge its financial obligations.

. (@) The step down International subsidiary of the Company had issued in 2013 Bonds of US$ 200 Mn and in 2014 US$ 300 Mn. Both the bonds

have matured in Financial Year 2018 and 2019. Out of the above Bondholders, certain Bondholders obtained an order of Supreme Court of
The State of New York, County of New York, has been passed on September 02, 2020 in favour of certain Bondholders for an amount of US $
183 million (approx) plus interest at 9% upto the date of payment against the Company and six International Subsidiaries of the Company.
Further a turnover order dated October 20, 2020 on a motion submitted by the plaintiffs was passed by the said Hon'ble Court in New York in
favour of the Plaintiffs, directing the defendants to turn over their cash on hand and their stock/membership interest owned in subsidiaries of
the company. The international defendants except Rolta India Ltd. filed voluntary Chapter — 11 proceedings in the United States Bankruptcy
Court for the Northern District of Alabama in the U.S. on October 29, 2020. By virtue of this filing, enforcement of the judgment against the
international defendants has been stayed. The Federal Bankruptcy Court had finally rejected Chapter 11 proceedings in April 2021.
Thereafter Rolta International Inc. has filed an appeal on May 17, 2021 against the rejection of Federal Court in District Court of Alabama
which is the Appellate Court. This appeal is still pending. Rolta India Ltd. has filed a suit no. 3396/2020 dated November 10, 2020 in Hon'ble
Bombay High Court with the main prayer to grant interim injunction and declare that the summary judgement dated September 2, 2020 and
turnover order dated October 20, 2020 cannot be executed by the Plaintiffs against the defendants unless domesticated in India. The hearing for
said suit are ongoing,.

(b) Supreme Court of New York appointed a receiver vide its order dated 17th June, 2021 against RUS and Rolta India Ltd. The said Court of
New York further appointed areceiver againstothersubsidiaries of RoltaIndiaLtd videits order dated August, 24, 2021. Such receiver had
also issued a letter dated September 3, 2021 for holding a meeting to remove the Board of RUS on 13th September, 2021. However, the
Receiver hasbeen informed by the Legal Advisor of Rolta India Ltd in US that the said meetingis not valid as summary judgement dated
Sept.,2020 and Turnover Order of October,2020 against Rolta India Ltd and its subsidiary Rolta Global BV has notbeen domesticated in
India and Netherland. The matter remains disputed and is now with the Honourable Supreme Court of New York County for taking the
decision in the matter.

Notwithstanding these developments, the Company continues to carry in its books the amount receivable from these entities amounting to
. 2.64 crores.

The Company has adjusted in its book the amount receivable from its US subsidiary, Rolta International Inc.(RUS) arising from devolvement
of Standby Letters of Credit (SBLC) and interest thereon against long term export advances received. Further, the company has also adjusted
amount payable to step down subsidiary of RUS against the SBLC dues receivable from RUS. The Company has made necessary applications
stating the above facts to Reserve Bank of India for their permission for adjusting the amount receivable from RUS against the amount payable
to them, which is still awaited.

. Pursuant to the execution of a definitive Restructuring Services Agreement (RSA) entered with the Streamcast Group on August 6, 2019,

under the terms of which the Streamcast Group will assist Rolta India Ltd., its group companies and its subsidiaries in repayment and
restructuring of its liabilities, the Company expects that this along with the valuable IPs that the Company and its subsidiaries possess, would
also result in getting more orders in due course, after the investment of Streamcast Group has been received as per RSA subject to receipt of
statutory approval by them. The Streamcast Group has been vigorously following up for the said international approval but have been delayed
due to COVID -19 situation World over. After restructuring of the business, the management of the Company is confident, that the business
will improve substantially. Under the circumstances, the Management of the Company is of the view that the Company continues to be a going
concern.

Company's current bank accounts (except for current account with Axis Bank where inward foreign remittances were not permitted) were
attached by the Income Tax Department (TDS division) during September 2019. In absence of operating Current accounts, the export
remittances from RIL's overseas subsidiaries were received by the Group Companies Rolta Private Limited (RPL) and Rolta Overseas Private
Limited (ROPL) by way of assignments of Invoices raised on RIL's overseas subsidiaries and the funds so received were utilised / transferred
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to RIL's accounts with Axis Bank for meeting the operational expenses.

The Company has adjusted the funds so received by RPL and ROPL from overseas subsidiaries against the export Invoices raised on these
subsidiaries.
The above adjustment by the Company is supported by an opinion from alegal firm.

44. In February 2020, Tower C which is situated in the same complex as the Corporate Office caught fire due to a short circuit, causing substantial
damage to the building and the assets housed therein. The police panchanama was done at that time. Company has received a Structural
Survey Report from the Surveyor appointed by the Company, who has recommended to demolish the entire building due to severe damages to
the Structural work of the building and recommended for new construction.

Accordingly, the Company has written off ¥. 162.84 Crores towards cost of net Written Down Value of the building as on 31.3.2020 in the
books. The Company has applied for the insurance claim and it is under process of being settled towards cost of buildings, furniture and
computer systems and other equipments.

45, The National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) uploaded on 25th May,2021 on their website the appointment of Interim Resolution
Professional (IRP) vide order dated 13th May 2021 by NCLT by admitting the application of certain ex-employees of Rolta India Ltd
(CP1069/2020) and its subsidiary Rolta BI Big Data Analytics Pvt Ltd (CP 1370/2020) and Rolta Defence Technology Systems Pvt. Ltd (CP
1032/2020). The IRP took control of the company on 25/05/2021 from Board of Directors and started the CIRP process.

The company thereafter entered into a settlement agreement with concerned ex-employees and submitted to NCLT. Subsequent to the
submission of these agreements before the NCLT, the NCLT did not consider the said Settlement Agreement and continued the IRP process.
Based on the above order of NCLT, the Company and its subsidiaries mentioned above filed petitions before NCLAT and NCLAT was pleased
to stay the appointment of “Committee of Creditors” vide its orders No. CA 384 of 2021, CA 382 OF 2021 dated 28.05.2021

Thereafter, on behalf of the Company, Mr. Kamal K. Singh, challenged the NCLT Orders in the Hon'ble Supreme Court by filing a Special
Leave Petition and the Hon'ble Supreme Court was pleased to pass the orders for dismissal of the CIRP process by NCLT for Rolta India Ltd
vide its order No.CA 4993 of 2021 dated 25.08.2021. Further, the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order No. 5028 of 2021 dated 27/08/2021
and Order No. 5679 of 2021 dated 27/08/2021 passed the Orders dismissing the IRP inrespectof Rolta BI Big Data Analytics Private Ltd
and Rolta Defence Technology Systems Private Ltd.

Thereafter, the Board of Directors was reinstated based on the said orders of the Hon'ble Supreme Court and started compliances and
finalisation of its books of accounts for the year ended 31/03/2021 and the same have been audited and approved by the Audit Committee and
by the Board as ontoday's date.

46. Union Bank of India and certain Bondholders have filed application in NCLT seeing relief under Section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code. The said petition is still to be heard for admission.

47. Union Bank of India, Central Bank of India, Bank of Baroda and Syndicate Bank (now owned by Canara Bank) have filed Securitisation
Application (SA) in DRT Court, Mumbai and the company is contesting the same and the said applications are pending in the DRT-1 Court,
Mumbai.

48, Unbilled receivable includes an amount of . 274.83 crores receivable from a Government Department towards maintenance and support
services provided by the Company, at the request of the user department, pending renewal of the contract. The process for approval of this
amount is almost at the last stage of finalisation and the Company is confident of recovering the amount at an early date.

49. The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has impacted and continues to impact the operations of the Company. The Management of the Company
continues to monitor the situation closely. However as there is a uncertainty regarding as to when the situation will return to normalcy, it is
currently not possible to ascertain the complete impact of the pandemic on the Company.

50. The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19

51. Thereisanamount of ¥.1800 (P.Y. 1800) due and outstanding, to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

52. Segment information hasbeen presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

53. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the classification adopted for the current year.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
SO "
y -2’/—/ — =N .),;
K. K. Singh Homai A Daruwalla Ramnath Pradeep
Chairman & Managing Director Director Director
DIN: 002 DIN: DIN: 026082
For J. Kala & Associates IN: 00260977 IN: 00365880 IN: 02608230
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118769W e~
\ Ramdas B Gupta Lt. Gen. K T-Parnaik (Rtd.) Sateesh Dasari
vbﬂ/ Director Joint Managing Director Executive Director
~ : DIN: 08431597 DIN: 07129253 DIN: 09042563

Jayesh Kala v )

Partner b J l/CA-M WHQ}QA’
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Mumbai Mumbai \
2nd November, 2021 2nd November, 2021
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Corporate Governance
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1. The Company's Philosophy

The Company adheres to good corporate practices and is constantly
striving to better them and adopt emerging best practices. It is believed that
adherence to business ethics and commitment to corporate social
responsibility will help the Company achieve its goal of maximizing value
for all its stakeholders. The Company is committed to good corporate
governance and continuously reviews various investor relationship
measures with a view to enhance stakeholders' value. The Company has
adopted a Code of Conduct for top four tiers of management including the
‘Whole-time Directors and Independent Directors besides Vice-Presidents
and above. This Code of Conduct is posted on the website of the Company.
The Company's Corporate Governance policy has been further
strengthened through the “Policy on Prevention of Insider Trading” which
is in line with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
Regulations in this regard. We firmly believe that Board independence is
essential to bring objectivity and transparency in the management and the
dealings of the Company. The Company provides detailed information on
various issues concerning the Company’s business and financial
performance to the Board.

The Company has complied with the requirements as laid down in
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015(Listing Regulations) as set out
below.

2. (A)Board of Directors

I. Composition of the Board:

The Board of Directors of the Company includes individuals who are
professionals in their respective areas of specialization and who have held
eminent positions. The Board is broad based and comprises of individuals
drawn from management, technical and financial fields. The members of
the Board are individuals with leadership qualities and strategic insights.
The current policy of the Company is to have an Executive Chairman who
is also the Managing Director. Directors including Non-Executive
Directors are professionally competent. The Company has an appropriate
mix of Executive and Independent Directors to maintain independence of
Board, and as at March 31, 2021, the Board consists of six members, of
which three are Non- Executive Independent Directors. None of the Non-
Executive Independent Directors are responsible for day-to-day affairs of
the Company. The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its
composition and size. Directors notify the Company of any change that
takes place in their number of Directorship and/or membership in

Number of Board

Financial year ended
March 31, 2021

committees vide disclosures at the Board Meetings. None of the Executive
Directors of the Company serves as a Director in more than seven listed
entities and none of the Independent Directors of the Company are serves
as an Independent Director in more than seven listed entities. Also, the
Managing Director of the Company does not serve as an Independent
Director in any listed entities. None of the Directors on the Board of the
Company are member of more than ten committees and Chairman of more
than five committees, across all other public Limited Companies in which
they are Director(s). Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary
of the Committees as well.

Information as required in [Part C] of Schedule V of Listing Regulations is
placed before the Board regularly for its consideration.

(ii) Board Meetings:

During the year ended March 31, 2021, Six (06) Board Meetings were held
with a minimum of one meeting in each Quarter. The time gap between any
two Board meetings did not exceed 120 days. The dates on which the said
meetings were held were as follows:

July 15, 2020; September 15, 2020; November 11, 2020; December 5,
2020; December 31, 2020 and February 11, 2021.

The Non-Executive Directors were paid sitting fee for attending each
meeting of the Board and Committee meetings respectively. All sitting fees
paid to the Non-Executive Directors are fixed by the Board of Directors.
The Company has not allotted any Employee Stock Option to Non-
Executive Directors during the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and no
commission has been paid to the Non-Executive Directors for the period
under consideration. Details of the fees paid to the Non-Executive
Directors are disclosed elsewhere in this report.

Every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he/
she participates as a Director and thereafter at the first meeting of the Board
in every financial year, gives a declaration that he/ she meets the criteria of
independence as required under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013.

The Company had issued a formal letter of appointment to all Independent
Directors and the terms and conditions of their appointment have been
disclosed on the website of the Company. Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary of the Board Meetings.

(iii) Attendance of Directors at Board, last Annual General Meeting
(AGM) and number of other Directorship and Chairmanships/
Memberships of Committees of each Director in various companies:

Mr. Kamal Non- 6 6 YES - - - -
K Singh Independent,

(Chairman and | Executive

Managing

Director)

DIN 00260977

Ms. Homai A. | Independent, 6 6 YES - 5 3 3
Daruwalla Non-

DIN 00365880 | Executive

Mr. Ramnath | Independent, 6 6 YES - 1 2 3
Pradeep Non-

DIN 02608230 | Executive

Lt. Gen. PP S | Independent, 5 5 YES - - - -
Bhandari* Non-

(Retd.) Executive

DIN 02082258

Mr. Ramdas Independent, | 4 4 YES - - - -
Bhagwandas Non-

Gupta** Executive

DIN 08431597

Lt. Gen. KT Non- 6 6 YES - - - B
Parnaik (Retd.) | Independent,

(Joint Managing| Executive

Director)

DIN 07129253

Mr. Sateesh Non- 1 1 NA - - - -
Dasari*** Independent,

DIN 09042563 | Executive

* retired w.e.f. January 11, 2021
** appointed as Independent Director w.e.f. October 17, 2020
*** appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. February 11, 2021
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iv) Names of the Listed Entities where the person is a Director and the
Category of Directorship as on March 31, 2021

Category of Directorship
Mr. Kamal K_ Singh Rolta India Limited Executive, Non-Independent
Ms. Homai A Daruwalla Rolta India Limited Non-Executive, Independent]
Jaiprakash Associate Limited | Non-Executive, Independent
Triveni Engineering and Non-Executive, Independent]
Industries Limited
Triveni Turbine Limited Non-Executive, Independent
Gammon Infrastructure Non-Executive, Independent
Projects Limited
Associated Alcohols & Non-Executive, Independent]
Breweries Limited
Mr. Ramnath Pradeep Rolta India Limited Non-Executive, Independent
The Mandhana Retail Non-Executive, Independent]
Ventures Limited
Lt. Gen. PP.S. Bhandari (Retd.)*| Vidli R Limited Non-Executive, Independent]
Mr. Ramdas Gupta** Rolta India Limited Non-Executive, Independent]
Lt. Gen, K. T. Parnaik (Retd.)| Rolta India Limited Executive, Nop-Independent
Mr. Sateesh Dasari*** Rolta India Limited Executive, Non-Independent

* retired wee.f. January 11,2021
** appointed as an Independent Director w.e.f. October 17, 2020
*** appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. February 11, 2021

1.  The Directorships held by Directors as mentioned above, do not
include Alternate Directorships and Directorships in Foreign
Companies, Companies Registered under Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Private Limited Companies. It includes
directorships in Public Limited Companies only, including
directorship in Rolta India Limited.

2. No Director of the Company has served as an Independent
Director in more than seven listed companies.

3.  No Director of the Company is a member in more than ten
specified committees or Chairperson of such five committees
across all other public limited companies in which they are
Director(s). The confirmation in the said regard has been obtained
from the Directors. For the purpose of reckoning the limits,
Chairmanships/ Memberships of Board Committees include only
Audit and Stakeholder's Relationship Committee.

4. Company meets the requirement of having a Non-Executive
Independent Woman Director on Board.

5. Company meets the requirements of having minimum six (6)
Directors on Board.

Apart from receiving remuneration that they are entitled to under the
Companies Act, 2013 as Non-Executive Directors and reimbursement of
expenses incurred in the discharge of their duties, none of the Non-Executive
Directors has any other material pecuniary relationship or transactions with
the Company, its promoters, its Directors, its senior management or its
subsidiaries and associates. None of the Directors are inter-se related to each
other and further do not hold two percent or more of the total voting power of
the Company. The Directors and senior management of the Company have
made disclosures to the Board confirming that there are no material financial
and/ or commercial transactions between them and the Company that could
have potential conflict of interest with the Company at large.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company, without the
attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members of management,
was held on March 27, 2021, as required under Schedule I'V of the Companies
Act, 2013 (Code for Independent Directors) to review the performance of the
Board as a whole on parameters of effectiveness and to assess the quality,
quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the management and
the Board.

All the Independent Directors namely Ms. Homai A. Daruwalla,
Mr. Ramnath Pradeep & Mr. Ramdas Gupta attended the Meeting of
Independent Directors.

Board and Director Evaluation and Criteria for Evaluation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has laid down
the criteria for performance evaluation of all Directors. The Board has carried
out an annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of the

Directors, as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees except
the Director concerned being evaluated. The criteria for Board Evaluation
include inter alia, degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities, Board structure
and composition, establishment and delineation of responsibilities to various
Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning,

Criteria for evaluation of individual Directors include aspects such as
attendance and contribution at Board / Committee Meetings and guidance /
support to the management outside Board / Committee Meetings. In
addition, the Chairman & Managing Director was also evaluated on key
aspects of his role, including setting the strategic agenda of the Board,
encouraging active engagement by all Board members. Criteria for evaluation
of the Committees of the Board include degree of fulfillment of key
responsibilities, adequacy of Committee composition and effectiveness of
meetings.

Familiarisation Programme

Your Company follows a structured orientation and familiarization
programme through various reports/codes/internal policies for all the
Directors with a view to update them on the Company's policies and
procedures on a regularbasis.

Presentations are made at the Board Meetings on business and performance,
long term strategy, initiatives and risks involved. The details of
Familiarisation Programme have been posted on the website of the Company
http://www.rolta.com/wp-content/uploads//pdfs/investor-
relations/Rolta-Familarization-Program-for-Independent-Directors.pdf.

Skills/ Expertise/ Competence of the Board of Directors of the Company

Details as per Rule 8-Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows;

Mr. Kamal K. Singh

General Corporate Management, Overall Leadership,
Strategic Planning , Banking, Finance, Legal &

Technical Guidance

Ms. Homai Daruwalla Banking, General Corporate Management, Finance,
Taxation & Audit

Mr. Ramnath Pradeep Banking, General Corporate Management, Finance,
Taxation & Legal

Lt. Gen. P.P.S. Bhandad (Retd.)*| General Corporate Management, Defence & Security

Mr. Ramdas Gupta** Corporate Law & Legal Matters

Lt. Gen K.T. Parnaik (Retd.)
Mr. Sateesh Dasari***

General Corporate Management, Defence & Security

General Corporate Management, IT Management &
Technology

* retired we.f. January 11,2021
** appointed asan Independent Directorw.e.f. October 17,2020
*** appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. February 11,2021

Code of Conduct

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for members of the Board
(incorporating duties of Independent Directors) and the Senior
Management. The said Code is posted on the website of the Company viz.
http://www.rolta.com/wp-content/uploads/pdfs/investor-
relations/CodeofConduct.pdf . The Code aims at ensuring consistent
standards of conduct and ethical business practices across the Company.
Your Company has received confirmations from all concerned regarding their
adherence to the said Code.

Pursuant to Regulation 17(5)(a) of Listing Regulations, 2015, the Chairman
& Managing Director of the Company confirmed compliance with the Code
by all members of the Board and the Senior Management.

Code of Insider Trading

The Company has formulated Insider Trading Policy (Policy) under the SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (“Regulations”) with a
view to regulate, monitor and report trading in Companies securities by its
employees and other connected persons. The Policy is applicable to
Promoters and Promoter's Group, all Directors and such designated
employees who are expected to have access to Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information (UPSI) relating to the Company. The Policy further requires pre-
clearance for dealing in the Company's shares by the aforesaid persons and
their dependents' trades and prohibits the dealing while in possession of UPSI
in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window
is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code. All Board
of Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with
the Code during the year.
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The Policy is displayed on Company's website viz.
http:/ /www.rolta.com/wp-content/uploads/ / pdfs/investor-relations/Fair
disclosure-Code-2020_01.10.2020.pdf

(B) Andit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the
provisions of Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations, 2015 read with Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). All members of the Audit
Committee are financially literate and more than one-half of the members
have expertise in accounting/financial management. The representatives of
Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee Meetings.
They have attended all the Audit Committee meetings held during the year.
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

Five (05) Audit Committee Meetings were held during Financial Year 2020-
21.The dates on which the said meetings were held are as follows:

July 15, 2020; September 15, 2020; November 11, 2020; December 5, 2020
and February 11, 2021.

Attendance of Directors at the Audit Committee Meetings during the
financial year ended March 31, 2021:

Ms. Homai A. Daruwala | Chairperson 05 05
(Non-Executive,
Independent)

Mr. Ramnath Pradeep | Member (Non-Executive, 05 05
Independent)

Lt. Gen. P. P. § Bhandari | Member (Non-Executive, 04 04

(Retd.)* Independent)

Mr. Kamal K. Singh** | Managing Director 01 01

*  retired we.f. January 11,2021
** appointed as member w.e.f. February 11,2021

The Committee invited the Auditors to be present at each of these meetings.
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Coromittee. The
Audit Committee also advises the management on the areas where internal
audit process can be strengthened. The minutes of the meetings of the Audit
Committee are circulated to the members of the Committee and placed
before the Board.

Terms of Reference: The terms of reference/powers of the Audit Committee
have been specified by the Board of Directors and includes all aspects
specified under Part C of Schedule II of Regulation 18(3) of Listing
Regulations and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The
primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide effective
supervision of the management's financial reporting process with a view to
ensure accurate, timely and proper disclosures and transparency, integrity and
quality of financial reporting. The Committee oversees the work carried out
in the financial reporting process by the management, the internal auditors
and the independent auditor and reviews the processes and safeguards
employed by each.

The role of the audit committee includes the following:
1. oversight of the listed entity's financial reporting process and the

disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of
appointment of auditors of the listed entity;

3. approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services
rendered by the statutory auditors;

4. reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and
auditor's report thereon before submission to the Board for approval,
with particular reference to:

a.  matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility
Statement to be included in the Board's Report in terms of clause
(c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b.  changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons
forthe same;

c.  major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise
of judgment by management;

d.  significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising

out of audit findings;

e.  compliance with listing and other legal requirements relatiog to
financial statements;

f. disclosure of any related party transactions;
g modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

5. reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval;

6. reviewing with the management, the statement of uses/application of
funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those
stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

7. reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance,
and effectiveness of audit process;

8. approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed
entity with related parties;

9. scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10. valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is
necessary;

11. evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

12. reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

13. reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the
structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the
official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;

14. discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow
up thereon,

15. reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal
auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a

failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board;

16. discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about
the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain
any area of concern;

17. to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors;

18. toreview the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

19. approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

20. carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference
of the audit committee.

21. reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by
the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or
10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including
existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming
into force of this provision.

The Audit Committee mandatorily reviews the following information:

1) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results
of operations;

2) statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the
audit committee), submitted by management;

3) management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the
statutory auditors;

4) internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

5) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief
internal auditor shall be subject to review by the audit committee.

6) statement of deviations:

(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring
agency, if applicable, submitted to the stock exchange(s) in terms
of Regulation 32(1).

(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those
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stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of
Regulation 32(7).

(C) Nomination & Remuneration Committee (INRC):

The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 19(1) of Listing
Regulations and under SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014, asamended from time to time.

Mr. Ramnath Pradeep, Non-Executive Independent Director is the
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). Other
members of the Committee are Ms. Homai A. Daruwalla and Mr. Ramdas
Gupta, Non-Executive Independent Directors. Company Secretary acts as
the Secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,

One (01) Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting was held
during 2020-21 on February 11, 2021.

Attendance of Directors at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Meetings during the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Mr. Ramnath Pradeep Chairman 01 01
Ms. Homai A. Daruwalla Member 01 01
Mr. Ramdas Gupta Member 01 01

The terms of reference of the NRC, inter alia, includes;

(a) Formulation of policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes
and independence of a director and recommending to the Board of
Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

(b) Devisinga policy on diversity of Board of Directors

(© Identification of persons who are qualified to become directors and who
may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria
as per the policy approved by the Board, also to recommend to the Board
their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every
Director's performance. The policy of the Company is to remain
competitive in the industry, to attract and retain the best talent and
appropriately reward employees for their individual performance and
contribution to the business.

(d) To ensure that the level and composition of remuneration. is reasonable
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality
required to run the Company successfully; relationship of remuneration
to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

(¢) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the Company and its goals. Recommend to the board, all
remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

() Formulate Remuneration Policy and a policy on. Board Diversity.

(g) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the
Board.

(h) whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
Independent Director, on the basis of the report of performance
evaluation of Independent Directors.

(i) Administering, monitoring and formulating detailed termos and
conditions of the Employees' Stock Option Scheme including quantum
of options, conditions, exercise period, rights of an employee, the
granting, vesting and exercising of options, including any other function
as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or enforced by any
statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be
applicable.

(D) Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC):

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted in
line with the provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. The Committee comprises of three
Directors, out of which one is Non-Executive and two are Executive
Directors.

Mr. Ramnath Pradeep, Non-Executive, Independent Director is the
Chairman of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC). The other

members of SRC are Mr. Kamal K Singh, Executive Non-Independent
Director and Lt. Gen. K. T. Parnaik (Retd.), Executive Non-Independent
Director. Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Stakeholder
Relationship Committee.

One (01) meeting of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee was held
during the year on November 11, 2020.

Attendance of Directors at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Meetings during the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Mr. Ramnath Pradeep Chairman 01 01
Mr. Kamal K. Singh Member 01 01
Lt. Gen. K. T. Parnaik (Retd.) | Member 01 01

The role of the committee inter-alia include the following:

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity
including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-
receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by
shareholders.

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity
in respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent.

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity
for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely
receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the company.

This Committee’'s mandate requires it to look into investors' grievances
relating matters such as the transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual reports,
non-receipt of dividends and also review any cases filed by aggrieved
investors before the courts or other forums. Management Committee of
Board of Directors meets more often and also considers the matters relating to
investors litigation, complaints, correspondence, share transfer and other
investor related matters.

This Committee also supervises the Company's in-house Investor Service
Cell, which services the shareholders of the Company by monitoring,
recording and processing share transfers and requests for dematerialization of
shares.

M/s Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. is Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent. The share transfers received by the Company/Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent are generally processed and transferred within 10 days from
the date of receipt if the documents are complete in all respects. No valid
transfer request remains pending for transfer to the transferees as on March
31, 2021. All requests for dematerialization of shares are likewise processed
and confirmation thereof is normally communicated to the concerned
depository within 10 working days of receipt of all documents.

The Committee monitors the redressal of Investor Grievances. The total
number of complaints received and replied to the satisfaction of the
shareholders during the period under review was reviewed by the Committee.
There are no complaints outstanding or pending with the regulatory
authorities as on March 31, 2021 for redressal. The Company is in receipt of
"No Complaint' Certificates as on March 31, 2021 from both the Exchanges
where the equity shares are listed namely BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

There has been no major stakeholder related issues and all grievances have
been addressed to in each quarter and nil grievances are pending at the end of
the financial year. The Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer are authorised to handle day to day affairs of the
Company.

The details of the Company Secretary and Compliance Officeris as follows:

Name, designation and address of Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer:

Ms. Hetal Vichhi

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Rolta Tower A, Rolta Technology Park, MIDC—Marol,
Andheri (East), Mumbai —400093.

Email ID: investor@rolta.com
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(E) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

(F)

Details of remuneration/sitting fees paid to Directors during the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is given below:

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee was constituted
in line with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The Committee's
prime responsibility is to assist the Board in discharging its social
responsibilities by way of formulating and monitoring implementation
of the frame work of ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Policy', observe
practices of Corporate Governance at all levels and to suggest remedial
measures wherever necessary. The Committee's constitution and terms
of reference meet with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board has adopted the CSR Policy as formulated and recommended
by the Committee. The same is displayed on the website of the
Company. The Report on CSR activities for the year 2020-21 forms a
partof the Board's Report.

The Committee comprises of three Directors out of which two are
Executive and one is Non- Executive Independent Directors. Mr. Kamal
K .Singh, Executive Director is the Chairman of the Committee and its
other members include Ms. Homai A Daruwalla, Non- Executive
Independent Director & Lt. Gen. K T Parnaik (Retd.), Executive
Director. Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the CSR
Committee. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meeting was
held on September 15, 2020.

Management Committee

The Management Committee is a Committee of the Board and is
authorized to deliberate, act and decide on all matters, which the full
Board is otherwise empowered to do, except those matters, which are
specifically required by law to be considered and decided by full Board.
The Management Committee meets to deliberate and take decisions on
various matters which are relating to business operations covering
strategic, financial, corporate, legal, Subsidiary, Share transfer and
Investor Grievances. Besides removing administrative difficulties, this
enables quick decision pertaining to the routine & urgent business
operations.

Mr. Kamal K Singh is the Chairman of the Management Committee.
The Management Committee comprised of four Directors, three
Executive Directors namely Mr. Kamal K. Singh, Lt. Gen. K. T. Parnaik
(Retd.), Mr. Sateesh Dasari and one Non- Executive Independent
Director namely Mr. Ramnath Pradeep. Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary of the Management Committee.

The minutes of the Management Committee and other Committee
meetings are placed before the Board at the immediate following Board
Meeting for confirmation. Management Committee meetings were held
on September 08, 2020, March 16, 2021 and March 31,2021.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

As on March 31, 2021, the Company has 3 Indian subsidiaries namely
Rolta Defence Technology Systems Private Limited, Rolta BI & Big
Data Analytics Private Limited and Rolta Thales Limited and in-turn,
10 100% Direct/ Indirect step down overseas subsidiaries. Details of

held

w

Video Conferencing/
Other Audio Visual Means

major subsidiaries of the Company and their business operations during
the period under review are covered in the Management Discussion and
Analysis Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

A detailed report on the Management Discussion and Analysis prepared
in accordance with Regulation 34(2) of the Listing Regulations is
enclosed and forms part of this Annual Report.
GENERALBODY MEETINGS
The details of the last three Annual General Meetings where following
Special Resolutions passed:

Location Date and Time

31.12.2020 at .
12.30 PM.

Special Resolutions Passed
Appointment of

Mr. Ramdas Bhagwandas Gupta as
Non-Executive Independent Director

Rolta Tower-A, Rolta

technology Park, MIDC- 11.30 AM Ms. Homai A. Daruwalla As
Marol, Andheri (East), Non-Executive Independent Director
Mumbai-400093. .

28.09.2019 at « Re-appointment of

Re-appointment of

Mr. Ramnath Pradeep as
Non-Executive Independent Director
Re-appointment of

Lt. Gen, Padam Pal Singh Bhandari

(Retd.) as Non-Executive
Independent Director
Rolta Tower-A, Rolta 22.09.2018 at - Ni
technology Park, MIDC- 11.30 AM
Marol, Andheri (Bast),
Mumbai-400093.

L.

All resolutions moved at the last Annual General Meeting were passed
by the requisite majority of shareholders.

There was no Postal Ballot conducted in the Company in last 3 years.
Further no special resolutions are proposed to be conducted through
Postal Ballot.

DISCLOSURES
Related Party Transaction

There are no materially significant related party transactions of the
Company which have potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large. The Company has formulated a Related Party
Transactions Policy and the same is posted on the Company’s website
viz. http://www.rolta.com/wp-content/uploads//pdfs/investor-
relations/Rolta-Related-Party-Transaction-Policy.pdf

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The Company follows Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. In the preparation of the financial statements,
the Company has not adopted a treatment different from that prescribed
inany Accounting Standard.

(.in Crore)

Salacyand o ikion | Toml(A+H)

perks (B)

Mr. Kamal K Singh 01.07.2017 to - - - - -
30.06.2022

Ms. Homai A Daruwalla 15.07.2016 to - 0.10 - - 0.10
14.07.2024

Mr. Ramnath Pradeep 17.06.2016 to - 0.11 - - 0.11
16.06.2024

Lt. Gen. P P S Bhandari (Retd.)* 15.07.2016 to 15,250 0.07 - - 0.07
14.07.2021

Lt. Gen. K T Parnaik (Retd.) 30.05.2016 o 1,25,000 - 0.60 - 0.60
29.05.2022

Mr. Ramdas Bhagwandas Gupta** 17.10.2020 to N.A. 0.05 - - 0.05
16.10.2023

Mr. Sateesh Dasari*** 11.02.2021 to 10,603 - 0.10 - 0.10
10.02.2024

Figures have been rounded off wherever necessary

*

retired we.f. January 11, 2021

** appointed as an Independent Director w.e.f. October 17, 2020
*** appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. February 11, 2021
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iv.

Remuneration of Directors

The Company's remuneration policy is driven by the success and
performance of the individual employee and the Company. Through
its compensation programme, the Company endeavors to attract,
retain, develop and motivate a high performance workforce. The
Company follows a compensation mix of fixed pay, benefits and
performance based variable pay and employee stock option scheme.
Individual performance pay is determined by business performance
and the performance of the individuals measured through the annual
appraisal process.

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, benefits,
perquisites and allowances (fixed component) and commission
(variable component) to its senior management. The Annual
increments, if any, of the employees are decided through rigorous
process involving various levels of management and finally approved
by the Chairman & Managing Director as per the guidelines issued by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).The
remuneration of Whole time Director of the Company are
recommended by the NRC within the salary scale approved by the
members. The NRC decides on the commission payable to the
Managing Directors and the Executive Director(s) out of the profits
for the financial year and within the ceilings prescribed under the Act
based on the performance of the Company as well as that of the
Managing Director and Executive Directors.

The terms of remuneration of Managing Directors & Executive
Directors are approved by the shareholders at the General Meeting.
Non-Executive Directors are not paid any remuneration. However,
Non-Executive Independent Directors are entitled to sitting fees for
attending meetings of the Board and Committees thereof.

Service Contract, Severance Fee and Notice Period of the Executive
Directors

The appointment of the Executive Directors is governed by resolutions
passed by the Shareholders of the Company, which cover the terms
and conditions of such appointment, read with the service rules of the
Company. No commission has been paid to the Non-Executive
Directors of the Company. Services of the Managing Director(s)/
Executive Directors may be terminated by either party giving the other
party six months' notice or the Company paying six months' salary in
lieu thereof. There is no separate provision for payment of severance
fees.

The Company did not have any material pecuniary relationships or
transactions with the Non-Executive Directors, except to the
disclosures, if any made in any other part of the Annual Report.

Compliances by the Company

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock
Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities.

There were some delays in filing of certain quarterly/ half yearly
compliances, the penalty for such delayed compliance was levied by
Stock Exchanges. Major portion of the penalty consisted of non-
appointment of minimum 6 Directors on the Board of the Company
as a statutory requirement. The same has been complied with by the
Company on appointment of an Additional Director and the penalties
were paid off.

No strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchange, SEBI or other statutory authorities relating to the capital
markets during the last three years.

‘Whistle Blower

Your Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower
Policy to enable stakeholders (including Directors and employees) to
report unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Company's Code of Conduct. The Policy provides adequate

safeguards against victimisation of Director(s)/employee(s) and
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional
cases. Itis affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied
access to the Audit Committee.

Your Company affirms that no complaints were received during the
year. The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on the Company's
website.

Share Capital Audit

A practicing Company Secretary has carried out a Reconciliation of
Share Capital every quarter to reconcile the total admitted capital with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and
listed capital. The Reconciliation confirms that the total issued/paid
up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical
form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL
and CDSL.

Compliance with Mandatory and Non-Mandatory requirements

The Company has duly complied with the requirements of the
provisions of Corporate Governance specified under the Listing
Regulations, as well as with the Regulations of the Securities
Exchange Board of India and such other statutory authority relating to
the Capital Markets.

Adoption of non-mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations is
being reviewed by the Board from time to time.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Timely disclosure of consistent, relevant and up-to-date information
on corporate matters, financial matters etc. are at the core of good
corporate governance, Towards this end, the quarterly financial results
of the Company were published within 45 days of the end of each
quarter and the Audited Annual Standalone and Consolidated
Financial Results within 60 days of the end of the financial year. The
Quarterly Financial Results are published in newspapers of English
and Marathi languages. These results are generally published in
Mumbai Edition of ‘'The Free Press Journal' and ‘Navshakti' and all
India edition of 'Financial Express'. The results are posted on the
Company's website www.rolta.com. Investors/shareholders may
directly address their queries at 'investor@rolta.com'. The results of
the Company are promptly forwarded to the Stock Exchanges where
at the equity shares of the Company are listed. The Company also
ensures that important announcements are made to the Stock
Exchanges for information of the Shareholders. The entire Annual
Report of the Company as well as the Quarterly Results are also
available on the Company’s website. The Management's Discussion
and Analysis (MDA) giving an overview of the Company’s business
and its financials etc., Risk Management, Shareholders' Information,
Ratio and Ratio Analysis, Directors’ Profile are provided separately in
this Annual Report.

As per the guidelines prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
vide General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 17/2020
dated April 13, 2020, 22/2020, 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, dated
June 15, 2020, 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, 39/2020 dated 31
December 2020, 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and 10/2021 dated
June 23, 2021, in view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and
pursuant to applicable laws, the Notice and the Annual Report 2020-
21 is being dispatched only in electronic form to those shareholders
who have registered their email id with the DPs/ R &T Agents and the
Thirty First Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held via
Video conference or Other Audio Visual Means .

A copy of the notice of the Thirty First Annual General Meeting and
the Annual Report 2020-21 is also available for shareholders on the
website of the Company at www.rolta.com
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8. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 11. CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A Certificate from Chairman & Managing Director and Chief As required under Listing Regulations, 2015, the certificate on
Financial Officer on the financial statements of the Company and on compliance of the Corporate Governance norms is as follows:
the matters which were required to be certified according to the . . .
Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, are placed before the Dt.aclaratmn of Con}pha.nce with the Code of Conduct for the Bpard of
. . Directors and Senior Management Personnel for the financial year
Board and accordingly confirmed to the Board that to the best of their underreview. have been duly obtained
knowledge and belief, the financial statements and cash flow ’ y ’
statements present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs 1, Kamal K Singh, Chairman and M: ing Director of the Company,
S Tl Rt XIS = hereby declare that pursuant to Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing
7y
9. REPORTON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the
Board members and Senior Management personnel have given
The Corporate Governance Report forms part of the Annual Report. affirmation about their compliance with their respective Code of
The Company is fully compliant with the provisions of Corporate Conduct of the C forthe f alye ded March 31, 2021
Governance as required under the Listing Regulations. The Company onductol tact-ompany for calyearende ’ ’
has submitted the quarterly compliance status report to the stock
exchanges within the prescribed time limit.
10. CODEOFCONDUCT
In compliance with regulation 26(3) of the Listing Regulation, the b
Company has framed and adopted a code of conduct. The code is
applicable to the members of the Board and Senior Management
Personnel of the Company and its subsidiaries. All the members of the Mumbai Kamal K Singh
Board and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance December 06, 2021 Chairman and Managing Director
to the Code asonMarch 31, 2021. DIN:00260977
CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To,
The Members,
Rolta India Limited

‘We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Rolta India Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2021 as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the said Company with Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an

expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule

V of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

‘We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the

Management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: MUMBAI
Date: December 06, 2021
UDIN: A037337C001668659

For C. B. JAIN & ASSOCIATES

-

Chirag Jain
(Company Secretary in Practice)
ACS No. 37337; C.P. No. 13973



Corporate Governance
As at March 31, 2021

CERTIFICATE ON NON-DISQUALIFCATION OF DIRECTORS
To,

The Members,

RoltaIndia Limited

1. ThatRolta India Limited (CIN: L74999MH1989PL.C052384) is having its registered office at Rolta Tower —A, Technology Park, 22nd Street
MIDC- MAROL, Andheri (East), Mumbai—400 093 (hereinafter referred as “the Company”). The equity shares of the Company are listed on
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

II. Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at
the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we hereby certify that
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2021 have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, New Delhi or any such other Statutory Authority.

L Name of Director Designation DIN Date of Appointment
1. Mr. Kamal Singh Krishan Managing Director 00260977 01/07/2007

2. Ms. Homai Ardeshir Daruwalla Independent Director 00365880 15/07/2016

3. Mr. Ramnath Pradeep Independent Director 02608230 17/06/2016

4. Mr. Kaiwalya Trivikram Parnaik Managing Director 07129253 30/05/2016

5. Mr. Ramdas Bhagwandas Gupta Independent Director 08431597 17/10/2020

6. Mr. Sateesh Dasari Executive Director 09042563 11/02/2021

III. We further report that the ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

IV. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For C. B. JAIN & ASSOCIATES

-

Place: MUMBAI Chirag Jain
Date: December 6, 2021 (Company Secretary in Practice)
UDIN: A037337C001668659 ACS No. 37337; C.P. No. 13973
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Management Discussion And Analysis

Company Overview

Rolta India Limited (referred to also as “Rolta” or “The
Company” in this section) is an Indian Information
Technology (“IT”) company with its corporate headquarter in
Mumbai. In addition to its headquarter, the Company operates
through subsidiaries in US, Middle East, UK and in India.

Future Outlook

The Company made an announcement on the Stock
Exchanges at Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock
Exchange on May 11, 2019 announcing an investment of
%. 5,500 crore by a reputed high tech international group “The
Streamcast Group”. Further in conjunction to this, the
Company executed Definitive Restructuring Services
Agreement (RSA) with Streamcast Group on August 06, 2019
under the terms of which, Streamcast Group will assist Rolta
in repayment and restructuring its liabilities (including
providing financial assistance) commencing with immediate
effect. Due to the world wide pandemic of CoVid-19, certain
statutory approvals of Investor are pending in Europe. Once
they get statutory approval, they will make this investment in
the Company as above.

Digital Transformation has emerged as a driver of sweeping
change in the world around us. It is the integration of digital
technology into all areas of a business resulting in fundamental
changes of how businesses operate and how they deliver value
to customers. This digital revolution is being fueled by
technologies such as the Cloud, Mobility, Enterprise/Cyber
Security, Internet of Things (IoT) and Big Data Analytics,
amongst others.

Rolta with its rare combination of deep Geospatial and
Engineering expertise combined with its IT process and
differentiated IP based software packages has established an
enviable track record to help its customers on their Digital
Transformation in each of the areas it serves i.e. Defence &
Securities, Geospatial Solutions & Big Data Analytics

Internal Control System and their adequacy

The internal control systems adopted by the Company are
adequate and appropriate to its operations. The system has
been designed to ensure that assets and interest of the
Company are protected and dependability of accounting data
and its accuracy are ensured with proper checks and balances.
The Company has internal audit conducted by an independent
firm of Chartered Accountants to examine and evaluate the
adequacy and effectiveness of Internal Control System. The

internal audit ensures that the systems designed and
implemented, provides adequate internal control
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company.

The Audit Committee of the Board, periodically apprised of
internal audit finding. The Audit Committee of the Company
chaired by an Independent Director and consisting of other
Non-Executive Independent Directors and Whole Time
Director periodically reviews the quarterly, half yearly and
annual financial statements of the Company. A detailed note
on the functioning of the Audit Committee forms part of the
chapter on Corporate Governance in this Annual Report.
Statutory Auditors also presents their important observation to
the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Company has an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were effective operating as at
March 31, 2021. The statutory auditors reviewed all such
internal financial controls and have submitted their report
undersection 143 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Revenues

The Company's revenues are generated principally from IT-
based Solution & Services. Revenue from sale of IT solutions
and services is recognized in accordance with the sales contract
and when significant risks and rewards in respect of ownership
are transferred to the customers. Revenue from customer-
related long-term contracts is recognised by reference to the
percentage of completion of the contract at the balance sheet
date. Company's long term contracts specify a fixed price for
the sale of license and installation of software solutions &
services and the related revenue is determined using the
percentage of completion method. The percentage of
completion is based on efforts expended as a proportion to total
estimated efforts on the contract. If the contract is considered
profitable, it is valued at cost plus attributable profits by
reference to the percentage of completion. Any expected loss
on individual contracts is recognised immediately as an
expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss. Unbilled revenues
included in other financial assets represent cost and earnings in
excess of billings as at the Balance Sheet date. Income from
maintenance contract is recognized proportionately over the
period of the contract.

For the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,
consolidated revenues amounted to ¥. 943.74 crore and
%.1,492.67 crore, respectively. This represented a decline of
36.78% for the year ended March 31, 2021, as compared to the
year ended March 31, 2020.



Revenues by Business Segment

The table below gives the consolidated revenue analysis by
business segment for the periods indicated:

(. in Crore)

The table below shows the principal components of the
Company's costs for the periods indicated:

@®. in Crore)

For the year ended March 31,2021 and March 31,2020,
consolidated revenues from Enterprise Geospatial and
Engineering Solutions amounted to ¥.222.94 crore and
%.404.09 crore, respectively. This represented a decline of
44.83% for year ended March 31, 2021, as compared to the
year ended March 31, 2020. The consolidated revenues from
System Integration & Enterprise IT Solutions amounted to
¥.720.11 crore and ¥.1,088.58 crore respectively for these two
periods. This represented a decline of 33.85% for the year
ended March 31, 2021, as compared to the year ended March
31, 2020.

Other Income

Other income comprises of dividend income, interest income
and other miscellaneous income. For the year ended March 31,
2021 and year ended March 31, 2020, other income amounted
to¥. 333.86 crore and X.10.98 crore respectively.

Expenses

The Company's expenditure principally consists of cost of
materials and technical sub-contractors, employee costs,
administrative and selling expenses as well as financial and
depreciation charges. For the year ended March 31, 2021 and
for the year ended March 31, 2020, consolidated expenses
amounted to ¥. 2,089.31 crore and . 2639.30 crore. This
represent a decline of 21% for the year ended March 31, 2021,
as compared to the year ended March 31, 2020.

Cost of Materials & Technical 666.28 1,005.32

Sub-contractors
Enterprise Geospatial and
Engineering Solutions (EGES) 22294 1 40409 ||| B loyee benefits expense 27049 | 42921
System Integration & Enterprise IT Other Expenses 65.46 139.38
Solutions (EITS) 720.11 1,088.58 Xp!
Total 943.05 1,492.67 Depreciation and Amortisation 125.04 247.67
Segment wise Profit [EBIDTA] Finance Cost 957.31 773.56
Enterprise Geospatial and Exchange Difference 4.72 44.16
Engineering Solutions (EGES) 122.42 135.26

. ] Total 2,089.31 2,639.30
System Integration & Enterprise IT
Solutions (EITS) (180.91) (216.50)
Cost of Materials & Technical Sub-contractors
Total 58.49 81.24 . . ..
° ¢ ) ¢ ) Cost of Materials & Technical Sub-contractors principally

comprise of packaged software, software toolkits, hardware,
peripherals, parts/spares and cost of third party sub-
contracting of services needed to execute the contracts &
projects awarded to the Company.

Intheyear ended March 31, 2021 and for the year ended March
31, 2020, material and technical Sub-contractors amounted to
¥. 666.28 crore and . 1,005.32 crore. This represented a
decrease of 33.7% in the year ended March 31, 2021, as
compared to the year ended March 31, 2020. The decrease in
material and subcontracting cost was primarily attributable to
lower Revenue.

Employee Benefits Expense

Employee benefits expenses comprise salaries, wages, bonuses,
provident fund contributions and welfare expenses. Employee
benefit expenses decreased in the year ended March 31, 2021 to
¥.270.49 crore from ¥.429.21 crore in the year ended March 31,
2020. This represented a decrease of 36.97% for the year ended
March 31, 2021, as compared to the year ended March 31,
2020. The decrease in employee benefit expenses was
attributable to rationalization & streamlining of the
Company's human resources at its offices in India and
internationally.

Other Expenses

Other expenses include electricity expenses, repairs and
maintenance, sales promotion expenses, legal and other
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miscellaneous expenses. In the year ended March 31, 2021 and
for the year ended March 31, 2020, other expenses amounted
to ¥.65.46 crore and ¥.139.38
represented a decrease of 53.03% for the year ended March 31,
2021, as compared to the year ended March 31, 2020. The
decrease in other expenses was attributable to rationalization
and streamlining of the staff strength as well as control on
other expenses at its office in India and internationally through

crore respectively. This

focused efforts.
Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation is applied to the Company's
property, plant and equipment at the rates set out in the notes to
the financial statements. The principal depreciation costs
relate to the Company’s computer systems and, the Company's
buildings.

Depreciation and amortisation expenses for the year ended
March 31, 2021 and for the year ended March 31, 2020 were
. 125.04 crore and . 247.67 crore. This represented a decrease
of 49.50% for the year ended March 31, 2021, as compared to
the yearended March 31, 2020.

Finance Cost

Finance cost reflects the interest payable by the Company on its
borrowings. Interest cost for the year ended March 31, 2021
and for the year ended March 31, 2020 was . 957.31 crore and
R.773.56 crore respectively. This represented a increase of
23.75% for the year ended March 31, 2021 as compared to the
year ended March 31, 2020.

Profit before tax and exceptional item

The loss before tax in the year ended March 31, 2021 was
X. 811.71 crore as against loss of ¥. 1,135.65 crore for the year
ended March 31, 2020. The reason for the same are lower
expenses on material etc.

Tax expenses

The Company has recognized net Deferred Tax Asset of
%. 404.50 Crore. The Deferred Tax Asset has arisen on account
of business loss of . 3,264.26 Crore. The Management is of
the opinion that the Company will be able to be utilize the
Deferred Tax Asset of ¥.404.50 Crore against taxable profit
from future years.

Loss after tax

Loss after tax in the year ended March 31, 2021 was ¥.3,264.26
crore as against loss of X. 914.91 crore in the year ended March
31, 2020.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets (Fixed
Assets)

The Company's net fixed assets for the year ended March 31,
2021 amounted to . 1,610.86 crore towards buildings,
computer systems, /intangibles including software, other
equipments, furniture etc. and the same were . 5112.41 crore
for financial year 2019-20.

Other Financial Assets
(. in Crore)
2021 2020 |
Non-current 18.26 23.98
Current 312.27 359.41
Total 330.53 383.39

Other Financial Assets were X.330.53 crore as on March 31,
2021 as against ¥.383.39 crore in March 31, 2020.

Trade Receivable

The Company's Trade Receivables as at March 31, 2021 and
March 31, 2020 were ¥.367.55 crore and ¥.311.11 crore
respectively. The Company's projects in the domestic and
overseas markets are spread over a period of a year to three
years with payments linked to individual milestones and /or
completion of each project.

Other Assets
. in Crore)
2021 2020
Non-current 0.33 1.11
Current 31.92 37.23
Total 32.25 38.34

Other assets as on March 31, 2021 were X.32.25 crore as
against ¥.38.34 crore as on March 31, 2020. These other assets
extended during normal course of business and are considered
necessary to carry out normal business operation.

Share Capital

As at March 31, 2021, the Company's authorised share capital
was %.2,500,000,000 (two and half billion rupees), comprising
250,000,000 (two hundred fifty million) equity shares of .10
each, of which 165891355 equity shares of .10 each,
amounting to ¥.165.89 crore were issued and fully-paid. The
Company did not have any preference shares on its books as on
March 31, 2021 nor had issued any share warrants except for
stock options granted to employees under the Company's



Employee Stock Option Plan (in line with the guidelines issued
by SEBI). The details as required by SEBI Regulations in
regard to grant of options are given in Annexure to the
Directors’ Report. No stock options were issued during the
current year. Outstanding stock options as on March 31, 2021
based on options issued in previous year were 8,12,500 options.

Other Equity

Other Equity as on March 31, 2021 was . (6,979.36) crore as
compared to . (2,790.94) crore as on March 31, 2020. Other
Equity include Fair Valuation Reserves of ¥.204.66 crore,
General Reserve of Rs. 385.66 crore, Capital Reserve of
¥. 169.15 crore, Balance in share option account outstanding
of ¥.2.24 crore and %.(7,163.54) crore was retained in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowings

The Company has secured borrowings in its books amounting
to ¥.5,007.37 crore and unsecured total borrowings of
¥.3,279.84 crore amounting to total borrowings of ¥. 8,287.21
crore compared to last year's total borrowings of ¥. 8070.17
crore.

Trade Payables

Trade Payables were ¥.324.86 crore as on March 31, 2021 as
against¥,348.80 crore in March 31, 2020.

Other Financial Liabilities

The Company's other Financial Liabilities as at March 31,
2021 amounted toX.1,789.52 crore as compared to ¥.1,348.83
crore as at March 31, 2020.

Other Current Liabilities

The Company's other Current Liabilities as at March 31, 2021
amounted to ¥.222.61 crore as compared to ¥.304.39 crore as
atMarch 30, 2020.

Provisions (current and non-current)

Provisions are made towards warranty, employee benefits
schemes and proposed dividend. The details are as follows.

(¥ in Crore)
Long Term Provision 6.24 11.39
Short Term Provision 2.90 2.35
Total 9.14 13.74

Cash Flow

The following table sets out the Company's consolidated and
summarized cash flows for each of the periods indicated:

(X in Crore)

2021 2020

Cash inflow/(outflow) from (296.11) 541.97
operating Activities

Cash inflow/(outflow) from (7.37) (32.20)
investment activities

Cash inflow/(outflow) from (297.22) (495.76)
Financing

Cash and cash equivalents at 21.83 30.31
the end of year

Forward Looking Statement

In the Company's report we have disclosed forward looking
information so that investors can better understand the
Company's future prospects and make informed investment
decisions. This Annual Report and other written and oral
statements that we make from time to time contain such
forward looking statements that set out anticipated results
based on management's plans and assumptions. We have tried
wherever possible to identify such statements by using words
such as ' anticipate’, 'estimate’, 'expects', 'projects', 'intends’,
'plans', 'believes', and words and terms of similar substance in
connection with any discussion of future operating or
financial performance. We cannot guarantee that any forward
looking statement will be realized, although we believe we have
been prudent in our plans and assumptions. Achievement of
future results is subject to risks, uncertainties and inaccurate
assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties
materialize or should underlying assumptions prove
inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those
anticipated, estimated or projected. Investors should bear this
in mind as they consider forward-looking statements. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise.
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Rolta Group IP's

1. eGovernance and SmartCity IP's

S1# IP Name Copyright Regn #
1 Rolta OnPoint ™ SW-7641/2014
2 Rolta Map Navigator SW-8824/2016
3 | Rolta Spatial Query Engine SW-8818/2016
4 Rolta Location Services SW-8836/2016
5 Rolta Spatial Routing SW-8819/2016
6 Rolta Spatial Security SW-8838/2016
7 Rolta Spatial Editing SW-8817/2016
8 Rolta Metadata Manager SW-8801/2016
9 Rolta Cartographer SW-8848/2016

10 Rolta Localizer SW-8851/2016
11 Rolta Carto Print SW-8869/2016
12 Rolta Spatial Admin Console SW-8882/2016
13 Rolta OnPoint™ SDK SW-8837/2016
14 Rolta Unified Mobility SW-8828/2016
15 i‘r’ll:la yffs Visulaisation and SW-8827/2016
16 Rolta Map Server™ SW-8756/2016
17 | Rolta Spatial workflow analyser | SW-8883/2016
18 | Rolta GeoWorkflow Manager SW-8876/2016
19 Rolta Soil Ananlytics SW-8825/2016
20 g;ﬁf&%)l{efmmng SW-8826/2016
21 Rolta GeoBI SW-7241/2013
22 Rolta 2D /3D City Model SW-8849/2016
23 Rolta Building Permit Approval | SW-8739/2016
24 | Rolta Land Management SW-8780/2016
25 Rolta Property Management SW-8891/2016
26 Rolta Flood Simulation SW-8858/2016
27 Rolta Disaster Impact Analytics | SW-8890/2016
28 fg’;‘tf‘ag;?:ntf’ Response SW-8856/2016
29 Rolta Investor Portal SW-8839/2016
30 %:it:kl).::::;ial Land SW-8787/2016
31 | Rolta Single Window Clearance | SW-8808/2016
32 m:;n?gtﬂ” Asset SW.8854/2016
33 | Rolta Outage Monitoring SW-8803/2016
34 | Rolta Work Order Management | SW-8805/2016
35 | Rolta Mobile Field Inspection SW-8850/2106
36 Rolta Safe to Dig SW-8879/2016
37 i‘l’lﬁ; Customer Complaint SW-8760/2016
38 | Rolta Billing Management SW-8884/2016
39 Rolta Meter Billing Analytics SW-8870/2016
40 | Rolta Utilities Asset Tagging SW-8852/2016

SI# IP Name Copyright Regn #

41 | Rolta Sewerage Flooding SW-8860/2016
Analysis

42 Rolta Optical Fiber Network SW-8886/2016
Management

43 | Rolta Gas Distribution SW-8762/2016
Management

44 | Rolta Solid Waste disposal SW-8859/2016

45 | Rolta Waste Management SW-8857/2016
System

46 Rolta Environment Portal SW-8783/2016

47 | Rolta Air quality monitoring SW-8786/2016

48 | Rolta Land Scar monitoring SW-8806/2016

49 | Rolta Ground water monitoring | SW-8885/2016

5o | Rolta Forest reservoir SW-8807/2016
monitoring

51 | Rolta Traffic portal SW-8829/2016

52 | Rolta Road safety audit system SW-8802/2016
Rolta Traffic Congestion

53 Analytics SW-8804/2016

54 | Rolta Road Permit System SW-8861/2016

55 Rolta Election Information SW-8789/2016
Rolta Encroachment

56 Management SW-8785/2016

57 | Rolta Facility Management SW-8784/2016

58 | Rolta Fleet Management SW-8781/2016

59 | Rolta Parking Meter SW-8878/2016
Monitoring

60 Rolta Citizen Grievance SW-8788/2016
Management

61 | Rolta City Performance Portal SW-8738/2016

62 Rolta Citizen Mobi-Connect SW-8809/2016

63 | Rolta Citizen Portal SW-8840/2016
Rolta State Residential Data

64 Hub (SRDH) SW-8761/2016

65 | Utility Network Toolkit To be registered

2, Defence and Security IP's

i. Intelligence, Surveillance and Reconnaissance (ISR) Software IPs

1 Rolta Photogrammetry Suite SW-7640/2014
Rolta Photogrammetric Nucleus

2 SW-7502/2013
(RPN)

3 | Rolta Automatic Elevation (RAE) | SW-7497/2013

4 | Rolta DTM collection (RDC) SW-7504/2013

5 | Rolta Base Rectify (RBR) SW-7503/2013
Rolta Digital Mensuration

6 SW-7505/2013
(RDM)

7 | RoltaIRS Sensor SW-7506/2013

8 | Rolta Terrain Analyst (RTA) SW-7501/2013
Rolta Software for Walkthrough

9 SW-7500/2013
(RSW)

10 | Rolta Terrain TIN SW-8864/2016




SI# IPName Copyright Regn #
51 | Rolta SAR Polarimetry SW-8778/2016
52 | Rolta Hyperspectral Processing SW-8759/2016
Rolta Hyperspectral Data

3 Calibration & Preprocessing SW-8814/2016
Rolta Hyperspectral

54 ospheric Correction SW-8845/2016

55 | Rolta Hyperspectral Analysis SW-8813/2016
Rolta SAR Polarimetry

56 Workstation SW-8747/2016

57 | Rolta Geomatica Discover SW-8832/2016

58 | Rolta SAR Interferometry Not yet registered

59 | Rolta SAR Analysis Not yet registered

60 | Rolta Object Analyst Not yet registered

61 | Rolta Advance Imaging Suite Not yet registered

62 | Rolta Image Management Not yet registered

63 | RAPID Mosaic Not yet registered

64 | RAPID Terrain Analysis Not yet registered
RAPID Satellite Ortho .

65 Rectification Not yet registered

66 | RAPID Auto DEM Extraction Not yet registered

67 | RAPID Satellite Base System Not yet registered

68 | Rolta Tactical Simulator Not yet registered
Rolta Interactive Change .

69 Detection Not yet registered
Rolta Military Tactical Symbol .

70 Editor 4 Not yet registered
Rolta Military Terrain Symbol .

71 Editor 4 Not yet registered

72 | Rolta Graticule Generator Not yet registered

73 | Rolta Military GIS Suite Not yet registered

ii. Battlefield Management System (BMS) Software TPs

SI# IPName Copyright Regn #
11 | Rolta Terrain GRID SW-8830/2016
12 | Rolta Walkthrough SW-8821/2016
13 | Rolta Walkthrough Viewer SW-8722/2016
14 | Rolta Walkthrough -Stereo SW-8484/2015
15 g’é‘&?”ic Image Process SW-7729/2014
16 | Rolta Advanced Image Analysis | SW-8483/2015

Rolta Aerial Reconnaissance
17 | Photo Interpretation & Analysis | SW-7499/2013
(RAIRS)
18 I(I;ét;) Basic Nucleus Module SW-7498 /2013
19 (I;;’P%P“’Jm“ Management | oy 7315/2013
20 | Rolta Analyst (RA) SW-7220/2013
21 | Rolta GIS Set-up Tool (RGIS) SW-7219/2013
22 | Rolta Advanced GIS (RAG) SW-7218/2013
23 | Rolta Base GIS (RBG) SW-8028/2014
24 | Rolta Grid Analysis (RGA) SW-7217/2013
25 | Rolta Network Analysis (RNA) | SW-8027/2014
26 | Rolta Map Finishing SW-8141/2014
27 ﬁ‘;“t&‘}“g‘;‘:ﬁ Line Following | gy g485/2015
28 ﬁ;liaes‘:‘m Image Pre SW-8463/2015
29 | Rolta DEM Editor (RDE) SW-8727/2016
Rolta Automated
30 | Photogrammetry and Terrain SW-8764/2016
Display (RAPID)
31 | Rolta Atmospheric Correction SW-8812/2016
32 | Rolta Pan Sharpening SW-8779/2016
33 g‘;t";a c&‘?m‘i Change SW-8488/2015
34 ﬁfeﬁoil’:ﬁ; Detection SW-8835/2016
35 | Rolta Optical Change Detection | SW-8765/2016
36 | Rolta SAR Change Detection SW-8810/2016
37 | Rolta Object Detection SW-8755/2016
38 | Rolta IMINT Generator SW-8866/2016
39 | Rolta GXL SW-7264/2013
40 | Rolta Satellite Base System SW-8782/2016
41 g:chgﬁscﬁe Ortho SW-8746/2016
42 | Rolta Aerial Base System SW-8758/2016
43 | Rolta Aerial Ortho Rectification | SW-8770/2016
44 | Rolta GXL PAN Sharp SW-8749/2016
45 mfalf“d Detection and Haze | gy gg44/2016
46 | Rolta DEM Extraction SW-8753/2016
47 | Rolta Mosaic SW-8748/2016
48 | Rolta SAR Processing SW-8790/2016
49 | Rolta Radar Analysis SW-8823/2016
50 | Rolta Radargrammetry SW-8721/2016

SI# IPName Copyright Regn #
1 | Rolta BMS Command SW-8311/2015 .
2 Spatial Orientation Command SW-8310/2015
3 | Smational Awazeness SW-8154/2014
4 | C2 Command SW-8309/2015
5 | GIS Command SW-8313/2015
6 | Rolta BMS Platoon SW-8149/2014
7 Spatial Orientation Platoon SW-8150/2014
8 Situational Awareness Platoon SW-8152/2014
9 | C2Platoon SW-8151/2014
10 | GIS Platoon SW-8153/2014
11 | Rolta BMS Section SW-8155/2014
12 | Spatial Orientation Section SW-8137/2014
13 | Situational Awareness Section SW-8136/2014
14 | C2 Section SW-8135/2014
15 | GIS Section SW-8302/2015
16 | Rolta BMS Soldier SW-8303/2015

122-123



SI# IPName

BMS Squad Speci Force -

Copyright Regn #

To be retered

17 | Spatial Orientation Soldier SW-8304/2015
18 | Situational Awareness Soldier SW-8138/2014
19 | C2 Soldier SW-8157/2014
20 | GIS Soldier SW-8156/2014
21 | Rolta Mission Planning GIS SW-8305/2015
22 | Rolta Mission Orientation SW-8139/2014
23 | Rolta Mission Preparation SW-8142/2014
24 | Rolta Mission Discovery SW-8143/2014
25 | BMS Command Infantry To be registered
2 BMS Command Infantry - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
27 | BMS Company Infantry To be registered
28 BMS Company Infantry - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
29 | BMS Platoon Infantry To e registered
30 BMS Platoon Infantry - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
31 | BMS Section Infantry To be registered
32 BMS Section Infantry - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
33 | BMS Soldier Infantry To be registered
34 BMS Soldier Infantry - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
35 BMS Command Mechanised To be registered
Infantry
BMS Command Mechanised To be registered
36 | Infantry - Command & Control
(C2)
37 BMS Company Mechanised To be registered
Infantry
BMS Company Mechanised To be registered
38 | Infantry - Command & Control
(C2)
BMS Platoon Mechanised To be registered
39
Infantry
BMS Platoon Mechanised To be registered
40 | Infantry - Command & Control
()]
BMS Section Mechanised To be registered
41
Infantry
BMS Section Mechanised To be registered
42 | Infantry - Command & Control
()]
43 BMS Soldier Mechanised To be registered
Infantry
BMS Soldier Mechanised To be registered
44 | Infantry - Command & Control
(C2)
45 | BMS Command Special Forces To be registered
46 BMS Command Special Forces - | To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
47 | BMS Team Special Forces To be registered
43 BMS Team Special Forces - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
49 | BMS Troop Special Force To be registered
50 BMS Troop Special Force - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
51 | BMS Squad Special Force To be registered

52 Command & Control (C2)
53 | BMS Soldier Special Force To be registered
54 BMS Soldier Special Force - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
55 | BMS Command Armour To be registered
56 BMS Command Armour - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
57 | BMS Squadron Armour To be registered
58 BMS Squadron Armour - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
59 | BMS Troop Armour To be registered
60 BMS Troop Armour - Command | To be registered
& Control (C2)
61 | BMS Gun Tank To be registered
62 BMS Gun Tank - Command & To be registered
Control (C2)
63 | BMS Command Aviation Wing | L0 Pe Tegistered
64 BMS Command Aviation Wing - | To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
65 | BMS Aviation Squadron To be registered
66 BMS Aviation Squadron - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
67 | BMS Aviation Flight To be registered
68 BMS Aviation Flight - To be registered
Command & Control (C2)
69 | BMS Gun Heptr To be registered
70 BMS Gun Heptr - Command & To be registered
Control (C2)
71 BMS Command Infantry - To be registered
Geographic Information System
(GIS)
72 BMS Command Infantry - To be registered
Spatial Orientation (SO)
73 BMS Command Infantry - To be registered
Situational Awareness (SA)
BMS Company Infantry - To be registered
74 | Geographic Information System
(GIs)
75 BMS Company Infantry - Spatial | To be registered
Orientation (SO)
76 BMS Company Infantry - To be registered
Situational Awareness (SA)
BMS Platoon Infantry - To be registered
77 | Geographic Information System
(GIS)
73 BMS Platoon Infantry - Spatial To be registered
Orientation (SO)
79 BMS Platoon Infantry - To be registered
Situational Awareness (SA)
BMS Section Infantry - To be registered
80 | Geographic Information System
(GIS)
81 BMS Section Infantry - Spatial To be registered
Orientation (SO)
82 BMS Section Infantry - To be registered
Situational Awareness (SA)
BMS Soldier Infantry - To be registered
83 | Geographic Information System
(GIS)
84 BMS Soldier Infantry - Spatial To be registered

Orientation (SO)




85

BMS Soldier Infantry -
Situational Awareness (SA)

To be registered

86

BMS Command Mechanised
Infantry - Geographic
Information System (GIS)

To be registered

111

IP Name

BMS Squad Special Force -
Spatial Orientation (SO)

To be registered

112

BMS Squad Special Force -
Situational Awareness (SA)

To be registered

87

BMS Command Mechanised
Infantry - Spatial Orientation
(50)

To be registered

113

BMS Soldier Special Force -
Geographic Information System
(GIS)

To be registered

88

BMS Command Mechanised
Infantry - Situational Awareness
(8A)

To be registered

114

BMS Soldier Special Force -
Spatial Orientation (SO)

To be registered

89

BMS Company Mechanised
Infantry - Geographic
Information System (GIS)

To be registered

115

BMS Soldier Special Force -
Situational Awareness (SA)

To be registered

90

BMS Company Mechanised
Infantry - Spatial Orientation
(50)

To be registered

116

BMS Command Armour -
Geographic Information System
(GIS)

To be registered

91

BMS Company Mechanised
Infantry - Situational Awareness
(5A)

To be registered

117

BMS Command Armour -
Spatial Orientation (SO)

To be registered

118

BMS Command Armour -
Situational Awareness (SA)

To be registered

92

BMS Platoon Mechanised
Infantry - Geographic
Information System (GIS)

To be registered

119

BMS Squadron Armour -
Geographic Information System
(GIS)

To be registered

93

BMS Platoon Mechanised
Infantry - Spatial Orientation
(80}

To be registered

120

BMS Squadron Armour - Spatial
Orientation (SO)

To be registered

94

BMS Platoon Mechanised
Infantry - Situational Awareness
(8A)

To be registered

121

BMS Squadron Armour -
Situational Awareness (SA)

To be registered

95

BMS Section Mechanised
Infantry - Geographic
Information System (GIS)

To be registered

122

BMS Troop Armour -
Geographic Information System
(GIS)

To be registered

96

BMS Section Mechanised
Infantry - Spatial Orientation
(50)

To be registered

123

BMS Troop Armour - Spatial
Orientation (SO)

To be registered

124

BMS Troop Armour - Situational
Awareness (SA)

To be registered

97

BMS Section Mechanised
Infantry - Situational Awareness
(54)

To be registered

125

BMS Gun Tank - Geographic
Information System (GIS)

To be registered

98

BMS Soldier Mechanised
Infantry - Geographic
Information System (GIS)

To be registered

126

BMS Gun Tank - Spatial
Orientation (SO)

To be registered

99

BMS Soldier Mechanised
Infantry - Spatial Orientation
(80)

To be registered

127

BMS Gun Tank - Situational
Awareness (SA)

To be registered

100

BMS Soldier Mechanised
Infantry - Situational Awareness
(5A)

To be registered

128

BMS Command Aviation Wing -
Geographic Information System
(GIS)

To be registered

101

BMS Command Special Forces -
Geographic Information System
(GIS)

To be registered

129

BMS Command Aviation Wing -
Spatial Orientation (SO)

To be registered

130

BMS Command Aviation Wing -
Situational Awareness (SA)

To be registered

102

BMS Command Special Forces -
Spatial Orientation (SO)

To be registered

103

BMS Command Special Forces -
Situational Awareness (SA)

To be registered

131

BMS Aviation Squadron -
Geographic Information System
(GIS)

To be registered

104

BMS Troop Special Force -
Geographic Information System
(GIs)

To be registered

132

BMS Aviation Squadron -
Spatial Orientation (SO)

To be registered

105

BMS Troop Special Force -
Spatial Orientation (SO)

To be registered

133

BMS Aviation Squadron -
Situational Awareness (SA)

To be registered

106

BMS Troop Special Force -
Situational Awareness (SA)

To be registered

134

BMS Aviation Flight -
Geographic Information System
(GIS)

To be registered

107

BMS Team Special Forces -
Geographic Information System
(GIS)

To be registered

135

BMS Aviation Flight - Spatial
Orientation (SO)

To be registered

108

BMS Team Special Forces -
Spatial Orientation (SO)

To be registered

136

BMS Aviation Flight -
Situational Awareness (SA)

To be registered

109

BMS Team Special Forces -
Situational Awareness (SA)

To be registered

137

BMS Gun Heptr - Geographic
Information System (GIS)

To be registered

110

BMS Squad Special Force -
Geographic Information System
(GIS)

To be registered

138

BMS Gun Heptr - Spatial
Orientation (SO)

To be registered

139

BMS Gun Heptr - Situational
Awareness (SA)

To be registered
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iii. Command & Control (C2) and Wargaming Software [Ps

SI# IPName Copyright Regn #

iv, Security Software [Ps

1 | Rolta e-GIS (Engineering GIS) SW-7259/2013
Rolta Minefield Burial System
2 RMB SW-7260/2013
S). «
3 Isiolta Minefield Recording SW-7261/2013
ystem
4 | Rolta Geomatica Core SW-7262/2013
5 | Rolta Airphoto Ortho Suite SW-8867/2016
6 | Rolta Satellite Ortho Suite SW-8855/2016
7 | Rolta Radar Ortho Suite SW-8853/2016
8 | Rolta Ortho Production Toolkit | SW-8754/2016
9 | Rolta Auto DEM SW-8757/2016
10 | Rolta Geomatica Prime SW-7263/2013
Rolta Enterprise GIS Portal
11 (REGISP) SW-7695/2014
12 | Rolta Enterprise GIS Web Server | SW-8723/2016
13 | Rolta 2D Map Viewer SW-8842/2016
14 | Rolta 3D Map Viewer SW-8750/2016
15 | Rolta Geospatial Military SDK SW-8751/2016
16 | Rolta Analysis ProSDK SW-8877/2016
17 | Rolta Offline Map Client SW-8862/2016
18 | Rolta Joint Services Orbat SW-8847/2016
19 | Rolta Joint Services Ops Planner | SW-8833/2016
20 | Rolta Wargaming SDK SW-8865/2016
21 Rolta Joint Services Decision SW-8846,/2016
Support System
22 | Rolta Logistics Management SW-8834/2016
23 | Rolta Ops and Int Planner SW-8725/2016
24 | Rolta Dynamic Wargaming SW-8868/2016
25 | Rolta GIS Framework (RGISF) | SW-8767/2016
26 | Rolta Mil GIS SW-8312/2015
27 | Rolta Mil Web Server SW-8308/2015
28 | Rolta Mil Map Viewer SW-8307/2015
29 | Rolta Mil SDK SW-8306/2015
30 Rolta Pluggable Functions To be registered
(RPFs) Pack
31 Rolta Advance Military To be registered
Wargaming Suite for Battalion
Rolta Operational and To be registered
32 | Intelligence Planning Suite for
Battalion
33 | Rolta Militarv Grid To be registered
34 | Rolta Terrain Doctoring To be registered
35 Rolta Terrain Repository To be registered
Management

Si# IPName Copyright Regn #
1 | Rolta GeoCAD SW-7635/2014
2 | Rolta GeoCAD Web SW-7636/2014
3 | Rolta GeoCAD Mobile SW-7730/ 2014

Rolta GeoCAD-MDT (Mobile
4 Data Terminal) SW-8116/2014
Rolta GeoCAD Emergency
5 Medical System (REMS) SW-7333/2013
Rolta Vessel Traffic
6 M ement System SW-7733/2014
7 | Rolta Call Taker SW-8822/2016
8 | Rolta Dispatcher SW-8768/2016
9 | Rolta Supervisor SW-8816/2016
10 | Rolta Resource Manager SW-8724/2016
11 | Rolta Unified Communication SW-8811/2016
12 | Rolta Multi Agency Gateway SW-8729/2016
13 | Rolta Multi Site Manager SW-8769/2016
14 | Rolta Crime Analytics SW-8863/2016
15 | Rolta Suraksha SW-8728/2016
16 Rolta GeoCAD Fire Emergency SW-8815/2016
Response System
17 | Rolta Command & Control - SW-8843/2016
Coastal Security
18 | Rolta Security Administration SW-8766/2016
19 | Rolta Security Operator Console | SW-8820/2016
20 | Rolta Security Mobile SW-8752/2016
21 | Rolta Security Dispatcher SW-8726/2016
22 | Rolta Secusity Video SW-8763/2016
Management
23 | Rolta Security Sensor Integration | SW-8831/2016
Rolta Command & Control -
24 Critical Infr cture SW-8800/2016
3. Bi and Big Data Analytics [P's
SI# IPName Copyright Regn #
1 Rolta OneView Core SW-8796/2016
Rolta OneView Operations
2 Insights SW-8742/2016
3 Rolta OneView Assets Insights SW-8889/2016
Rolta OneView Maintenance &
4 Reliability Insights SW-8743/2016
Rolta OneView Health Safely
3 and Environment Insights SW-8888/2016
Rolta OneView Customer
6 Insights SW-8893/2016
Rolta OneView Business
7 Tnsights SW-8741/2016
Rolta OneView Supply Chain
8 Tnsights SW-8892/2016
Rolta OneView Sustainability
9 Insights SW-8740/2016
Rolta OneView Projects
10 Insights SW-8773/2016
Rolta Industry Knowledge
11 Model SW-8797/2016
12 | Rolta Industry Semantic Model | SW-8798/2016




Rolta IT - OT Fusion for

Si# IPName

52

Rolta Collaboration Platform

Copyright Regn #
SW-10955/2018

53

Rolta Enterprise Data Lake

SW-10956/2018

54

Rolta Link Analyzer

SW-10092/2018

55

Asset 360° - Asset Integrity
Management for Oil & Gas

SW-11052/2018

56

Asset 360° - Asset Life Cycle
Analytics for Oil & Gas

SW-11046/2018

57

Asset 360° - Composite Risk
Management Analytics for Oil
& Gas

SW-11031/2018

58

Asset 360° - Bad Actor
Analyzer for Oil & Gas

SW-11206/2018

59

Asset 360° - Barrier
Management for Oil & Gas

SW-11032/2018

60

Asset 360° - FMECA (Failure
modes, Effects and Criticality
Analysis) for Oil & Gas

SW-11015/2018

61

Asset 360° - Compressor
Performance Optimization for
Oil & Gas

SW-11205/2018

62

Asset 360° - Heat Exchanger
Performance Optimization for
Oil & Gas

SW-11203/2018

63

Asset 360° - Pump Performance
Optimization for Oil & Gas

SW-11026/2018

64

Asset 360° - Well Integrity
Analyzer for Oil & Gas

SW-11029/2018

65

Asset 360° - Subsea Pipeline
Integrity Analyzer for Oil &
Gas

SW-11024/2018

66

Operations 360° - Energy
Efficiency Optimization for Oil
& Gas

SW-11362/2018

67

Operations 360° - Utilities
Governor for Oil & Gas

SW-11429/2018

68

Operations 360° - Opportunity
loss manager for Oil & Gas

SW-11211/2018

69

Operations 360° - Process
Alarm Analysis & Supervisory
Control for Oil & Gas

SW-11171/2018

70

Operations 360° - Process
Integrity - Predictive Risk
Analytics for Oil & Gas

SW-11132/2018

71

Operations 360° - Oil Product
Demand Prediction Analyzer
for Oil & Gas

SW-11212/2018

72

Operations 360° - Gas Product
Demand Prediction Analyzer
for Oil & Gas

SW-11440/2018

73

Operations 360° - Oil
Exploration Performance
Analyzer for Oil & Gas

SW-11387/2018

74

Operations 360° - Drilling
Operational Performance
Analyzer for Oil & Gas

SW-11323/2018

75

Operations 360° - Well
Production Prediction and
Optimization for Oil & Gas

SW-11343/2018

76

Operations 360° - Field Water
Injection and Balance Manager
for Oil & Gas

SW-11360/2018

77

Operations 360° - Energy
Balance for Oil & Gas

SW-11322/2018

78

Operations 360° - Reservoir
Health Analyzer for Oil & Gas

SW-11172/2018

79

Operations 360° - Well Integrity
Analyzer for Oil & Gas

SW-11154/2018

13 Hadoop Rolta Fraud SW-8799/2016

14 | Rolta IT-OT Asset Junction SW-8732/2016
Rolta Predictive Analytics

15 Manager SW-8874/2016

16 Rolta Prescriptive Analytics SW-8734/2016
Manager

17 | Rolta Realtime Analytical SW-8744/2016
Server

18 | Rolta Geospatial Analytics SW-8772/2016

19 Rolta Data Science Workbench | SW-8731/2016

20 | Rolta DataBridge SW-8745/2016

21 Rolta Process Manager SW-8774/2016

22 | Rolta Engineering Fusion SW-8795/2016

23 | Rolta SmartMigrate for BI SW-8873/2016

24 Rolta SmartMigrate for Data SW.8887/2016
Platform
Rolta SmartMigrate for

25 application SW-8793/2016

26 | Rolta Threshold Manager SW-8735/2016

27 | Rolta Embeddable Maps SW-8871/2016

28 | Rolta Cloud Advizor SW-7242/2013

29 | Rolta e-Log Book SW-8777/2016
Rolta Opportunity Loss

30 Analytics SW-8736/2016
Rolta Greenhouse Gas

31 Emission Management SW-8792/2016
Rolta Worst Actor Performance

32 Analytics SW-8771/2016
Rolta Predictive Asset

33 Performance Analytics SW-8733/2016
Rolta Shutdown and

34 T ound Analytics SW-8791/2016
Rolta Terminal Performance

35 Analytics SW-8794/2016

36 Rolta EBS Implementation SW-8486/2015
Manager

37 | Rolta Early Warning Analytics SW-8881/2016
Rolta Customer Engagement

38 Analytics SW-8730/2016
Rolta Asset Liability and Risk

39 Management Analytics SW-8880/2016
Rolta Fraud Prevention

40 Analvti SW-8737/2016

41 | Rolta ATM Smartmigrate SW-11492/2018

42 | Rolta ATM SmartDatalntegrity SW-11494/2018
Rolta ATM

43 SmartTagMetadataM. . SW-11495/2018
Rolta ATM

14 S MetadataManage SW-11490/2018

45 | Rolta AIM Smartl.oadRTR SW-11489/2018
Rolta ATM

46 SmartDataloadAnalyzer SW-11496/2018

47 ]31];“" SmartDataPropagator for | oy 11491 /2018
Rolta SmartDataFusion for

48 SPEL SW-11497/2018

49 | Rolta SmartDataPropagator for | gy 114932018
P&ID

50 g‘l’f Enterprise Knowledge SW-10954/2018

51 Rolta work process Automation SW-11474/2018

Platform

80

Operations 360° - Filter
Performance Analyzer for Oil &
Gas

SW-11009/2018
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81

Operations 360° - Short Interval
contro] of Oil and Gas platform

SW-11169/2018

82

Operations 360° - Chemicals
Injection Optimization for Oil
& Gas

SW-11326/2018

Si#

108

IP Name

Business Insights 360° - Cross
Functional HR, Training and
Compliance Analyzer for Oil &
Gas

Copyright Regn #

SW-11063/2018

83

Operations 360° - Well Test
Tracking & Analysis for Oil &
Gas

SW-11155/2018

109

Business Insights 360° -
Balanced Score Card Strategy
Management for Oil & Gas

SW-11066/2018

84

M&R 360° - Enterprise Asset
Health - Condition Monitoring
& Analyzer for Oil & Gas

SW-11394/2018

110

Asset 360° - Asset Integrity
Management for Refineries

SW-11366/2018

85

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Budget Management and
Forecasting for Oil & Gas

SW-11395/2018

111

Asset 360° - Asset Life Cycle
Analytics for Refineries

SW-11208/2018

112

Asset 360° - Composite Risk
Management Analytics for
Refineries

SW-11363/2018

86

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Cockpit for Oil & Gas

SW-11397/2018

87

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Planning Effectiveness
Management for Oil & Gas

SW-11328/2018

113

Asset 360° - Bad Actor
Analyzer for Refineries

SW-11209/2018

114

Asset 360° - Barrier
Management for Refineries

SW-11010/2018

88

M&R 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Oil & Gas

SW-11324/2018

89

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Process Compliance Analyzer
and Management for Oil & Gas

SW-11369/2018

115

Asset 360° - FMECA (Failure
modes, Effects and Criticality
Analysis) for Refineries

SW-11008/2018

116

Asset 360° - Compressor
Performance Optimization for
Refineries

SW-11039/2018

90

Safety 360° - GHG & Emission
Governing for Oil & Gas

SW-11289/2018

91

Safety 360° - Environmental
Compliance Analyzer and
Management for Oil & Gas

SW-11156/2018

117

Asset 360° - Heat Exchanger
Performance Optimization for
Refineries

SW-11393/2018

118

Asset 360° - Pump Performance
Optimization for Refineries

SW-11325/2018

92

Safety 360° - Process Safety
Management (PSM) for Oil &
Gas

SW-11290/2018

119

Asset 360° - Furnace Efficiency
Optimization for Refineries

SW-11320/2018

93

SCM 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Oil & Gas

SW-10992/2018

120

Operations 360° - Energy
Efficiency Optimization for
Refineries

SW-11204/2018

94

SCM 360° - Procurement Cycle
Optimization for Oil & Gas

SW-11001/2018

121

Operations 360° - Utilities
Governor for Refineries

SW-11173/2018

95

SCM 360° - Vendor
Performance Analysis for Oil &
Gas

SW-11002/2018

122

Operations 360° - Opportunity
loss manager for Refineries

SW-11051/2018

96

SCM 360° - Buyer Performance
Analysis for Qil & Gas

SW-10985/2018

123

Operations 360° - Process
Alarm Analysis & Supervisory
Control for Refineries

SW-11300/2018

97

SCM 360° - One Leg Operation
Inventory Expediter for Oil &
Gas

SW-11430/2018

124

Operations 360° - Process
Integrity - Predictive Risk
Analytics for Refineries

SW-11128/2018

98

SCM 360° - Contracts
Compliance Tracking and
Analysis for Oil & Gas

SW-11342/2018

125

Operations 360° - Energy
Balance for Refineries

SW-11027/2018

99

SCM 360° - Material Ageing
Analyzer for Oil & Gas

SW-11431/2018

126

Operations 360° - Pipeline
Integrity for Refineries

SW-11321/2018

100

Projects 360° - STO Planning &
Performance Analyzer for Oil &
Gas

SW-10996/2018

127

Operations 360° - Refining
Product Demand Prediction
Analyzer for Refineries

SW-11254/2018

101

Projects 360° - Budget
compliance tracking & Analysis
for Oil & Gas

SW-10998/2018

128

Operations 360° - Capacity
Utilization for Refineries

SW-11125/2018

102

Projects 360° - Schedule and
Resource compliance and
optimization for Oil & Gas

SW-11432/2018

129

Operations 360° - Fuel & Loss
Analysis for Refineries

SW-11215/2018

130

Operations 360° - Gross
Refinery Margin Analyzer for
Refineries

SW-11103/2018

103

Projects 360° - Engineering
MOC Desk - Asset Integrity
Analyzer for Oil & Gas

SW-10999/2018

131

Operations 360° - Terminal
Automation & Performance
Optimization for Refineries

SW-11044/2018

104

Sustainability 360° - Carbon
Footprint Reduction for Oil &
Gas

SW-11000/2018

132

Operations 360° - Energy
Intensity Index for Refineries

SW-11218/2018

105

Sustainability 360° - Regulatory
Compliance Governing for Oil
& Gas

SW-11285/2018

133

Operations 360° - Product yield
prediction for Refineries

SW-10982/2018

106

Sustainability 360° - CSR
Compliance Manager for Oil &
Gas

SW-11286/2018

134

Operations 360° - Quality
Giveaway for Refineries

SW-11294/2018

135

Operations 360° - Sensitivity
analysis for Refineries

SW-11433/2018

107

Business Insights 360° - Cross
Functional Finance Insights,
Cost per Ton Analysis for Oil &
Gas

SW-11064/2018

136

Operations 360° - Reflux
Optimization for Refineries

SW-11245/2018

137

Operations 360° - Real Time
‘Water Balance Analysis and
Optimization for Refineries

SW-11187/2018




SI# IPName

138

M&R 360° - Enterprise Asset
Health - Condition Monitoring
& Analyzer for Refineries

‘Copyright Regn # |

SW-11059/2018

139

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Budget Management and
Forecasting for Refineries

SW-11067/2018

Si#

165

IP Name

Business Insights 360° -
Balanced Score Card Strategy
Management for Refineries

Copyright Regn #

SW-11327/2018

140

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Cockpit for Refineries

SW-11071/2018

166

Business Insights 360° -
Refinery Yield Accounting for
Refineries

SW-10986/2018

141

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Planning Effectiveness
Management for Refineries

SW-11014/2018

167

Business Insights 360° -
Accruals Analyzer for
Refineries

SW-10983/2018

142

M&R 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Refineries

SW-11025/2018

168

Business Insights 360° - Capex
Management Analyzer for
Refineries

SW-10995/2018

143

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Process Compliance Analyzer
and Management for Refineries

SW-11047/2018

169

Business Insights 360° - Unit
Margin Analysis for Refineries

SW-10994/2018

144

M&R 360° - RAM Modelling
for Refineries

SW-11188/2018

170

Asset 360° - Asset Integrity
Management for
Petrochemicals

SW-11238/2018

145

Safety 360° - GHG & Emission
Governing for Refineries

SW-11302/2018

171

Asset 360° - Asset Life Cycle
Analytics for Petrochemicals

SW-11280/2018

146

Safety 360° - Environmental
Compliance Analyzer and
Management for Refineries

SW-11049/2018

172

Asset 360° - Composite Risk
Management Analytics for
Petrochemicals

SW-11006/2018

147

Safety 360° - Process Safety

Management (PSM) for
Refineries

SW-11178/2018

173

Asset 360° - Bad Actor
Analyzer for Petrochemicals

SW-11284/2018

148

SCM 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Refineries

SW-11152/2018

174

Asset 360° - Barrier
Management for
Petrochemicals

SW-11242/2018

149

SCM 360° - Procurement Cycle
Optimization for Refineries

SW-11150/2018

150

SCM 360° - Vendor
Performance Analysis for
Refineries

SW-11149/2018

175

Asset 360° - FMECA (Failure
modes, Effects and Criticality
Analysis) for Petrochemicals

SW-11403/2018

151

SCM 360° - Buyer Performance
Analysis for Refineries

SW-11017/2018

176

Asset 360° - Compressor
Performance Optimization for
Petrochemicals

SW-11401/2018

152

SCM 360° - One Leg Operation
Inventory Expediter for
Refineries

SW-11016/2018

177

Asset 360° - Heat Exchanger
Performance Optimization for
Petrochemicals

SW-11412/2018

153

SCM 360° - Contracts
Compliance Tracking and
Analysis for Refineries

SW-11061/2018

178

Asset 360° - Pump Performance
Optimization for
Petrochemicals

SW-11411/2018

154

SCM 360° - Material Ageing
Analyzer for Refineries

SW-11453/2018

179

Asset 360° - Furnace Efficiency
Optimization for
Petrochemicals

SW-11101/2018

155

SCM 360° - Cycle Time
Analysis for Refineries

SW-11157/2018

156

Projects 360° - STO Planning &
Performance Analyzer for
Refineries

SW-11130/2018

180

Operations 360° - Energy
Efficiency Optimization for
Petrochemicals

SW-11410/2018

181

Operations 360° - Utilities
Governor for Petrochemicals

SW-11475/2018

157

Projects 360° - Budget
compliance tracking & Analysis
for Refineries

SW-11301/2018

182

Operations 360° - Opportunity
loss manager for Petrochemicals

SW-11283/2018

158

Projects 360° - Schedule and
Resource compliance and
optimization for Refineries

SW-11170/2018

183

Operations 360° - Process
Alarm Analysis & Supervisory
Control for Petrochemicals

SW-11282/2018

159

Projects 360° - Engineering
MOC Desk - Asset Integrity
Analyzer for Refineries

SW-11176/2018

184

Operations 360° - Process
Integrity - Predictive Risk
Analytics for Petrochemicals

SW-11476/2018

160

Sustainability 360° - Carbon
Footprint Reduction for
Refineries

SW-11179/2018

185

Operations 360° - Energy
Balance for Petrochemicals

SW-11337/2018

186

Operations 360° - Capacity
Utilization for Petrochemicals

SW-11228/2018

161

Sustainability 360° - Regulatory
Compliance Governing for
Refineries

SW-11295/2018

187

Operations 360° - Fuel & Loss
Analysis for Petrochemicals

SW-11226/2018

162

Sustainability 360° - CSR
Compliance Manager for
Refineries

SW-11305/2018

188

Operations 360° - Product yield
prediction for Petrochemicals

SW-11225/2018

189

Operations 360° - Quality
Giveaway for Petrochemicals

SW-11232/2018

163

Business Insights 360° - Cross
Functional Finance Insights,
Cost per Ton Analysis for
Refineries

SW-11213/2018

190

Operations 360° - Sensitivity
analysis for Petrochemicals

SW-11233/2018

164

Business Insights 360° - Cross
Functional HR, Training and
Compliance Analyzer for
Refineries

SW-11396/2018

191

Operations 360° - Conversion
(Ethane, Propane) for
Petrochemicals

SW-11020/2018

192

Operations 360° - Monomer
Factor (Propane) for
Petrochemicals

SW-11418/2018
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193

Operations 360° - Real Time
‘Water Balance Analysis and
Optimization for
Petrochemicals

SW-11419/2018

194

M&R 360° - Enterprise Asset
Health - Condition Monitoring
& Analyzer for Petrochemicals

SW-11004/2018

Si#

217

IP Name

Business Insights 360° - Cross
Functional Finance Insights,
Cost per Ton Analysis for
Petrochemicals

Copyright Regn #

SW-11407/2018

195

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Budget Management and
Forecasting for Petrochemicals

SW-10984/2018

218

Business Insights 360° - Cross
Functional HR, Training and
Compliance Analyzer for
Petrochemicals

SW-11405/2018

196

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Cockpit for Petrochemicals

SW-11348/2018

219

Business Insights 360° -
Balanced Score Card Strategy
Management for
Petrochemicals

SW-11404/2018

197

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Planning Effectiveness
Management for
Petrochemicals

SW-11347/2018

220

Business Insights 360° - Capex
Management Analyzer for
Petrochemicals

SW-11148/2018

198

M&R 360° - MRO Spares
Management for
Petrochemicals

SW-11345/2018

221

Business Insights 360° - Unit
Margin Analysis for
Petrochemicals

SW-11147/2018

199

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Process Compliance Analyzer
and Management for
Petrochemicals

SW-11346/2018

222

Asset 360° - Asset Integrity
Management for Chemicals

SW-10991/2018

223

Asset 360° - Asset Life Cycle
Analytics for Chemicals

SW-10997/2018

200

Safety 360° - GHG & Emission
Governing for Petrochemicals

SW-11034/2018

224

Asset 360° - Composite Risk
Management Analytics for
Chemicals

SW-11239/2018

201

Safety 360° - Environmental
Compliance Analyzer and
Management for
Petrochemicals

SW-11420/2018

225

Asset 360° - Bad Actor
Analyzer for Chemicals

SW-11235/2018

202

Safety 360° - Process Safety
Management (PSM) for
Petrochemicals

SW.11421/2018

226

Asset 360° - Barrier
Management for Chemicals

SW-11237/2018

203

SCM 360° - MRO Spares
Management for
Petrochemicals

SW-11207/2018

227

Asset 360° - FMECA (Failure
modes, Effects and Criticality
Analysis) for Chemicals

SW-11279/2018

204

SCM 360° - Procurement Cycle
Optimization for
Petrochemicals

SW-11068/2018

228

Asset 360° - Compressor
Performance Optimization for
Chemicals

SW-11339/2018

205

SCM 360° - Vendor
Performance Analysis for
Petrochemicals

SW-11180/2018

229

Asset 360° - Heat Exchanger
Performance Optimization for
Chemicals

SW.11278/2018

230

Asset 360° - Pump Performance
Optimization for Chemicals

SW-11349/2018

206

SCM 360° - Buyer Performance
Analysis for Petrochemicals

SW-11177/2018

231

Asset 360° - Overall Equipment
Effectiveness for Chemicals

SW-11160/2018

207

SCM 360° - One Leg Operation
Inventory Expediter for
Petrochemicals

SW-11288/2018

232

Asset 360° - Equipment
Reliability Analysis for
Chemicals

SW-11159/2018

208

SCM 360° - Contracts
Compliance Tracking and
Analysis for Petrochemicals

SW-11333/2018

233

Operations 360° - Energy
Efficiency Optimization for
Chemicals

SW-10993/2018

209

SCM 360° - Material Ageing
Analyzer for Petrochemicals

SW-11287/2018

234

Operations 360° - Utilities
Governor for Chemicals

SW-11297/2018

210

Projects 360° - STO Planning &
Performance Analyzer for
Petrochemicals

SW-11281/2018

235

Operations 360° - Opportunity
loss manager for Chemicals

SW-11277/2018

211

Projects 360° - Budget
compliance tracking & Analysis
for Petrochemicals

SW-11385/2018

236

Operations 360° - Process
Alarm Analysis & Supervisory
Control for Chemicals

SW-11296/2018

212

Projects 360° - Schedule and
Resource compliance and
optimization for Petrochemicals

SW-11334/2018

237

Operations 360° - Process Risk
Predictive Analytics for
Chemicals

SW-11158/2018

238

Operations 360° - Capacity
Utilization for Chemicals

SW-11167/2018

213

Projects 360° - Engineering
MOC Desk - Asset Integrity
Analyzer for Petrochemicals

SW-11335/2018

239

Operations 360° - Fuel & Loss
Analysis for Chemicals

SW-11319/2018

214

Sustainability 360° - Carbon
Footprint Reduction for
Petrochemicals

SW-11336/2018

240

Operations 360° - Batch yield
optimization for Chemicals

SW-11386/2018

215

Sustainability 360° - Regulatory
Compliance Governing for
Petrochemicals

SW-11330/2018

241

Operations 360° - Quality
Compliance Analysis for
Chemicals

SW-11146/2018

242

Operations 360° - Quality
Giveaway for Chemicals

SW-11144/2018

216

Sustainability 360° - CSR
Compliance Manager for
Petrochemicals

SW-11329/2018

243

Operations 360° - Online
Process Validation for
Chemicals

SW-11143/2018




M&R 360° - Enterprise Asset
Health - Condition Monitoring
& Analyzer for Chemicals

SW-11276/2018

245

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Budget Management and
Forecasting for Chemicals

SW-11275/2018

SI# IP Namc

270

Asset 360° - Composite Risk
Management Analytics for
Power Generation

Copyright Regn #

SW-11243/2018

271

Asset 360° - Bad Actor
Analyzer for Power Generation

SW-11409/2018

246

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Cockpit for Chemicals

SW-11236/2018

272

Asset 360° - Barrier
Management for Power
Generation

SW-11408/2018

247

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Planning Effectiveness
Management for Chemicals

SW-11274/2018

273

Asset 360° - FMECA (Failure
modes, Effects and Criticality
Analysis) for Power Generation

SW-11402/2018

248

M&R 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Chemicals

SW-11240/2018

249

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Process Compliance Analyzer
and Management for Chemicals

SW-11241/2018

274

Asset 360° - Compressor
Performance Optimization for
Power Generation

SW-11119/2018

250

Safety 360° - GHG & Emission
Governing for Chemicals

SW-11003/2018

275

Asset 360° - Heat Exchanger
Performance Optimization for
Power Generation

SW-11118/2018

251

Safety 360° - Environmental
Compliance Analyzer and
Management for Chemicals

SW-11292/2018

276

Asset 360° - Pump Performance
Optimization for Power
Generation

SW-11117/2018

252

Safety 360° - Process Safety

Management (PSM) for
Chemicals

SW-11195/2018

277

Asset 360° - Turbine Failure
Prediction for Power
Generation

SW-11116/2018

253

SCM 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Chemicals

SW-11304/2018

278

Asset 360° - Vibration Tracker
for Power Generation

SW-11223/2018

254

SCM 360° - Procurement Cycle
Optimization for Chemicals

SW-11298/2018

279

Asset 360° - Transformer Health
Analysis for Power Generation

SW-11222/2018

255

SCM 360° - Vendor
Performance Analysis for
Chemicals

SW-11299/2018

280

Asset 360° - Cooling Water
Cycle Analysis for Power
Generation

SW-11221/2018

256

SCM 360° - Buyer Performance
Analysis for Chemicals

SW-11428/2018

281

Operations 360° - Plant Load
Factor Analysis for Power
Generation

SW-11112/2018

257

SCM 360° - Material Ageing
Analyzer for Chemicals

SW.11427/2018

282

Operations 360° - Grid Demand
Analysis for Power Generation

SW-11082/2018

258

Projects 360° - Budget
compliance tracking & Analysis
for Chemicals

SW-11293/2018

283

Operations 360° - Opportunity
loss manager for Power
Generation

SW-11199/2018

259

Projects 360° - Schedule and
Resource compliance and
optimization for Chemicals

SW-11270/2018

284

Operations 360° - Process
Alarm Analysis & Supervisory
Control for Power Generation

SW-11200/2018

260

Projects 360° - Engineering
MOC Desk - Asset Integrity
Analyzer for Chemicals

SW-11357/2018

285

Operations 360° - Process Risk
Predictive Analytics for Power
Generation

SW-11201/2018

261

Sustainability 360° - Carbon
Footprint Reduction for
Chemicals

SW-11358/2018

286

Operations 360° - Plant
Availability Factor Analysis for
Power Generation

SW-11122/2018

262

Sustainability 360° - Regulatory
Compliance Governing for
Chemicals

SW-11196/2018

287

Operations 360° - Power
Generation Tariff Accounting
for Power Generation

SW-11126/2018

263

Sustainability 360° - CSR
Compliance Manager for
Chemicals

SW-11197/2018

288

Operations 360° - Heat Rate
Optimization for Power
Generation

SW-11373/2018

264

Business Insights 360° - Cross
Functional Finance Insights,
Cost per Ton Analysis for
Chemicals

SW-11271/2018

289

Operations 360° - Specific
Energy Consumption for
Power Generation

SW-11361/2018

265

Business Insights 360° - Cross
Functional HR, Training and
Compliance Analyzer for
Chemicals

SW-11273/2018

290

Operations 360° - Auxiliary
consumption analysis for
Power Generation

SW-11037/2018

266

Business Insights 360° -
Balanced Score Card Strategy
Management for Chemicals

SW-11272/2018

291

Operations 360° - Water
consumption analysis for Power
Generation

SW-11038/2018

267

Business Insights 360° - Capex
Management Analyzer for
Chemicals

SW-11359/2018

292

Operations 360° - Load
Schedule compliance for Power
Generation

SW-11041/2018

268

Asset 360° - Asset Integrity
Management for Power
Generation

SW-10990/2018

293

Operations 360° - Boiler Tube
Leakage analysis for Power
Generation

SW-11043/2018

269

Asset 360° - Asset Life Cycle
Analytics for Power
Generation

SW-11344/2018

294

Operations 360° - Stack
Emission (CEMS) Analysis for
Power Generation

SW-11040/2018

295

Operations 360° - Change
Impact Analysis / MOC
Tracking for Power Generation

SW-11007/2018
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296

M&R 360° - Enterprise Asset
Health - Condition Monitoring
& Analyzer for Power
Generation

SW-11380/2018

Si#

319

IP Name

Asset 360° - Asset Life Cycle
Analytics for Power Utilities

Copyright Regn #

SW-11263/2018

297

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Budget Management and
Forecasting for Power
Generation

SW-11382/2018

320

Asset 360° - Composite Risk
Management Analytics for
Power Ultilities

SW-11163/2018

321

Asset 360° - Bad Actor
Analyzer for Power Ultilities

SW-11316/2018

298

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Cockpit for Power Generation

SW-11384/2018

322

Asset 360° - Barrier
Management for Power Utilities

SW-11137/2018

299

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Planning Effectiveness
Management for Power
Generation

SW-11185/2018

323

Asset 360° - FMECA (Failure
modes, Effects and Criticality
Analysis) for Power Utilities

SW-11138/2018

300

M&R 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Power
Generation

SW-11269/2018

324

Asset 360° - Transformer Health
Analysis for Power Utilities

SW-11135/2018

301

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Process Compliance Analyzer
and Management for Power
Generation

SW-11186/2018

325

Operations 360° - Outage
Impact Analysis for Power
Utiliti

SW-11056/2018

326

Operations 360° - Energy
Conservation for Power
Utilities

SW-11058/2018

302

Safety 360° - GHG & Emission
Governing for Power
Generation

SW-11268/2018

327

Operations 360° - Process
Alarm Supervisory Control for
Power Utilities

SW-11314/2018

303

Safety 360° - Occupational
Health Analysis for Power
Generation

SW-11372/2018

328

Operations 360° - Operating
Cost Optimization for Power
Utiliti

SW-11060/2018

304

Safety 360° - Fire Equipment
Monitoring Compliance for
Power Generation

SW-11371/2018

329

Operations 360° - Power
Quality Tracker for Power
tiliti

SW-11065/2018

305

Safety 360° - Environment
Incident Management for
Power Generation

SW-11374/2018

330

Operations 360° - Transformer
Health Monitoring and
Analysis for Power Utilities

SW-11134/2018

306

SCM 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Power
Generation

SW-11267/2018

331

Operations 360° - Power
purchase manager for Power
Utiliti

SW-11053/2018

307

SCM 360° - Procurement Cycle
Optimization for Power
Generation

SW-11266/2018

332

Operations 360° - Energy Audit
Compliance for Power Utilities

SW-11140/2018

308

SCM 360° - Vendor
Performance Analysis for
Power Generation

SW-11265/2018

333

Operations 360° - Load growth
analyzer for Power Utilities

SW-11124/2018

334

Operations 360° - Network Loss
Analyzer for Power Utilities

SW-11175/2018

309

SCM 360° - Buyer Performance
Analysis for Power Generation

SW-11184/2018

310

Projects 360° - STO Planning &
Performance Analyzer for
Power Generation

SW-11183/2018

335

Operations 360° - Underground
cable excavation tracker for
Power Utilities

SW-11181/2018

311

Projects 360° - Budget
compliance tracking & Analysis
for Power Generation

SW-11182/2018

336

Operations 360° - Worst
Affecting Feeder Analyzer for
Power Utilities

SW-11057/2018

312

Projects 360° - Schedule and
Resource compliance and
optimization for Power
Generation

SW-11191/2018

337

Operations 360° - Load
Forecasting Analytics for Power
Utilities

SW-11174/2018

338

Operations 360° - Distribution
Reliability Index for Power
Utilities

SW-11136/2018

313

Projects 360° - Engineering
MOC Desk - Asset Integrity
Analyzer for Power Generation

SW-11189/2018

339

Operations 360° - Meter
Clustering Analytics for Power
Utiliti

SW-11417/2018

314

Sustainability 360° - Regulatory
Compliance Governing for
Power Generation

SW-11264/2018

340

M&R 360° - Asset Health
Monitoring for Power Utilities

SW-11416/2018

315

Sustainability 360° - CSR
Compliance Manager for Power
Generation

SW-11198/2018

341

M&R 360° - Breakdown
Maintenance Manager for
Power Utilities

SW-11415/2018

342

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Budgeting for Power Utilities

SW-11030/2018

316

Business Insights 360° - Cross
Functional HR, Training and
Compliance Analyzer for
Power Generation

SW-11381/2018

343

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Costing Manager for Power
Utilities

SW-11414/2018

317

Business Insights 360° -
Balanced Score Card Strategy
Management for Power
Generation

SW-11246/2018

344

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Planning Desk for Power
Utilities

SW-11028/2018

318

Asset 360° - Asset Integrity
Management for Power
Utilities

SW-11110/2018

345

M&R 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Power Utilities

SW-11480/2048

346

M&R 360° - Work Order
Maintenance Preparedness
Analyzer for Power Utilities

SW-11413/2018




347

M&R 360° - Consumables

consumption and inventory
tracker for Power Utilities

SW-11331/2018

Si#

372

IP Name

Asset 360° - Asset Integrity
Management for Gas Utilities

Copyright Regn #

SW-11338/2018

348

M&R 360° - Workforce
Mobility Analysis for Power
Utiliti

SW-11422/2018

373

Asset 360° - Asset Life Cycle
Analytics for Gas Utilities

SW-11234/2018

349

Safety 360° - Occupational
Incident Monitor for Power
Utilii

SW-11426/2018

374

Asset 360° - Environmental
impact on waste / clean Gas
network

SW-11383/2018

350

Safety 360° - Contractor HSE
Performance Analysis for
Power Utilities

SW-11332/2018

375

Asset 360° - Geospatial Asset
Management for Gas Utilities

SW-11108/2018

351

Safety 360° - Safety Behavior
Analyzer for Power Utilities

SW-11252/2018

376

Asset 360° - FMECA (Failure
modes, Effects and Criticality
Analysis) for Gas Utilities

SW-11406/2018

352

Safety 360° - Statutory
Compliance Tracker for Power
Utilities

SW-11389/2018

377

Asset 360° - Pipeline integrity
for Gas Utilities

SW-11107/2018

353

Safety 360° - SOP updation
compliance Tracker for Power
Utiliti

SW-11251/2018

378

Operations 360° - Outage
Impact Analysis for Gas
Utilities

SW-11106/2018

379

Operations 360° - Energy
Conservation for Gas Utilitieg

SW-11123/2018

354

Safety 360° - Employee Health
Analysis for Power Utilities

SW-11248/2018

380

Operations 360° - Process
Alarm Supervisory Control for
Gas Utilities

SW-11005/2018

355

Safety 360° - Earthing System
Healthiness Tracker for Power
Utilities

SW-11247/2018

381

Operations 360° - Operating
Cost Optimization for Gas
Utiliti

SW-11070/2018

356

Safety 360° - Fire Equipment
Monitoring Compliance for
Power Utilities

SW-11249/2018

382

Operations 360° - Flooding
Probability Analysis for Gas
Utilities

SW-11076/2018

357

Safety 360° - Environment
Incident Management for
Power Utilities

SW-11250/2018

383

Operations 360° - Customer
Side Leakage Detection
Analysis for Gas Utilities

SW-11077/2018

358

SCM 360° - Procurement Cycle
Optimization for Power
Utiliti

SW-11477/2018

384

Operations 360° - Non- revenue
Gas analyzer

SW-11190/2018

359

SCM 360° - Material Ageing
Analysis for Power Utilities

SW-11244/2018

385

Operations 360° - Situational
Awareness with Geospatial
Analytics for gas network

SW-11356/2018

360

SCM 360° - Contracts
Performance Management for
Power Utilities

SW-11375/2018

386

Operations 360° - Sewage
treatment analytics for Gas
Utilities

SW-11075/2018

361

SCM 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Power Utilities

SW-11019/2018

362

SCM 360° - Vendor
Performance Analysis for
Power Utilities

SW-11036/2018

387

Operations 360° - Water Supply
Quality Manager for Gas
Utiliti

SW-11145/2018

388

Operations 360° - Gas Demand
Forecasting

SW-11341/2018

363

Projects 360° - Budget
compliance tracking & Analysis
for Power Utilities

SW-11018/2018

389

Operations 360° - Meter Data
Management and Analytics for
Gas Utilities

SW-11072/2018

364

Projects 360° - Schedule and
Resource compliance and
optimization for Power Ultilities

SW-11378/2018

390

Operations 360° - Demand
Forecasting for Gas Utilities

SW-11074/2018

365

Projects 360° - Engineering
MOC Desk - Asset Integrity
Analyzer for Power Utilities

SW-11377/2018

391

Operations 360° - Meter
Clustering Analytics for Gas
Utiliti

SW-11073/2018

366

Sustainability 360° - Regulatory
Compliance Governing for
Power Utilities

SW-11400/2018

392

Operations 360° - Pipeline QRA
(Quantitative Risk Analysis)
Index for Gas Utilities

SW-11151/2018

367

Sustainability 360° - CSR
Compliance Manager for Power
Utiliti

SW-11376/2018

393

M&R 360° - Asset Health
Monitoring for Gas Utilities

SW-11425/2018

368

Business Insights 360° - Cross
Functional HR, Training and
Compliance Analyzer for
Power Utilities

SW-11164/2018

394

M&R 360° - Breakdown
Maintenance Manager for Gas
Utilities

SW-11355/2018

395

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Budgeting for Gas Utilities

SW-11424/2018

369

Business Insights 360° -
Balanced Score Card Strategy
Management for Power Utilities

SW-11161/2018

396

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Costing Manager for Gas
Utiliti

SW-11354/2018

370

Customer Insights 360° - Smart
Meter Analytics for Power
Utiliti

SW-11379/2018

397

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Planning Desk for Gas Utilities

SW-11423/2018

398

M&R 360° - MR O Spares
Management for Gas Utilities

SW-11230/2018

371

Customer Insights 360° - Fraud
& Theft Prevention Analysis for
Power Utilities

SW-11069/2018

399

M&R 360° - Wark Order
Maintenance Preparedness
Analyzer for Gas Utilities

SW-11353/2018

132-133



400

M&R 360° - Consumables

consumption and inventory
tracker for Gas Utilities

SW-11340/2018

426

Asset 360° - Geospatial Asset
Management for Water Utilities

SW-11131/2018

401

M&R 360° - Workforce
Mobility Analysis for Gas
Utilities

SW-11370/2018

427

Asset 360° - FMECA (Failure
modes, Effects and Criticality
Analysis) for Water Utilities

SW-11262/2018

402

Safety 360° - Occupational
Incident Monitor for Gas
Utiliti

SW-11442/2018

428

Asset 360° - Pipeline integrity
for Water Utilities

SW-11129/2018

403

Safety 360° - Contractor HSE
Performance Analysis for Gas
Utilii

SW-11441/2018

429

Operations 360° - Outage
Impact Analysis for Water
Utilities

SW-11127/2018

404

Safety 360° - Safety Behavior
Analyzer for Gas Utilities

SW-11368/2018

430

Operations 360° - Energy
Conservation for Water Utilities

SW-11216/2018

405

Safety 360° - Statutory
Compliance Tracker for Gas
Utilities

SW-11367/2018

431

Operations 360° - Process
Alarm Supervisory Control for
Water Utilities

SW-11258/2018

406

Safety 360° - SOP updation
compliance Tracker for Gas
Utiliti

SW-11388/2018

432

Operations 360° - Operating
Cost Optimization for Water
Utiliti

SW-11214/2018

407

Safety 360° - Employee Health
Analysis for Gas Utilities

SW-11210/2018

433

Operations 360° - Customer
Side Leakage Detection
Analysis for Water Utilities

SW-11217/2018

408

Safety 360° - Environment
Incident Management for Gas
Utiliti

SW-11023/2018

434

Operations 360° - Non- revenue
water analyzer

SW-11085/2018

409

SCM 360° - Procurement Cycle
Optimization for Gas Utilities

SW-11022/2018

435

Operations 360° - Situational
Awareness with Geospatial
Analytics for water network

SW-11079/2018

410

SCM 360° - Material Ageing
Analysis for Gas Utilities

SW-11021/2018

436

Operations 360° - Water
Demand Forecasting

SW-11050/2018

411

SCM 360° - Contracts
Performance Management for
Gas Utilities

SW-11104/2018

412

SCM 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Gas Utilities

SW-11105/2018

437

Operations 360° - Meter Data
Management and Analytics for
Water Utilities

SW-11227/2018

413

SCM 360° - Vendor
Performance Analysis for Gas
Utiliti

SW-11113/2018

438

Operations 360° - Meter
Clustering Analytics for Water
Utilities

SW-11054/2018

414

Projects 360° - Budget
compliance tracking & Analysis
for Gas Utilities

SW-11255/2018

439

Operations 360° - Pipeline QRA
(Quantitative Risk Analysis)
Index for Water Utilities

SW-11062/2018

415

Projects 360° - Schedule and
Resource compliance and
optimization for Gas Ultilities

SW-11084/2018

M&R 360° - Asset Health
Monitoring for Water Utilities

SW-11165/2018

416

Projects 360° - Engineering
MOC Desk - Asset Integrity
Analyzer for Gas Utilities

SW-11478/2018

441

M&R 360° - Breakdown
Maintenance Manager for
Water Utilities

SW-11045/2018

442

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Budgeting for Water Utilities

SW-11080/2018

417

Sustainability 360° - Regulatory
Compliance Governing for Gas
Utiliti

SW-11088/2018

443

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Costing Manager for Water
Utiliti

SW-11055/2018

418

Sustainability 360° - CSR
Compliance Manager for Gas
Utilits

SW-11087/2018

M&R 360° - Maintenance
Planning Desk for Water
Utilities

SW-11120/2018

419

Business Insights 360° - Cross
Functional HR, Training and
Compliance Analyzer for Gas
Utiliti

SW-11109/2018

445

M&R 360° - MRO Spares
Management for Water Utilities

SW-11220/2018

420

Business Insights 360° -
Balanced Score Card Strategy
Management for Gas Utilities

SW-11219/2018

M&R 360° - Work Order
Maintenance Preparedness
Analyzer for Water Utilities

SW-11121/2018

421

Customer Insights 360° - Smart
Meter Analytics for Gas
Utiliti

SW-11224/2018

447

M&R 360° - Consumables
consumption and inventory
tracker for Water Utilities

SW-11081/2018

422

Customer Insights 360° -
Customer Compliance and
Engagement Analytics for Gas
Utilits

SW-11133/2018

448

M&R 360° - Workforce
Mobility Analysis for Water
Utiliti

SW-11033/2018

449

Safety 360° - Occupational
Incident Monitor for Water
Utilities

SW-11352/2018

423

Asset 360° - Asset Integrity
Management for Water
Utilii

SW-11479/2018

450

Safety 360° - Contractor HSE
Performance Analysis for Water
Utilities

SW-11351/2018

424

Asset 360° - Asset Life Cycle
Analytics for Water Utilities

SW-11260/2018

451

Safety 360° - Safety Behavior
Analyzer for Water Utilities

SW-11446/2018

425

Asset 360° - Environmental
impact on waste / clean water
network

SW-11261/2018

452

Safety 360° - Statutory
Compliance Tracker for Water
Utilits

SW-11445/2018




SI# IPNamc Copyright Regn # Si# IPName Copyright Regn #
Safety 360° - SOP updation System Reliability - Transit
453 | compliance Tracker for Water SW-11444/2018 474 | Performance Analytics for SW-11312/2018
Utilities Transportation
Safety 360° - Employee Health Traffic Congestion Analytics for
454 Analysis for Water Utilities SW-11443/2018 475 Transportation SW-11308/2018
Safety 360° - Environment Road Safety Audit & Analytics
455 | Incident Management for SW-11390/2018 476 | for Transportation SW-11307/2018
‘Water Utilities Pavement & Bridge Safety
456 SCM 360° - Procurement Cycle SW-11392/2018 477 Analytics for Transportation SW-11306/2018
Optimization for Water Utilities 478 Traffic Permit Analytics for SW-11315/2018
457 SCM 360° - Material Ageing SW-11391/2018 Transportation
Analysis for Water Utilities 479 Traffic Emission Analytics for SW-11257/2018
SCM 360° - Contracts Transportation
458 | Performance Management for SW-11350/2018 Planning and Budgeting
Water Utilities 480 Analysis for Transportation SW-11259/2018
SCM 360° - MRO Spares Traffic Information Analysis for
459 Management for Water Utilities SW-11089/2018 481 Transportation SW-11303/2018
SCM 360° - Vendor Dynamic Route Analysis for
460 | Performance Analysis for Water | SW-11090/2018 482 Transportation SW-11253/2013
Utilities Asset Management Analytics
Projects 360° - Budget 483 for Transportation SW-11092/2018
461 | compliance tracking & Analysis | SW-11048/2018 Traffic Incident Analysis for
for Water Utilities 484 Transportation SW-11093/2018
Projects 360° - Schedule and ‘Worst Actor analytics for
462 | Resource compliance and SW-11311/2018 485 Transportation SW-11094/2018
optimization for Water Utilities Operation Analytics Suite for
Projects 360° - Engineering 436 Transportation SW-11095/2018
463 | MOC Desk - Asset Integrity SW-11102/2018 State Residential Big Data Hub
Analyzer for Water Utilities 487 Platform SW-11096/2018
Sustainability 360° - Regulatory Analytics portal for Economic 3
464 | Compliance Governing for SW-11310/2018 488 Development SW-11097/2018
‘Water Utilities Analytics portal for Industrial
Sustainability 360° - CSR 489 Development SW-11098/2018
Business Insights 360° - Cross 491 i‘;h;llym?w Management SW-11100/2018
Functional HR, Training and - —
466 | Compliance Analyzer for Water | 5' 11162/2018 497 | Analytics Portal for Citizen SW-11256/2018
Utilities Online Services
Business Insights 360° - 493 | Link Analytics SW-11139/2018
467 | Balanced Score Card Strategy SW-11166/2018 ]
Management for Water Utilities 494 | Rolta Data Advizor SW-7243/2013
glime:;gsig;m _360f° W 495 | Rolta Audit Manager SW-8875/2016
Sp: analytics for Water
468 | ipeline routingand ROT for | 5V 11035/2013 496 | Rolta iPerspective SW-8776/2016
‘Water Utilities !
Customer Insights 360° - Smart 497 | Rolta Security Manager SW-8872/2016
469 | Meter Analytics for Water SW-11042/2018 498 | Rolta Service Builder SW-8775/2016
Utilities - -
Customer Insights 360° - 499 I;;l;fa iPerspective Cloud SW-7245/2013
a79 | Customer Compliance and SW-11091/2018 =
Engagement Analytics for
Water Utilities
Performance Goals Map21
471 | Balanced Score Card for SW-11317/2018
Transportation
Project Planning - Impact Index
472 Analytics for Transportation SW-11318/2018
Infrastructure Conditions
473 Analytics for Transportation SW-11313/2018
Patents
The below four patents have been granted by US Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO)
S1# Title USPTO Reference
1 Modified Wallis Filter for improving the local contrast of GIS related images US9594955B2
2 RGB Images in a GIS application US9378417B2
3 Use of style sets to assist a user in digitizing GIS layers US9865181B2
4 Dynamic Query Services and Methods US8725857B2
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Directors’ Profile

K K Singh is the foonder Chairman of the Rolta Groop of
Companies, He is a first generation entrepreneur and promoted
Rolia India in sarly 1980"%, He iz recognized az a pioneer in
introduction and promotion of Geospatial technologies in India
and has over 47 years of experience in all aspects of corporate
management incinding finance, technology and internationsal
business. He i3 a Mechanical Engineey with a Master's in
Business Admirigtration, Hig progressive outlook hag enabled
Eolta tn be recognized globally as an innovative provider of
cuning-edge transformational IT solutions built around Rolra's
own IP. Mr. Singh is the Honorary Consnl General of Ukraine.

Mr. Singh is @ Director in 23 Companics which include
dnmm:hpml[mmgrnupmmpamﬂ.ﬁemab!emb:mf
National Exscutive Committes of FICCL, Boand of Governors
of Indian Institwte of Information Technology FPune,
Mahammshtra, Board of Governors of Indian Institute of
Information. Techoology, Kalyani, West Bengal and Board of
Governoty of Tndian Institute of Tnformation Technology,
Kottayam, Kerala. He was conferred with Geospatial Word
Leadership Award by the Honorable 11th President of India,
Dt APJ Abdul Kalam, at] Geospatial World Forom 2012, Me
Singh has been placed in the “Geospatinl Hall of Fame" for his
oustanding contribution townrds the global Geospatial
Industry at the Genepatial World Forum 2015. He haz been
named amengst the Ten Living Legends of Geospatial Industry
at Geospatial World Forum in 2017. He iz a Patron Member of
‘World Geospatial Indostry Council. Mr. Singh personally leads
imitintives under the Group's Corporate Socinl Responsibility
progtams, besides his deep commitment 1o Philanthropy at a
personal level

Mr. Kamal X Singh
Cheirman and Managing Director

Ms. Homai A Darowalla
Independent Directar

Ms. Homai A Daruwalla, a qualified
Chattered Acoountant, joined Tnion Bank of
India in 1975 and tose to the position of
General Manager in the year 1997, She was
elevated to the post of Executive Director,
Oriental Bank of Commerre in Augnst 2004,
Thereafter, on 30th June 2005 she was
appointed by the Govi. of India as the
Chairman & Managing Director of Central
Bank of India, a position she held tll 31st
December 2008.

Ms. Homai A Daruwalla, has served as 2
Director, representing India Region, on the
Board of The Institube of Internal Anditors
(ILA), Florida, U.S_A, an international body
having aundit luminaries from all over the
world as fis members, for a period of two
years. Post retirement Ms. Homai A
Daruwalla iz active az Executive
Advisor/Consultant. She is also lending her

expetience and expertise as Independent
Diteetpt on the Boards of prestigious
rompanies like TFL Asget Managenent
Limited, Reliance Securities Limited,
Reliance Financial Limited, Reliance
Commodities Limited, Gammon
Infrastructure Projects Limited, Jaiprakagh
Industries Limited, Meliora Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited and
Vizag Seaport Pyt Limited.

Bank T4d., aleadmgMulh—stateSchnduled
Bank,on&ﬂ:AprdZﬂl?fwapmudufS
years, Carrying the rich experience of 34
years in 3 Public Sector Banks, she hag
assumed the challenge of taking the Bank to
lead position among its peers in the co-
opeTative sector.



Mr. Pradeep started his career as a practicing lawyer at Indore.
Thereafter he joined Oil and Natural Gas Corporation (ONGC) for
about 5 years as a advisor. He progressed to join Dena Bank
1g‘l;‘;.ﬂ:vhcSector]iank) -Mr. Pradeep has served the banking industry
thap. 37 years in various senior positions. His Chairmanship
in Corporation Bank had brought numerous awards to the Bank, He
has also served as Executive Director of Central Bank of India and
was also appointed as Chief Vigi Officer in State Bank of India
and Bank of India, two of banks. He has worked as General
Ma.nagerthcthenDenabank,nowbmkomedaldnthe nmaofmIT
ard management, innovation in new product and driving white
label ATM in India including Rural area. Financial inclusion was his
passion.
In addition, he had also been on the Boards of various Companies

Management, and NPA Management Audit Committees of public
and private limited companies. He is co-chairman of Economic
policy of IMC Chamber of commerce & industry.

After retirement from his successful b career, he was
agsociated with law firms such ag PDS Legal, Singhania & Co. asa
Senior Partner.

He is a co -author of book "Financial inclusion; viable opportunity in
Urban India "and several other articles appeared in The Hindu
Business lines, a leading Business newspaper and worked in Nepal
and Vietnam in the area of financial inclusion and Bank
Restructuring, Presently he is also pursuing his own ventures

Lt. Gen. K T Parnaik
Retd.)
Joint Managing Director

Lt Gen K T Parnaik (Retd.) is the Joint Managing Director since June
2016. He has had a distinguished career of over 41 years in the Indian
Army. He served with &gnitymdpmhmonnlmﬂmce. holding
leadership positions in challenging Command and StafY assignments
along the entire Northern and Western Borders of the country. A
third generation officer, he commanded a Brigade in J&K during
Operation Parakram along the LC, and a Division in Sikkim & Corps
in the North East. As Director General Perspective Plans, he was
closely associated with modernization. and transformation of the
Indian Army.

The General is credited with several foreign assignments, to include
Chief of Staff of UN Mission in Angola and Commandant of Indian
Military Training Team in Bhutan. At the peak of his career, the
General held the most coveted assignment as Army Commander of
the highly active and sensitive Northern Command, a 450,000 strong
force, dealing with military operations in J&K and logistics in some
of the remote and hostile terrains along the Northern and Western
Borders of the country.

General Parnaik is also the Director on the Board of Rolta Thales
Limited.

Mr. Ramdas Gupta, M.Com, L.L.B, L.L.M. started his career by
joining MCA through UPSC in 1985. He served Central Bureau of
Investigation, Govt of India during 1992-95 and served Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) upto October 2018 on different capacities
such as Dy/Director/Registrar of Companies
Mumbai/Ahmedabad and Kolkata.

In addition, he served as Judicial Officer in Debts Recovery Tribunal'
for 5 years and delivered several judgements/orders in execution of
the recovery of banks & financial institutions under RDDBFI Act
and otherlaws.

In addition, he served as 'Special Metropolitan Magistrate' for more
than 6 years, appointed by Hon'ble High Court of Bombay. He was
also an advisor to PFC Consulting Limited, a subsidiary of Power
Finance Corporation, Govt. of India in company law matters. He
was also "Area Welfare Officer’ for Mumbai appointed by DOPT,
Govt. of India.

He also served as Official Liquidator/Dy. Official Liquidator in
Nagpur/Mumbai bench attached to Hon'ble High Court of Bombay
for4 years.

Mr. Sateesh Dasari
Executive Director

Mr. Sateesh Dasari iz a B.Tech (Mechanical) graduate having 27 years
of versatile experience in the IT industry. He is heading the Global
Product Development and Solution Deliveries of Rolta India
Limited and its subsidiaries for Enterprise Digital Transformation
Solutions in the areas of Big Data, Defence, Geospatial, Smart &
Safe Cities, Managed Services, ERP's, GIS and all other related
services. He has been associated with Rolta for 11+ years. He heads
the deliveries of global Marquee customers.

Prior to Rolta, he served with Oracle India for 8 + years for the
Applications Technology Group of Oracle ERP Product
Development and lead one of the global delivery teams. Earlier to
that, he worked with Society General Software, Deutsche Software
and Tata Infotech in various capacities for their solution deliveries.

He is detail oriented and passionate techno business leader. He
implemented several innovative initiatives from the ground up in all
the organizations where he served.
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CENTRAL AND

REGISTERED OFFICE

Rolta Tower A,

Rolta Technology Park, 22nd Street,
MIDC-Marol, Andheri {East),
Mumbai — 400 093

CIN No. L74999MH1989PLC052384
Tel : +91 (22) 2926 6666

Fax : +91 (22) 2836 5992
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CHAIRMAN's OFFICE
2151 Floor, Maker Tower F,
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Union Bank of India
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Central Bank of India

SOLICITORS & LEGAL ADVISORS
Crawford Bayley & Co.
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J. Kala & Associates
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Hetal Vichhi
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Riyadh
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ROLTA

Rolta India Limited

Registered Office: Rolta Tower - A, Rolta Technology Park, MIDC - Maral,
Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400093, Maharashtra, India; CIN: L74999MH 1989PLC052384
Tel.: 91-22-29266666 * Fax : 91-22-28365992 « Email : investor@rolta.com * website: www.rolta.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty First (31") Annual General
Meeting of Members of ROLTA INDIA LIMITED will be held on
Friday, December 31, 2020 at 12:30 p.m. through Video
Conferencing ('VC'")/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM') facility to
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
ITEMNO. 1 - ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Toreceive, consider and adopt;

(a) Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 together with the
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon,;

(b) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 together with the
Report of the Auditors thereon and in this regard, pass the
following resolution(s) as an Ordinary Resolution(s):

(a) “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2021 and the reports of the Board
of Directors and Auditor's thereon as laid before this
meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

(b) “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2021 and the report of Auditor's
thereon as laid before this meeting, be and are hereby
considered and adopted.”

ITEM NO. 2 - TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF
LT. GEN. K. T. PARNAIK (RETD.) (DIN: 07129253), WHO
RETIRES BY ROTATION, AND BEING ELIGIBLE, HAS
OFFERED HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT:

To appoint a Director in place of Lt. Gen. K. T. Parnaik (Retd.), who
retires by rotation under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment in this regard, pass
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,Lt. Gen. K. T.
Parnaik (Retd.) (DIN: 07129253), who retires by rotation, be and is
hereby re-appointed as a director liable to retire by rotation.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Rolta India Limited

S
Hetal Vichhi
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mumbai
December 08, 2021

NOTES:

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
social distancing is a norm to be followed and pursuant to the Circular
No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April
13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021
dated January 13, 2021 and all otherrelevant circulars issued from time
to time, physical attendance of the Members to the EGM/AGM venue
is not required and general meeting be held through video conferencing
(VO) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can
attend and participate in the ensuing EGM/AGM through
VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuantto the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to
attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this
EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint
authorised representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through
VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-
voting.

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC mode 15 minutes
before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the
Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC will be made available
for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include
large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Comumittee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC
will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section
103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as
amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the
Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in
respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting
votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue
voting on the date of the EGM/ AGM will be provided by NSDL.

6. Inline with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No.
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has
been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.rolta.com. The
Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges
i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the
EGM/AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency
for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

7. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in
compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and MCA
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No.
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated
January 13,2021.



THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE
E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAI MEETING ARE AS
UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, December 28, 2021
at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Thursday, December 30, 2021 at 05:00
P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for
voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the
Register of Members / Beneficlal Owners as on the record date (cut-
off date) i.c, Thursday, December 23, 2021, may cast their vote
electronically. The votng right of sharcholders shall be in
pruportion to their share in the paid-op equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date, being Thursday, December 23,
2021.

The way to vote clectromca]ly on NSDL e- Votmg system consists of
“Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDI, ¢-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joi virtual ing for

Individual shar¢holders holding securities in demat mode

In texms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Yoting facility

provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding

securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat

account maintained with Depositorics and Depository Participants.

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile mumber and email 1d

in their demat accounts in orderto access e-Voting facility.

Login method for individual sharehclders holding securities in Demat

mode is given belaw :

Type of sharcholders
Individual
Shareholders holding
securiies in demat
modewith NSDL.

Login Method

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services
webeite of NSDL Viz.

https:/ /eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile On the e-Services
home page click on the “Beneficial Owner”
icon under “Login” which is available under
"IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter
your existing User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to zee
e-Voting services under Value added services,
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting
services and you will beable to see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or ¢-Votng service
provider 1,e. NSDL and you will be re<lirected
to ¢-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period orjoining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
2. Ifyuuazenutreglstemdfur]Dr.AS e-Services,
i option to register is available at
NSDL Mobile
’ hirps://eservices.nsdl.com,
App is available on :: Select “Reginter

hittps://eservices.nedl.com/SecureWeb/Ideas

DirectReg.jsp

3. Vikit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web
browser by typing the following TRL:
https://www.evoting.nedl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click
on the icon “Login” which is aveilable under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID
(Le your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Vetification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see
e-Yoting page Click on company name or
e-Voting service provider L.e. NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download
NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by
scanning the QR code mentioned below for
seamless voting experience,

& AopStore

B Google Ploy

Type of sharcholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in demnat
mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest,

they can login through their user id and
password. Option will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further

authentication. The URL for users to login to
Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/n1ycasl/home/
login or www.cdallndia.com and click on New
System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user
will be also able to see the E Voting Memu. The
Menu will have links of e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cmst
your vote,

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Fasiest,
opuuntoregwmruawla.blcat

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access
e-Voting page by providing demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a link in
authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile & Fmail as recorded in the
demat Account, After successful authentication,
user will be provided links for the respective ESP
i.e, NSDL where the e-Voting ig in progress,

Individual You can alsc login using the login credentials of your
Shareholders (holding| dernat account through your Depository Participant
securities in dernat registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
mode) login through | ypan logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting
their depository option. Click on eVoting option, you will be
participants redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see
e-Voting feature Click on company name or
e-VYoting service provideri.e. NSDL and you will be
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting
your vott during the rmote ¢-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

asswmd are a.dvned to usg Forge_t UserlD a.ru:l Fo_rgg Password
option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders lmld.lng securities in demat

mode for technical issues related to logi Deposi
l.e. NSDL and CDST..

Login type Helpdesk detalls

Individoal Members facing any technical issue in login can
Shareholders holding contact NSDL hslpdesk by sending a request at
securities in demat orcallattoll free no.:

mode with NSDL 18001020990 and 1800224430

Individoal Members facing any technical issue in login can
Sharehalders holding cuntact CDSL helpdﬁk by sending a request at
gecurities in demat 1 2

mode with CDSL 022— 23058738 or022-2305854243

B) Login Method for e-Yoting and jolning virtual meeting for
sharcholders other than Individpal shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in

physical innde.
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting webgite?
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing

the following URL: https://www.evoting nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computeror on a maobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the
gin" which is agvailable under 'Shareholder/Member
section.
3. A newscreen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can
Tog-in at https:/ /eservices.nsdl.com/ with your evisting IDEAS login,



Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click
on e-Voting and you canproceed to Step 21.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4, Your UserID details are given below :
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual
Manner of holding | Your User ID is:
shares 1.e. Demat
(SDL or CDSL) or
Physical

a) For Members who

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

hold shares in demat . .
account with NSDL. | For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client
ID is 12%%%*** then your user ID is
]:NBOO*** 12******.
b) For Members who | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
hold shares in demat
account with CDSL. | For example if your Beneficiary ID is

1 2 ¥k devedivhodek then your user IDis
[ Rk eiiiokiok

¢) For Members
holding shares in
Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN
is 101456 then user ID is 101456001***

shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user
your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) If youare using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you
will need to retrieve the 'initial password' which was
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial
password', you need to enter the ‘'initial password' and the
system will force you to change your password.

¢) Howtoretrieve your 'initial password'?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or
with the company, your ‘initial password' is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email
sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the
email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the
.pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for
CDSL account or folio number for shares held in
physical form. The .pdf file contains your "User ID' and
your 'initial password'.

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps
mentioned below in process for those shareholders
whose email ids are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial
password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are
holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL)
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in
physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c¢) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two

options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your

PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based
login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and
Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will
open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on
NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote elecironically and join General Meeting on
NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

W

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the
companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose
voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status,

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote
during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during the
General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on
“VC/OAVM?” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or
dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to
cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be
displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking
on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be
allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

2.

3.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI
etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
cschjain.associates@gmail.com with a copy marked to

evoti: nsdl.co.in.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any
other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such
an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for
Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and
1800 22 44 30 or send a request to Mr. Sagar Ghosalkar at

evoti: nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered
with the depositories for procuring user id and password and
registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in
this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No.,
Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front
and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email
to investor@rolta.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID
(16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client
master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to investor@rolta.com. If you are
an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you
are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A)
i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for
Individual sharcholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to
evoting(@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-voting
by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their

demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository




Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile

number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to
access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON
THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE ASUNDER:-

1.

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the
instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the
AGM through VC facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in
the EGM/AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible
to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the
EGM/AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances
connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM
shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE
EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE ASUNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM
through VC through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may
access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to
NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of
“VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu
against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM
link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where
the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting
or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same
by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the
notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for
better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use
Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the

meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or
Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may
experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fior LAN
Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have
questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their
name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at investor@rolta.com. The same will be replied by the
company suitably.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have
questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their
name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at {company email id). The same will be replied by the
company suitably.

By Order of the Board of Directors

\Qg[\&»&’-’

Mumbai Hetal Vichhi
December 08, 2021 Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
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